AS PAREX BANKA

ANNUAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT



Table of Contents

Management Report 3
Management of the Bank 8
Statement of Responsibility of the Management 9

Financial Statements:

Statements of Income 10
Statements of Comprehensive Income 11
Balance Sheets 12
Statements of Changes in Equity 13
Statements of Cash Flows 14
Notes 15
Auditors’ Report 87

AS Parex banka
Republikas laukums 2a, Riga,
LV-1522, Latvia

Phone: (371) 67010 000
Facsimile: (371) 67010 001

Registration number: 40003074590




AS Parex banka
Management Report

In 2009, economies around the world were sericaféfcted by the financial crisis and cooling oftgbactivity. In
the transition region, Latvia has been one of thetraeverely affected countries with a sharp dedtirGDP, which
fell dramatically by 19 per cent in th& guarter of 2009. The unemployment rate leapedtpet cent at the end of
2009, with a grim tendency to increase. In therfiia sector of the country, the crisis and lospudilic confidence
in the banking system resulted in a heightenedspreson the stability of the currency peg to elitee International
Monetary Fund, European Union, and other donorviged assistance to Latvia as part of an agreemeent
defend the currency peg and reduce the fiscalid&gi@about 5% of GDP.

With the Latvian economy running through the perifdinstability, Parex bankawas facing a number of
unprecedented challenges in 2009, which has beemadist difficult time in the bank’s history. Follow the bank’s
takeover in the end of 2008, the new managemehediank set out to prove the vital capacity ofsystemic bank
developing a new strategy with the aim to restmecthe institution; thereby, facilitating the retwof the Bank to the
ownership of a successful private investor, thayegent of the short-term liquidity support granbgathe Latvian
Government, and termination of the State Treasuayantees.

Parex banka’amain priorities in 2009 were to ensure sustailitgbdind prevent the outflow of deposits, as well
as to reach new agreements with the providersrafisgited loans. Afterwards, the Bank entered thlilg&tation
phase, improving basic indicators, attracting theolBean Bank for Reconstruction and DevelopmentREB
into its shareholder structure and entering intgotiations with other potential investors. Furtherm the
management of the bank has begun the work on #tescturing of the bank.

From Crisis to Recovery

Since 10 November 2008, when the Latvian Staterhedhe majority shareholder iParex bankathe Bank’s
operations have substantially improved: the depmgiiow has been halted and the deposit volumebeas
stabilised, liquidity indicators have been improvadw customers have been attracted, and innovatoaucts
have been developed.

On 24 February 2009, the Latvian Government decidddhnsfer the shares Bérex banksowned by State JSC
Mortgage and Loan Bank of Latvia to State JSC Bisation Agency, to ensure more optimal managerogtite
State’s investment and prepare the Bank for a @apitrease and a further sale. Pursuant to thisida the
Privatisation Agencyacquired allParex banka’'sshares owned biortgage and Land Bank of Latviand
respective amendments were made in the sharehaldgistry on 27 February 2009.

Despite the global financial crisis and changeth& bank’s operations and due to continuous sugpurt the
Government,Parex bankasuccessfully concluded negotiations with its sgatéd lenders, restructuring the
outstanding loans and the repayment terms. Théngigri the agreement with the syndicated lendefseioruary
2009 evidenced the completion of a crucial stagberstabilisation process of the Bank. The Barkreaeived a
State guarantee for the roll-over repaymentPafex banka’ssyndicated loans in line with the agreement
negotiated betweeRarex bankaand its syndicated lenders with the following la@payment schedule: 30%
(EUR 232.5 million) from the loan amount was repaidMarch 2009, 40% (EUR 310 million) was repaid in
February 2010 and 30% (EUR 232.5 million) will lepaid in May 2011.

AmongParex banka’dop priorities in 2009 was concluding the deahwifteEuropean Bank for Reconstruction
and Developmentabout its involvement in the shareholder structusignalling about the vitality and
development potential of the institution. In Jaryuand February 2009, the EBRD performed a complet
diligenceof Parex bankabut already in March the Cabinet of Ministers @gptually approved the participation
of EBRD in Parex banka’'sequity capital. Similarly the Government reachedagreement to increagtarex
banka’scapital by 227 million lats. On 7 April 2009, tBE®8RD Board of Directors approved a financial paegkag
for Parex bankaincluding the acquisition of 25 percent plus loddinary shares d?arex bankdor LVL 59.5
million (EUR 84.2 million) and a subordinated loanEUR 22 million.

On 16 April 2009, the Share Purchase Agreementsigreed providing that following the increase of iggu
capital the EBRD will purchase 57,506,825 ordinahares comprising 25 percent and one sharBaoéx
banka’s equity capital. On 23 July 2009, tliropean Bank for Reconstruction and Developnsigrned the
subordinated loan agreement withrex banka.
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Finalising the deal, on 3 September 2009, 25 péraed one share d?arex bankawere transferred from the
Privatisation Agencyo theEuropean Bank for Reconstruction and Developmienthis initial transaction, the
EBRD acquired 51,444,325 ordinary shares with gptiights. As part of a future capital increase ateR
banka, the EBRD plans to purchase a further 6,082shares, thus maintaining its stake of 25 peraedtone
share. The EBRD’s investment in the equity capitajether with a EUR 22 million subordinated loan
contributes to strengthen the capital basarex bankaand support its restructuring and return to pabfiity
and the private sector.

The signed agreement indicates not only the ssaltitin of the Latvian financial system and givegoaitive
signal about the investment environment in Lathi#,also evaluateBarex banka'duture development potential
and increases the Bank’s value. The attracted resswill enabléParex bankao further develop new services,
paying a closer attention to the segment of smadl medium enterprises, as investments in this quéati
segment are vital for the economy to recover.

Parex bankaegan to work on optimisation and increased efficy in late 2008, when the wages of the bank’s
Board and Council were cut substantially. The \gagfethe new Board are equal to just 28% of theesgzpid
to members of the previous Board. In the casbefouncil, they are just 17% of the former compéas.

In 2009, the administrative costs of the Bank hd&elined by 39% in comparison to average monttdjcators
in 2008. By the end of 2009, the savings amouttedVL 32,286 thousand, compared to the administeat
costs in 2008. Thus, telecommunication costs wetleaed by 31%, and office expenditures were clgd% in
comparison to the same period of time in 2008. dvlagvings were also ensured by a 91% cut in trenss, an
81% drop in advertising and marketing expendituees,8% drop in representation costs, a 72% dedtine
security services, and a 72% reduction in repail @raintenance expenses. Additionally, moving to nbe
administrative building on 2a Republikas Squar®iga will allow the bank to save LVL 2.7 millionyear and
further reduce administrative costs and maintenamending. Furthermore, the wage fund at the baatk h
declined by 41% after a staff reduction of 25% aneview of all employee wages. Additionally, seNvenew
projects have been launched to raise the effectsgeand to achieve the Bank’s strategic objectfeegxample,
the development of a unified salary system, implaai@n of a performance based management systewela
as increase of effectiveness of the customer sepriacess. In order to improve the cost to incaoamtie the Bank
will continue substantial cost reduction and expsrgptimisation programme in year 2010.

Stabilisation of the Bank also reflected in theamp of international rating agencies. Thus, onJ8y 2009,
international rating agendyloody’s Investors ServicgpprovedParex banka’dong-term rating at the previous
level with a stable outlook; thus, accomplishing thvestigation process launched by Moody's in Dawer
2008 with an initial assumption of a potential dgnade. In its credit opinioMoody’sdiscussedParex banka’'s
improved capital base and the new shareholdertatejcas well as further support from the new dhalckers,
including the European Bank for Reconstruction &®velopment (the EBRD). Moody's also approved the
previously assigned financial strength ratinge,—with a stable outlook and short-term ratiNgt-Prime The
rating agency positively notes the accomplishmaritghe Bank in the stabilization process followitige
turbulences experienced in the fall of 2008, itst@ptimisation efforts, as well as the participatof the EBRD

in the Bank’s shareholder structure. AdditionaMgody’sstrongly approves the state support to the Bank.

Financial Results

As at December 31, 2009, the loan portfolio of Bank and the Group was worth LVL 1.45 and 1.66dill
respectively, with deposits of LVL 1.54 and 1.6%idm, total assets of LVL 2.47 and 2.60 billiomdacapital
and reserve volumes of LVL 153 and 139 million.

The deposit indicators and improvements in the Balidguidity (a 51% indicator in February 2010) shthat
customers are loyal to the Bank and that trusthim institution is increasing. In 2009, the Bankrkeal
successfully to attract new clients and to develew deposit products for private persons and leggties.

In 2009, the Bank paid LVL 40.9 million to the Stafreasury for its deposits, as well as to the d@igation
Agency as interest on its subordinated loan.
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The Bank and the Group completed the year witHosstes of LVL 111 and LVL 127 million respectivels
was the case in the entire bank sector, thesetsasate largely affected by provisions to covepsslin asset
value — LVL 110 and LVL 120 million respectively.

Key elements in improving the Bank’s financial icakiors include a successful agreement on the césiing of

the Bank's syndicated loans in March of this yess, well as the involvement of the European Bank for
Reconstruction and Development in the shareholdectsre of the Bank, thus ensuring additional iitstand
growth prospects for the Bank.

The financial crisis has also had an adverse impad¢he Bank’s capital, which, starting from thel exf 2008,
lead to a breach of several regulatory requireméatios) set by the FCMC. The Bank was in breatcthe
capital adequacy ratio, as well as the limits oreifyn currency open positions. Further, mandateserve
requirements in the Bank of Latvia were not metnggmuently, the Government of Latvia on 24 MarcB20
decided to increase the Bank’s capital, enablingtrobthese breaches to be remedied. Restoringaeptable
level of foreign currency open positions is notyodependent on the capital increase, but also erBdnk’s
ability to commence dealing once more on the irtéonal foreign exchange market, to which accessbieen
very limited since the beginning of the liquiditsisis. The capital oParex bankahas been increased by means
of previously made State Treasury deposit at thekBtous, reducing the amount of this deposit. fde&fer to
Note 27 for additional details on the capital irge.

The capital increase and the successful completicthe syndicated debt restructuring negotiatiofmnathe

Bank to start working on a more detailed strategy the near-term, focusing on regaining customesttr
increasing the deposit base and gradually returtdrthe lending market. In this regard, one of riest urgent
tasks for the management of the Bank is to takenéloessary steps so that the FCMC will feel fulipfadent in

lifting the remaining restrictions on the Bank’sepgations. The management of the Bank realisestpertance
of these efforts and believes that it will soon ibetp produce positive results for its customersl ather
stakeholders.

Management and Supervisory body oParex banka

The Management Board of the Bank took office on écé&nber 2008 and is chaired by Nils Melngailis.
Members of the Board are: Guntis|Beskis, Senior Vice President and Head of Custd®egvices Division,
Valters Abele, Head of Credit Risk Division and Vladimirsahovs, Vice President, Customer Service
Department, and Roberts Stugis, Vice Presidentrsigiy financial issues.

The Management of the Bank has named its stratdgectives, which include the restructuring of Benk to
ensure a more efficient and economical functiorohdhe institution, as well as the provision of épéndent
funding and capital adequacy level to facilitate tepayment of the state aid in the shortest plessibe.

New Supervisory Council d?arex bankavas elected on 29 January 2010 during an extnaargimeeting of the
Bank’s Shareholders. The Council consists of tHming members: Andz&belis, Michael J. Bourke (the
EBRD), Laurence Phillips Adams (the EBRD), Kaspab®ling and Juris Vagis.

The Management Board of the Bank is the executodylgoverning everyday processes at the Bank, wihde
Council is a supervisory body, representing shddeng’ interests at the Bank in the periods betwten
shareholder meetings and supervising the Boardisrecin order to ensure the Bank’s further growtid

development.

Restructuring and Development

On 8 May 2009, the Cabinet of Ministers appro®adex banka'sestructuring plan, which was developed to
assert the state support in the European CommisElmdocument gave an overview of the developmlamts

of the Bank in line with the European Commissiogutations on the state support during the aid [siowi
period.
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Parex bankahas also defined its main strategic prioritiee tiestructuring of work organization to reach
maximum efficiency and economy, as well as provisid independent bank’s funding and capital adeguac
Furthermore, the improvement of risk control andnagement, lifting of the imposed restrictions and
development of a new positioning plan in the maket also on the priority list. The document alseeg an
outline of the most important aspects of the Bariisiness plan until 2013, including financial fasts of
balance sheet, profit and loss statement. Othatesfic priorities included returning to normal agt@ns and the
provision of a full range services to Bank’s custosy including lending. Furthermore, the Managenadrihe
Bank is dedicated to developing a new businestegyancluding investment in the development of rsemwices

to adapt successfully to changing customer needs.

In 2009, major work was devoted to organizing tlamiBs business and dividing it into three majoediions —

retail services, corporate services, and privapit@lananagement, identifying priorities for devyahoent in each

of three areaf?arex banka'snanagement is working on the development of thissShank’s strategy within the
framework of the proposed private capital managérservice development and in line wilarex banka'’s

restructuring plan approved by the Latvian govenmme

Parex bankahas strengthened its positions in the deposit etads well as its customer base. Notwithstanding
the sharp economic slowdown in Latvia and worldwittee deposit amount in the segments of corporate
customers and private individuals is stable — thelmer of corporate depositors has surpassed 1&ahdu
enterprises. Furthermore, circa 254 thousand mrivadividuals, including more than 236 thousandvizat
residents have entrusted their assetPadoex banka The total deposits @®arex bankahave exceeded 1.54
billion lats, including 627 million lats in depositfrom the State Treasury in the framework of sttt
programme tdarex banka

In 2009, Parex bankahas added 16,080 new customers to its customer Rasrently, the bank has 379,971
customers, of those 5,134 legal entities and 94j86®iduals proved their trust in the Bank in 2009
increasing the level of their partnership with Benk.

In 2009, Parex bankastablished a subsidiary, SIA NIF (“NekustatpaSumu fonds”, or “Real Estate Fund”),
which will professionally manage assets that areratated to the Bank’s core business. This appbethe
Bank's real estate, problematic loans, and expatgai properties. Documents to register SIA NIF ewver
submitted to the Latvian Company Register on 1%eaper 2009.

Parex bankéaas signed up to the Code of Conduct on housigsloundertaking to implement it by 1 July 2010.
The purpose of the Code of Conduct is to guaratheé consumers receive transparent and comparable
information on housing loans in order to encouragess-border competition. Once the Bank resumes$gawge
lending, its customers will have a guarantee tPatex bankaoperates according to the best practice and
standards of the European Union, providing comglgtamation about lending terms before the coriolu®f

the agreement.

Significant recent events

On 25 January 201rivatisation Agencyand Parex bankaconcluded an agreement with the international
adviser Nomura International plc (hereinafteNemurg. Within the framework of the agreemeNmurawill
consult the Latvian Government, will prepdarex banka’srestructuring plan, following the approval of the
restructuring plan by the government as a majorestedder,Nomura'stask will be to provide the necessary
consultations and support to the Bank for the imglietation of the plan. Additionally, the consultavill assist
the Management of the Bank in developing new gisataind business plan f®arex bankaand its restructured
units, as well as establish an effective managemeuatel for the newly established structures ofBhek. The
last phase in the partnership with the consultalhtoe the successful sale of the restructured Bamk the units
established in the process of the restructuring.

On 29 January 2010, in an extraordinary meetinarex bank& shareholders a decision was made to issue
Bank’s debt securities for the total value of EURS Inillion with a 2 year maturity and a 5% coup®he bonds

will be issued in several tranches. On 15 Febr2#&d0, the Bank concluded its first issue of deltustes
amounting to EUR 17.7 million.
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The issue ofParex bank& debt securities will be aimed at facilitatingoeomically favourable and legally
stable deposit restructuring?arex bank& major depositors who currently have limited ploities to handle
their funds will be offered to acquire securitigsrbeans of their funds deposited at the Bank. réstucturing
of the largest Bank’s deposits will have a favoigabffect on decisions regarding the cancellatibrthe
imposed restrictions, as well as on the Bank'sitgtiib attract investors and repay the state’s stwent. Lifting
of the restrictions is one of the prerequisiteseidaunch lending, which currently is an esserfaator for the
stimulation of general economic development.

Nils Melngailis AndzsUbelis
Chairman of the Management Board Chairman of the Council

Riga,
24 March 2010
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Council of the Bank

Name Position

AndzsUbelis Chairman of the Council
Michael Joseph Bourke Deputy chairman of the Cidunc
Laurence Phillips Adams Member of the Council
KasparsAboling Member of the Council

Juris Vaskns Member of the Council

Management Board of the Bank

Name Position

Nils Melngailis
Guntis Béavskis
Roberts Stgis
Vladimirs lvanovs

Chairman of the Management Boarg.
Member of the Management Board, p.p.
Memeber of the Management Board
Memeber of the Management Board
ValtersAbele Memeber of the Management Board

Since 29 June 2009 the EBRD is represented in Pameials Supervisory Council. A new Supervisory Coun€iParex

banka was elected during the annual General meefitige Bank’s Shareholders. The following membeesenelected to
Parex banka’s Council — Andg®elis, Michael J. Bourke, Laurence Phillips AdamBRD nominee), Kaspa&bolin$ and

Carl Hakan Kallaker. Due to Carl Hakan Kallaker Iegvhis duties, the rest of the previous Council reappointed on 28
August 2009 and Juris Vasiks was appointed as the new member of the Council.

Changes in management bodies during the reportiaigared until the signing of these financial statetsie

Type of
Name Position Date of changes changes
AndzsUbelis Chairman of the Council 17.09.2009 Re-elected

Michael J. Bourke

AndzsUbelis

Michael J. Bourke
KasparsAbolins
Laurence Phillips Adams
Juris Vaskns

AndzsUbelis

Michael J. Bourke
KasparsAbolins

Carl Hakan Kallaker
Laurence Phillips Adams

AndzsUbelis

Michael J. Bourke
KasparsAbolins

Carl Hakan Kallaker
Laurence Phillips Adams

Rolands Pgko
Gints Freimanis
Zaneta Jaunzeme-Grende

Deputy Chairman of the Council

Member of the Council
Member of the Council

Member of the Council
Member of the Council

Member of the Council

Chairman of the Council

Deputy Chairman of the Council
Member of the Council

Member of the Council

Member of the Council

Chairman of the Council

Deputy Chairman of the Council
Member of the Council

Member of the Council

Member of the Council

Deputy Chairman of the Council
Member of the Council
Member of the Council

0972009 Re-elected

28.08.2009 Reappointed
28.08.2009 Reappointed
28.08.2009 Reappointed
38009 Reappointed
28.08.2009 Appointed

28.08.2009 Removed
088009 Removed
28.08.2009 Removed
28.08200 Resigned
28009 Removed

29.06.2009 Reappdinte
0B009 Appointed
29.06.2009 Reappointed
29.06200 Reappointed
B2009 Appointed

29.06.2009 Resig
29.06.2009 Resigned
2908 Resigned
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The Management of AS Parex banka (hereinafter -Btrk) are responsible for the preparation of tharftial statements
of the Bank as well as for the preparation of thesotidated financial statements of the Bank andlitssidiaries (hereinafter
— the Group).

The financial statements set out on pages 10 tar8@prepared in accordance with the source docsnaent present fairly
the financial position of the Bank and the Groupat81 December 2009 and 2008 and the results of dperations,
changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flowgHeryears then ended. The management report setnopéges 3 to 7
presents fairly the financial results of the repartyear and future prospects of the Bank and tloeifer

The financial statements are prepared in accordavitte International Financial Reporting Standardsued by the
International Accounting Standards Board as adopgdhe European Union on a going concern basis.réypiate
accounting policies have been applied on a comgibsis. Prudent and reasonable judgments amdags have been made
by the Management in the preparation of the firerstatements.

The Management of AS Parex banka are responsiblindomaintenance of proper accounting recordssd#fieguarding of
the Group’s assets and the prevention and deteafitraud and other irregularities in the Grouphey are also responsible
for operating the Bank in compliance with the Law @redit Institutions, regulations of the FinancialaCapital Market
Commission and other legislation of the Republic ativia applicable for credit institutions.

Nils Melngailis AndzsUbelis
Chairman of the Management Board Chairman of the Council

Riga,
24 March 2010
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for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

LVL 000’s
2009 2008 2009 2008
Notes  Group Group Bank Bank
Interest income 3 172,310 228,337 153,562 202,292
Interest expense 3 (145,883) (132,045) (141,315) (125,759)
Net interest income 26,427 96,292 12,247 76,533
Commission and fee income 4 28,160 47,186 21,588 2988,
Commission and fee expense 4 (8,588) (11,374) (6,944) (10,875)
Net commission and fee income 19,572 35,812 14,644 27,423
(Loss) / gain on transactions with financial
instruments, net 5 5,655 (3,362) 5,540 (4,657)
Other income 6 15,020 12,908 10,291 8,073
Other expense (4,476) (1,515) (4,115) (1,062)
Administrative expense 7,8 (71,524) (109,092) (50,352) (82,638)
Amortisation and depreciation charge 18,19 (11,348) (9,314) (7,752) (7,346)
Impairment charges and reversals, net 9 (119,699) (159,732) (109,693) (146,655)
Loss on disposal of assets held for sale, net 523,6 (391) - -
Loss before taxation (144,025) (138,394) (129,190) (130,329)
Corporate income tax 10 17,015 7,424 18,080 6,321
Net loss for the year (127,010) (130,970) (111,110) (124,008)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank (127,010) (130,970) (111,110) (124,008)
Minority interest - - - -
(127,010) (130,970) (111,110) (124,008)

The notes on pages 15 to 86 are an integral paénesé financial statements.
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Statements of Comprehensive Income

for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

Net loss for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Fair value revaluation reserve: held-to-maturity
securities*
Reclassification of securities (incl. deferred tax)
Amortisation
Impairment of securities
Deferred income tax charged directly to equity

Fair value revaluation reserve: available-for-sale
securities
Reclassification of securities (incl. deferred tax)
Impairment of securities
Fair value revaluation reserve charged to statement

of income

Change in fair value of available for sale secwitie
Deferred income tax charged directly to equity

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Minority interest

LVL 000’s
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
(127,010) (130,970) (111,110) (124,008)
- (12,236) - (11,075)
2,449 1,071 2,166 935
565 1,883 565 1,883
12 66 (22) (22)
- 12,236 - 11,075
2,585 5,501 2,585 5,501
11 6,536 (15) 7,095
16,663 (31,375) 16,232 (31,344)
(396) 413 (220) 301
1,889 (15,905) 21,291 (15,651)
(105,121) 46(875) (89,819) (139,659)
(105,121) (146,875) (89,819) (139,659)
(105,121) (146,875) (89,819) (139,659)

*The reserve is attributable to available-for-sadéeurities that were reclassified to held-to-magusecurities. The reserve
will be amortised to Income statement till the migof the securities.

In 2008, the Bank decided to reclassify part of labde-for-sale securities to held-to-maturity polit. Please see Note 15
for more details on the reclassification. The actimg treatment of the revaluation reserve attabig to the securities
reclassified is described in sectiBimancial instrument®f the Note ZSummary of significant accounting policies

The notes on pages 15 to 86 are an integral paénesé financial statements.
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AS Parex banka
Balance Sheets
as at 31 December 2009 and 2008

LVL 000's

31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008

Notes Group Group Bank Bank

Assets
Cash and deposits with central banks 11 157,502 116,350 142,259 95,179
Balances due from credit institutions 12 220,836 274,724 325,869 498,685
Securities held for trading:

- fixed income 15 1,409 2,314 1,409 2,000

- shares and other non-fixed income 16 1,443 4,401 1,443 4,401
Derivative financial instruments 28 1,913 19,203 1,922 19,152
Financial assets designated at fair value

through profit and loss 2,770 1,629 - -
Available-for-sale securities:

- fixed income 15 104,818 146,187 85,741 141,304

- shares and other non-fixed income 16 9,531 12,504 9,458 12,418
Loans and receivables to customers 13,14 1,660,368 2,036,001 1,445,406 1,744,871
Held-to-maturity securities 15 299,371 758,546 318,649 797,989
Current income tax assets 10 7,977 8,147 7,190 7,666
Non-current assets and disposal groups

classified as held for sale 20 12,373 7,109 4 2,814
Fixed assets 19 52,495 60,492 12,545 20,238
Goodwill and intangible assets 18 3,294 4,048 585 782
Investments in subsidiaries 17 - - 72,725 51,442
Investment property 878 - - -
Deferred income tax assets 10 31,492 12,199 28,801 9,679
Other assets 21 28,427 19,949 17,144 9,419
Total assets 2,596,897 3,483,803 2,471,150 3,418,039
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 28 937 9,509 962 9,670
Financial liabilities designated at fair value

through profit and loss 709 314 - -

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
- balances due to credit institutions and central

banks 23 552,466 1,189,621 572,782 1,261,440

- deposits from customers 24 1,687,849 2,022,994 1,540,669 1,901,886

- issued debt securities 22 90,551 88,982 90,742 88,712

- other financial liabilities 5,430 2,341 - -
Current income tax liabilities 10 436 440 - -
Deferred income tax liabilities 10 846 347 - -
Other liabilities 25 14,774 37,227 9,370 25,883
Subordinated liabilities 26 103,949 52,957 103,956 52,960
Total liabilities 2,457,947 3,404,732 2,318,481 3,340,551
Equity
Paid-in share capital 27 230,027 65,027 230,027 65,027
Share premium 12,694 12,694 12,694 12,694
Fair value revaluation reserve — held-to-

maturity securities (6,190) (9,216) (5,570) (8,279)
Fair value revaluation reserve — available-

for-sale securities (6,128) (24,991) (6,409) (24)991
(Accumulated losses) / Retained earnings (91,453) ,5535 (78,073) 33,037
Total shareholders' equity attributable to

the shareholders of the Bank 138,950 79,071 152,669 77,488
Minority interest - - - -
Total equity 138,950 79,071 152,669 77,488
Total liabilities and equity 2,596,897 3,483,803 2,471,150 3,418,039

The notes on pages 15 to 86 are an integral paénesé financial statements.
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AS Parex banka
Statements of Changes in Equity
for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

Changes in the Group’s equity are as follows:

LVL 000’s

Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

Fair value revaluation

Issued reserve, attributable to:
share Share - Retained Total equity
capital  premium Held-to-  Available- earnings
maturity for-sale
securities  securities
Balance as at 31 December 2007 65,027 12,694 - (18,302) 166,527 225,946
Net loss for the period - - - - (130970) (130,970)
Other comprehensive loss for the period - - (9,216) (6,689) - (15,905)
Balance as at 31 December 2008 65,027 12,694 (9,216)  (24,991) 35,557 79,071
Issue of new shares 165,000 - - - - 165,000
Net loss for the period - - - - (127,010) (127,010)
Other comprehensive income for the
period - - 3,026 18,863 - 21,889
Balance as at 31 December 2009 230,027 12,694 (6,190) (6,128) (91,453) 138,950
Changes in the Bank’s equity are as follows:
LVL 000’s
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
Fair value revaluation
Issued reserve, attributable to:
share Share - Retained  Total equity
capital  premium Held-to-  Available- earnings
maturity  for-sale
securities securities
Balance as at 31 December 2007 65,027 12,694 - (17,619) 157,045 217,147
Net loss for the period - - - - (124,008) (124,008)
Other comprehensive loss for the period - - (8,279) (7,372) - (15,651)
Balance as at 31 December 2008 65,027 12,694 (8,279) (24,991) 33,037 77,488
Issue of new shares 165,000 - - - - 165,000
Net loss for the period - - - - (111,110) (111,110)
Other comprehensive income for the
period - - 2,709 18,582 - 21,291
Balance as at 31 December 2009 230,027 12,694 (5,570) (6,409) (78,073) 152,669

The notes on pages 15 to 86 are an integral paénesé financial statements.
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AS Parex banka
Statements of Cash Flows
for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

LVL 000’s
2009 2008 2009 2008
Notes Group Group Bank Bank
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax (144,025) (138,394) (129,190)  (130,329)
Amortisation of intangible assets, depreciatiofixafd
assets and investment property 11,348 9,314 7,752 7,346
Change in impairment allowances and other provisions 119,699 158,730 109,693 144,511
Other non-cash items 240 1,027 782 629
Cash generated before changes in assets and liaix (12,738) 30,677 (10,963) 22,157
Change in derivative financial instruments 8,718 2,265) 8,522 (10,985)
(Increase)/ decrease in other assets (4,589) (1,934) 3,148 (215)
(Decrease) in other liabilities (18,535) (1,516) (15,684) (499)
Decrease in trading investments 3,117 37,354 3,549 36,388
(Increase)/ decrease in balances due from crestitutions 21,855 13,361 (167,816) 173,153
(Increase) / decrease in loans and receivablasstomers 247,090 (130,802) 176,661 (110,801)
Increase / (decrease) in balances due to creditiitens
and central banks (33,436) 98,487 (20,617) 94,842
(Decrease) in deposits from customers (132,807) (58,971) (158,879) (7,242)
Cash generated from/ (used in)operating activities
before corporate income tax 78,675 (25,609) (1829 196,798
Corporate income tax (paid) (2,460) (8,003) (808) (6,603)
Net cash flow generated from / (used in) operating
activities 76,215 (33,612) (182,887) 190,195
Cash flows from investing activities
(Purchase) of intangible and fixed assets (10,499) (39,903) (1,045) (9,545)
Proceeds from disposal of intangible and fixed tasse 1,284 1,503 648 779
Acquisitions and investments in subsidiaries - - 21,675) -
(Purchase) of held-to-maturity securities - (13334 - (40,415)
Cash inflows from maturing held-to-maturity secesti 37,361 33,392 59,251 32,842
(Purchase) of available-for-sale securities, net 9,461 (40,247) 71,117 (52,475)
Net cash flow from investing activities 87,547 (6602) 108,296 (68,814)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment/ repurchase of debt securities - (98,925) - (99,718)
Repayment of syndicated loans (163,402) (263,551) (163,402) (263,551)
Proceeds from received syndicated loans - 193,271 - 193,271
Raised subordinated capital 12,928 24,844 12,932 24,847
Net cash flow from financing activities (150,474)  (144,361) (150,470) (145,151)
Net cash flow for the year 13,288 (238,575) (225,061) (23,770)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of thegr 31 361,488 600,063 555,930 579,700
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 31 374,776 361,488 330,869 555,930
Amounts of interest income and (expense) receifdd) are as follows:
LVL 000’s
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Interest income received during the year 159,507 22,273 143,886 198,703
Interest expense paid during the year (169,533) (129,758) (146,982) (123,024

The notes on pages 15 to 86 are an integral paénesé financial statements.
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AS Parex banka
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2009

Figures in parenthesis represent amounts as at &dehber 2008 or for year ended 31 December 2008t istated otherwise.
If not mentioned otherwise, referral to Group’s p@s and procedures should be also considered fasrat to the respective
Bank’s policies and procedures.

AUTHORISATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements have been authorisets§oance by the Management on 24 March 2010. dordance with the
Commercial Law of the Republic of Latvia, the shatdbrs’ meeting has the right to make decision gorayal of the financial
statements.

NOTE 1. GENERAL INFORMATION

AS Parex banka (hereinafter — the Bank) was regdtas a joint stock company on 14 May 1992. The Bamikmenced its
operations in June 1992.

The Bank’s head office and three main branchesomadd in Riga, Latvia. As of 14 September 2009 )egal address of the
Bank has been changed to Republikas laukums 2a, Riga522 from SmilSu 3, Riga, LV-1522. As at 31 Ded®n2009, the

Bank was operating a total of 63 (74) branches diedtcservice centres in Riga and throughout LatVize Bank has 12 (11)
foreign branches and client service centres — llinha(Estonia), Narva (Estonia), Tartu (EstoniBgrlin (Germany), Hamburg
(Germany), Munich (Germany), Helsinki (Finland)p&holm (Sweden) and Goteborg (Sweden). The Banlsalinectly and

indirectly 35 (29) subsidiaries, which operate @miwus financial markets sectors. The Bank is pazemtpany of the Group.

The Bank’s main areas of operation include acceplpsits from customers, granting short-term amdjterm loans to the
State Treasury of Latvia, local municipalities, mmrate customers, private individuals and otheditiastitutions, issuing and
servicing payment cards, dealing with finance leaise foreign exchange transactions. The Bank offerslients also trust
management and investment banking services, pesftooal and international payments, as well asigesva wide range of
other financial services.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had 2,868 (3.&9pJoyees.
Impact of financial crisis on the Group and Bank

The collapse of Lehman Brothers in mid-September828@d the unprecedented events in subsequent vimeksified the
turmoil in global financial markets leading to irased public uncertainty about the stability oflthévian financial sector and,
in particular, privately owned banks, which did eafoy support from larger international finandratitutions. Notwithstanding
the continued growth in the deposit base untilehd of September 2008, the Bank thereafter expexikdeposit outflows as
well as a decrease in the liquidity of its secastportfolio, part of which was held as a liquidityshion. As a result, at the end
of October 2008, the Bank applied to the Governnaérihe Republic of Latvia for support. On 10 NovemB808, prior to
providing the liquidity support, the State and &tavint-Stock Company “Latvijas Higd un zemes bankaMortgage and
Land Bank of Latvia)entered into an agreement with the major sharehsldf the Bank Vatijs Kargins and Viktors
Krasovickis for the sale of 51% of their sharehotdfor a symbolic price of 2 lats to thdortgage and Land Bank of Latvia
The initial response to the takeover was a sigmificincrease in the outflows of deposits during fingt days after the
announcement, mainly due to the lack of publicaiety as to whether the State support was temparapgrmanent.

On 1 December 2008, with the aim of stabilisinggheation in the Bank the Cabinet of Ministers af Republic of Latvia and
the Financial and Capital Market Commission (FCMC)aasmporary measure under the Credit Institutions béLatvia,
jointly decided to impose withdrawal restrictions e Bank’s deposits. In order to further stabiPsgex bankaa decision to
increase the State’s shareholding was made anddmnesrts to the agreement concluded on 10 Novemlf}3 @@re made on 3
December 2008. Under the terms of the amendméduttleer 33.83% ofarex banka’'sshares were sold by the former major
shareholders to the state-ownktbrtgage and Land Bank of Latyiéncreasing its share to 84.83%. Following thigiah
Government involvement, the Bank has received fuiltheidity support from the State Treasury of Republic of Latvia when
necessary. On 24 February 2009, the Governmenawid decided to transfer the sharedafex banksowned byMortgage
and Land Bank of Latvito the Privatisation Agengyto ensure more optimal management of the Stateéstment and prepare
the Bank for a capital increase and future salesurunt to this decisiotine Privatisation AgencgicquiredParex banka’'shares
owned byMortgage and Land Bank of Latvi@nd respective amendments were made in the siideesl register on 27
February 2009.

On 24 March 2009, the Cabinet of Ministers resoltedtrengthen the capital of the Bank by LVL 227limnl, consisting of
LVL 165 million share capital and LVL 62 million baordinated loans. On 11 May 2009, the European Cegiomi approved a
share capital increase of LVL 140,750 thousandasdbordinated loan amounting to LVL 50,270 thods&n 22 May 2009,
the Privatisation Agencpaid up the respective capital increase and issubdrdinated loan.
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Furthermore, on 16 April 2009 thieuropean Bank for Reconstruction and DevelopnEBRD) has signed an agreement with
the Privatisation Agencio purchase 25% of the Bank’s share capital, whiithfollow the increase of the capital by the $tat
The closing of this transaction took place on 3tSmper 2009 and the EBRD became a shareholder iBah& owning
51,444,325 voting shares.

On 29 October 2009 the Bank's capital was increas#uer by LVL 24.25 million. The increase was dadrout by the largest
shareholder of the Bartke Privatisation Agenclgy purchase of a corresponding amount of non-gathares.

Since the end of 2008, the Bank has resolved cedhithe significant uncertainties in respect to tBmup’s ability to
successfully cope with market challenges, contiitseoperations on a going concern basis and retimrnormal business
conditions. The most important of these are:

» Syndicated loan repayment has been restructurédhee repayment of the first and second part efpttincipal has been

made;

« Stabilised and constantly improving liquidity;

« A decision has been made to strengthen the Baakial base with an injection amounting to LVL 28illion; and

* EBRD became a 25% shareholder (voting rights) eBank.

Nevertheless, the economic environment in the Gsomnain markets for the years 2010 is going to &y difficult. On its way
to fully restore the level of business activity agsure further development, the Group will facenynehallenges, the most
important of these being regaining and continuossigngthening customer confidence. Even thoughraber of significant
steps towards the stabilisation of the Bank haveadly been taken by the Bank in 2009 as mentionedopisty, Management
acknowledge that strengthening customer relatigssaind their confidence in the Bank will remain ianity in the forthcoming
years. It will enable the Group to strengthenigsiblity position and return to its normal courgéasiness.

As mentioned previously, on 1 December 2008, thergial and Capital Markets Commission (FCMC) and their@a of
Ministers imposed restrictions on deposit withdrisvwieom AS Parex banka (Latvia), applicable tocalétomer deposits with the
Bank as at that date. On 19 June 2009 the reshicti@re prolonged to 1 December 2009 and, recenmil{,3 November 2009
the FCMC resolved to extend these restrictions8@IJune 2010. Nevertheless, during 2009 the réstichave been softened
gradually since they were first imposed in Decen#t¥8. Since June 2009, the restrictions on outgoioney transfers subject
to business-purpose checks have been reduced, Gutober the unused withdrawal limits became terafiie (accumulate)
from one month to the next month and since Noveratage and municipal entities do not have any $in@tcording to the same
FCMC resolutions, thus facilitating certain clientmeg transfers.

The management of the Bank believes that restrietigt be fully lifted only after sufficient liquidly buffer is built to meet any
potential additional cash requirements arising fritva full lifting of restrictions. The management avorking on various
options to accumulate the aforementioned cash ressuDuring 2009, the level of deposits restridtad reduced significantly
and as at 31 December 2009 amounts to LVL 280ani{LVL 611 million) representing 17% (30%) of tbteeposits and 27%
(46%) of customer deposits without State Treasweyodits. The management recognise that there isrtaintty as to the
potential effect of restrictions removal on the @leBank’s liquidity position. Nevertheless, the magement believes that the
restructuring measures (e.g. restructuring theicest deposits into fixed-term Eurobonds) that besn already started in 2010
will address the aforementioned uncertainty.

On 8 May 2009, the Cabinet of Ministers approRadex banka’sestructuring plan (further EC restructuring plamhpich was
developed to assert the state support and it waisited to the European Commissiddn 22 September 2009, revised EC
restructuring plan was submitted. In the meantithe, management of the Bank continued the work orldping additional
alternatives for the restructuring of the Bank. GnhJanuary 2010, Privatisation Agency appointed Namnoternational Plc
(further — Nomura) as the strategic consultanespect of the restructuring as well as the satbeBank. On 23 March 2010,
the Cabinet of Ministers approved the restructuprigciples/framework presented by Nomura whichoisdstrucure strategic
assets out in a new entity to enable the Bank tdiraom in business on a commercial basis and far iie less dependant on
State support. Nevertheless, the in-depth assessmhehe potential restructuring implications conigs. Further, the actual
restructuring process will commence only after séipproval of the European Commission is receivedsTha at the date of
signing these financial statements the potentfacebf the restructuring, if any, on the GroupreldBank’s financial position is
unclear.

The financial statements have been prepared oring goncern basis. The validity of this assumpti®miependant upon the
continuity of State support and on-going roll-ovirsnaturity of existing State Treasury deposisyell as the effect, if any, of
the Bank’s restructuring process outcome. It canbeogxcluded that the existence of these uncedainmay cast doubt on the
ability of the Group to continue to operate on @ngoconcern basis for the foreseeable future. éf @roup were unable to
continue as a going concern, adjustments may @\ tmade to reduce the monetary value of assetseio recoverable

amounts and provide for further liabilities thaigimi arise.

Management of the Bank is positive that the Bankintaknto account the support from its shareholdérsuch would be
needed, is well positioned to resolve the aforefoeat uncertainties and that the Group and the Builikhave adequate
resources to restore the normal course of busingbg foreseeable future. For these reasons, tiralyement continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the annuartemd financial statements.
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Certain new IFRSs became effective for the Group fronddnuary 2009. Listed below are those new or amensishdards
or interpretations which are relevant to the Grouptperations and the nature of their impact on thedsip’s accounting
policies.

IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, revisedSeptember 20Q7The main change in IAS 1 is the replacement of the
income statement by a statement of comprehensieenia which includes all non-owner changes in egqutych as the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assétsernatively, entities are allowed to present tstatements: a separate income
statement and a statement of comprehensive incdhee.Group has elected to present a separate instat@ment and a
statement of comprehensive income. The revisedlla&o introduces a requirement to present a sggieaf financial position
(balance sheet) at the beginning of the earlieshpemative period whenever the entity restates coatipas due to
reclassifications, changes in accounting poliaesorrections of errors. The revised IAS 1 hadngpact on the presentation of
the Group’s financial statements but had no impadhe recognition or measurement of specific tatisns and balances.

Improving Disclosures about Financial InstrumentsAmendment to IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosuressued in
March 2009 The amendment requires enhanced disclosures &iowalue measurements and liquidity risk. Timditg is
required to disclose an analysis of financial instents using a three-level fair value measuremenafthy. The amendment (a)
clarifies that the maturity analysis of liabilitiseould include issued financial guarantee corgratthe maximum amount of the
guarantee in the earliest period in which the guae could be called; and (b) requires disclosdireemaining contractual
maturities of financial derivatives if the contraak maturities are essential for an understandfrtetiming of the cash flows.
An entity will further have to disclose a maturignalysis of financial assets it holds for manadiiogidity risk, if that
information is necessary to enable users of itarfaial statements to evaluate the nature and egfeliquidity risk. The
enhanced disclosures are included in these finbsteigements.

IFRS 8, Operating Segment3he standard applies to entities whose debt oityetpstruments are traded in a public market or
that file, or are in the process of filing, theimdncial statements with a regulatory organisaf@mnthe purpose of issuing any
class of instruments in a public market. IFRS 8 m&3uan entity to report financial and descriptiméormation about its
operating segments, with segment information pteskeon a similar basis to that used for internpbréng purposes.

In accordance with the adopted of IFRS 8 the Gragdnly one segment — bank in Latvia. There has bedurther impact on
the measurement of the Group’s assets and ligsilitComparative segment disclosures have beenegstatonform to the
presentation in the current period.

Improvements to International Financial Reporting Stalards(issued in May 2008 endorsed by the EU on 23 JgR2@09;
most of the amendments are effective for annudbgsrbeginning on or after 1 January 2009). Theraiments consist of a
mixture of substantive changes, clarifications, andnges in terminology in various standards. Thistantive changes relate to
the following areas: classification as held foresahder IFRS 5 in case of a loss of control oveulssisliary; possibility of
presentation of financial instruments held for ingdas non-current under IAS 1; accounting for sHl€AS 16 assets which
were previously held for rental and classificatmfrthe related cash flows under IAS 7 as cash flivas operating activities;
clarification of definition of a curtailment undeéAS 19; accounting for below market interest raveynment loans in
accordance with IAS 20; making the definition ofrftmaving costs in IAS 23 consistent with the effeetiinterest method;
clarification of accounting for subsidiaries helat sale under IAS 27 and IFRS 5; reduction in thexldsure requirements
relating to associates and joint ventures under28%&nd IAS 31; enhancement of disclosures requiyeld\S 36; clarification
of accounting for advertising costs under IAS 3®gading the definition of the fair value througlofitror loss category to be
consistent with hedge accounting under IAS 39;ouhtiction of accounting for investment propertieslemconstruction in
accordance with IAS 40; and reduction in restritsimver manner of determining fair value of biotagiassets under IAS 41.
Further amendments made to IAS 8, 10, 18, 20, 2948, 41 and to IFRS 7 represent terminology otoeidi changes only,
which the IASB believes have no or minimal effect aatounting. The amendments did not have a mateffiett on these
financial statements

The following new and amended IFRSs and interpretatiobscame effective in 2009, but are not relevant tbe Group’s
operationsand did not have an impact on these financial statents:

- |AS 23, Borrowing Costs, revised in March 2007.

- Puttable Financial Instruments and ObligationsiAgon Liquidation—IAS 32 and IAS 1 Amendment.

- Vesting Conditions and Cancellations—Amendment to IRRShare-based Payment.

- IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes ( effective I 2008 but the EU endorsed for use from 1 Jangang).

- IFRIC 14, IAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefitetssninimum funding requirements and their intacac{effective

1 January 2008 but the EU endorsed for use froamfiary 2009).
- Embedded Derivatives — Amendments to IFRIC 9 and38S
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Certain new standards and interpretations have bearblshed that are mandatory for the Group’s accoimy periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009 or later periodsd which the Group has not early adopted:

IAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statemefnevised January 2008; effective for annual periogginning on or
after 1 July 2009)The revised IAS 27 will require an entity to attrib total comprehensive income to the owners optrent
and to the non-controlling interests (previouslyirfarity interests”) even if this results in the roontrolling interests having a
deficit balance (the current standard requiresetkeess losses to be allocated to the owners gbdhent in most cases). The
revised standard specifies that changes in a psrewhership interest in a subsidiary that do resuit in the loss of control
must be accounted for as equity transactionssdt gpecifies how an entity should measure anyadioss arising on the loss of
control of a subsidiary. At the date when cont®llast, any investment retained in the former dibsy will have to be
measured at its fair value. The Group does notehtpe amended standard to have a material effeits dinancial statements.

IFRS 3, Business Combination§evised January 2008; effective for business coatins for which the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of the first annual repartiperiod beginning on or after 1 July 2009). Theised IFRS 3 will allow
entities to choose to measure non-controlling &g using the existing IFRS 3 method (proportioshere of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets) or at fair value. The ge#li IFRS 3 is more detailed in providing guidancettan application of the
purchase method to business combinations. Therssgent to measure at fair value every asset abdityaat each step in a
step acquisition for the purposes of calculatingoation of goodwill has been removed. Instead, ihuginess combination
achieved in stages, the acquirer will have to resmesits previously held equity interest in the e at its acquisition-date
fair value and recognise the resulting gain or,ldsany, in profit or loss for the year. Acquisiti-related costs will be accounted
for separately from the business combination ardefore recognised as expenses rather than incindgabdwill. An acquirer
will have to recognise at the acquisition dateahility for any contingent purchase consideratiBhanges in the value of that
liability after the acquisition date will be recaged in accordance with other applicable IFRSs,pgsogriate, rather than by
adjusting goodwill. The revised IFRS 3 brings in®dcope business combinations involving only mutnéties and business
combinations achieved by contract alone. The Gis@gssessing the impact of the amended standaitd fimancial statements.

Certain new standards and interpretations have beermlgshed that become effective for the accountingripds beginning
on or after 1 July 2009 or later periods and whicheanot relevant to the Group or are not yet endatdey the EU:

- Classification of Rights Issues - Amendment to IASi88ued 8 October 2009; effective for annual giibeginning
on or after 1 February 2010).

- IFRS 1, First-time Adoption of International FinaaldReporting Standards (following an amendment inebeber
2008, effective for the first IFRS financial staterefor a period beginning on or after 1 July 2009)

- Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly CdieEntity or Associate—IFRS 1 and IAS 27 Amendmgsgued
in May 2008, effective from periods beginning orafter 1 July 2009).

- Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters - Amiments to IFRS 1, First-time Adoption of IFRS (efffes for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 20@0yet endorsed by the EU).

- Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transaetianendments to IFRS 2, Share-based Payment (effeftti
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 20@0yet endorsed by the EU).

- Eligible Hedged Items—Amendment to IAS 39, Finahbiatruments: Recognition and Measurement (effectiith
retrospective application for annual periods begigron or after 1 July 2009).

- Amendment to IAS 24, Related Party Disclosures ¢éffe for annual periods beginning on or after duday 2011,
not yet endorsed by the EU).

- IFRS 9, Financial Instruments Part 1: Classificatod Measurement (not yet endorsed by the EU).

- Improvements to International Financial Reportingr8ards (issued in April 2009; amendments to IFR32,38,
IFRIC 9 and IFRIC 16 are effective for annual periodgibning on or after 1 July 2009; amendments to IBRERS
8,1AS 1, IAS 7, IAS 17, IAS 36 and IAS 39 are effee for annual periods beginning on or after duay 2010, not
yet endorsed by the EU).

- IFRIC 12, ‘Service concession arrangements’ (enddogetie EU for periods beginning 30 March 2009).

- Amendment to IFRIC 14, ‘Payments of a minimum fundieguirement’ (effective for annual periods begngon or
after 1 January 2011, not yet endorsed by the EU).

- IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Esteffective 1 January 2009, the EU endorsed fralanliary
2010).

- IFRIC 16, Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreignr&tpmn (effective 1 October 2008 but the EU enddifsem 1
July 2009).

- IFRIC 17, Distributions of Non-Cash Assets to Owneffettive for annual periods beginning on or afteluly
2009).

- IFRIC 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers (effectr annual periods beginning on or after 1 JO§2 the EU
endorsed from annual periods beginning on or &fte®ctober 2009).

- IFRIC 19, Extinguishing financial liabilities with ady instruments (effective for annual periods Inegig on or after
1 July 2010, not yet endorsed by the EU).
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a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accoedaith International Financial Reporting Standgtéi®S) as adopted in the
European Union. The financial statements are peebamder the historical cost convention, except deailable-for-sale
financial assets, financial assets and financabilities held at fair value through profit or logsading securities and all
derivative contracts, which have been measurediratdlue.

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith IFRS requires the use of estimates and agtans that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities andalisce of contingent assets and liabilities atdate of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expengéwg dhe reporting period. Although these estimatee based on

Management’s best knowledge of current events atidres, actual results ultimately may differ fronose estimates.

b) Functional and Presentation Currency

The functional currency of each of the Group’s adidsited entities is the currency of the primargremmic environment in

which the entity operates. The functional curreéythe Bank and its Latvian subsidiaries, and theuBis presentation

currency, is the national currency of the Repubfitatvia, Latvian lats (“LVL"). The accompanyingnfancial statements are
presented in thousands of Lats (LVL 000’s).

c) Basis of Consolidation

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Bank had a eruafbnvestments in subsidiaries, in which the Bhgld directly and

indirectly more than 50% of the shares and votighgts, and accordingly, had the ability to exeraeatrol. The investments in
the subsidiaries are presented in the Bank’s firdrstatements at acquisition cost. More detaildédrimation on the group’s
subsidiaries is presented in Note 17.

The financial statements of AS Parex banka anslitsidiaries are consolidated in the Group’s fifgrstatements on a line by
line basis by adding together like items of asseid liabilities as well as income and expenses. ther purposes of
consolidation, intra-group balances and intra-grtnapsactions, including interest income and expeas well as unrealised
profits and loss resulting from intra-group trarigats, are eliminated in the Group’s financial etagnts. However, intra-group
losses may indicate an impairment that requiresgmition in the Group’s financial statements.

d) Income and Expense Recognition
Interest income and expense items are recognised accrual basis using the effective interest rate

Commissions in respect of the acquisition of finahassets or the issue of financial liabilitiest thiae not at fair value through
profit or loss are deferred and recognised as gnstdent to the effective yield on the respectigsed or liability. Other

commissions and fees are credited and/ or cham#uketstatement of income as services are prowdenh the execution of a
significant act, as applicable, under the line “ctission and fee income” or “commission and fee azpg as appropriate.

Penalty income is recognised on cash-received.basis
e) Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currenciesracerded in Lats at actual rates of exchange éffectt the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary items that are measurérazalue in a foreign currency, such as invesita in equity instruments,
are translated using the exchange rates at the déwen the fair value was determined. Monetary tasaed liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translatéal liats at the official rate of exchange prevailaighe end of the year. Any
gain or loss resulting from a change in rates charge subsequent to the date of the transactionligled in the statement of
income as a profit or loss from revaluation of fgrecurrency positions.

The results and financial position of all the Grsupntities that have a functional currency difféarérom the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation nayras follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of firdrposition presented are translated at the oipsite at the date of that
statement of financial position;

e income and expenses for each income statementasdated at average exchange rates (unless #riagevis not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative efféthe rates prevailing on the transaction datestiich case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the ttams)c

f)  Taxation

For the year ended 31 December 2009 corporate mdarm is applied at the rate of 15% (2008: 15%)taptable income
generated by the Bank for the taxation period.
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Deferred corporate income tax arising from tempodifferences in the timing of the recognition t€ms in the tax returns and
these financial statements is assessed using theckasheet liability method. The deferred corfmacome tax is determined
based on the tax rates that are expected to appgnvthe temporary differences reverse based orrat®s enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet ddte.piincipal temporary differences arise from diffg rates of accounting and
tax depreciation on the fixed assets, revaluatioseourities, as well as the treatment of collexfimpairment allowances and
vacation pay reserve.

The carrying amount of deferred corporate incomeatsset, if any, is reviewed at each balance gtegtet and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that suffitieaxable profit will be available to allow all gart of the deferred income tax
asset to be utilised. The future taxable profitd #me amount of tax benefits that are probablehan future are based on a
medium term financial forecast prepared by managémed extrapolated results thereafter. The fir@rforecast is based on
management expectations that are believed to lsemahle under the circumstances.

g) Financial instruments

The Group recognises financial asset on its balaheet when, and only when, the Group becomesty fmathe contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets in the scope of IAS 39 are classés either financial assets at fair value thhopgofit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or aldé-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate.inktal recognition, the

financial assets are measured at fair value, ptushe case of investments not at fair value thropgofit or loss, directly

attributable incremental transaction costs. Thesifigation of investments between the categosedeiermined at acquisition
based on the guidelines established by the Manageme

All “regular way” purchases and sales of investreerre recognised using settlement date accouritivgsettlement date is the
date when an asset is delivered to or by the Gr8afilement date accounting refers to the recagnif an asset on the day it is
transferred to the Group and to the derecognitfcancasset, on the day that it is transferred byGhoup. All other purchases or
sales are recognised as derivative instrumentksattiement occurs.

Financial assets and liabilities held for trading

Financial assets and liabilities classified as Hetdrading are included in the category “finah@asets/ liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss”. Financial assets and/ iabilities are classified as held for trading ifeyhare either acquired for
generating a profit from short-term fluctuationspirice or dealer’'s margin, or are included in atfodio in which a pattern of
short-term profit taking exists. Held for tradifigancial assets and liabilities are subsequemtyneasured at fair value based
on available market prices or quotes of broker® fsult of re-measuring trading financial assats labilities at fair value is
charged directly to the statement of income.

Financial assets/ liabilities designated at falugahrough profit and loss

Included in this category are (a) unit-linked inwesnt contract liabilities and respective investtaeand (b) certain securities,
which are managed and its performance is evaluateal fair value basis, in accordance with a doctieterisk management or
investment strategy. According to unit-linked intvesnt contract term, the credit risk associatedh wie investments made by
the insurance underwriter is fully attributableth@ counterparty entering the insurance agreenrehnat the underwriter. As
such, by designating both assets acquired anditiebiundertaken at fair value through profit dods, potential accounting
mismatch is avoided.

Excluding interest on interest rate swaps, inteoesfinancial assets at fair value through profilass held on own account is
included in net interest income. Revaluation anditig gains and losses arising from changes inviaine of the respective
assets, as well as interest on interest rate sa@pmcluded directly in the income statement’s lifLoss)/gain on transactions
with financial instruments, net”.

Held to maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or detarable payments and fixed maturity are classifischeld to maturity if the
Group has both the positive intent and ability eddhthese investments to maturity. Held-to-mayuiiitancial assets are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest maéhod, less any allowance for impairment.

A financial asset is impaired if its carrying amoua greater than its estimated recoverable amotiné amount of the
impairment loss for assets carried at amortised isosalculated as the difference between the 'assatrying amount and the
present value of expected future cash flows distmlat the financial instrument’s original effeetinterest rate.

When available-for-sale assets are reclassifiedetd-to-maturity category, the fair value of thelassified available-for-sale
asset as at the date of reclassification furtheoimes the amortised cost. The fair value as ofitlie of reclassification is the
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deemed cost of the reclassified assets. The faievavaluation reserve attributable to reclassifissets are amortised until the
asset’s maturity using effective interest rate méthf there is objective evidence that the val@ieeglassified assets has been
impaired, the unamortised negative fair value neatbn reserve that has been recognised directquity is charged to the
statement of income.

Available for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are those neriwdtive financial assets that are designatedvadable-for-sale or are not

classified in any of the three preceding categoii&& Group’s available for sale financial asset¢siatended to be held for an
undefined period of time and may be sold in respdoseeds for liquidity or changes in interesesaexchange rates or equity
prices.

Available for sale financial assets are subsequaetimeasured at fair value based on available ehgvkices or quotes of

brokers. The result of fair value revaluation ofaidable for sale securities is recognised in otb@mprehensive income
statement. The difference between the initial gagyamount and amortised cost determined by thextfe interest rate method
is treated as interest income. Dividends on avigitédr-sale equity instruments are recognised éititome statement.When the
securities are disposed of, the related accumufaiedalue revaluation is included in the statetaiincome as profit/ (loss)

from sale of securities available for sale.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is detewdi to be impaired, the cumulative gain or lossipresly recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income is recognisgtidnincome statement. However, interest is caledlatsing the effective
interest method, and foreign currency gains andelo®n monetary assets classified as availablgaferare recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified adahla for sale, a significant or prolonged declineghe fair value of the security
below its cost is objective evidence of impairmesgulting in the recognition of an impairment lo$sny such evidence exists
for available-for sale financial assets, the cutivgaloss — measured as the difference betweeratheisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss ort firancial asset previously recognised in profitl@ss — is removed from
equity and recognised in the income statement. imgat losses recognised in the income statememgoity instruments are
not reversed through the income statement. If, sutasequent period, the fair value of a debt insént classified as available
for sale increases and the increase can be olgbctiglated to an event occurring after the impaimioss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversedtgh the income statement.

Derivative Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Group esgj@g a party to contracts for forward foreign exge rate, currency and
interest rate swap instruments and other derivafimancial instruments. Except for designated arfigéctive hedging
instruments, all derivatives are classified as {ietetrading. The accounting treatment of derivasivdesignated as hedging
instruments is described further in sub-sectiondtfeeaccounting”.

Subsequent to initial recognition, outstanding famv foreign exchange rate contracts, currency sveaolsother derivative
financial instruments are carried in the balanceeslat their fair value. The fair value of thesstiimments is recognised on the
balance sheet under designated assets and lebiiiption “Derivative financial instruments”.

Gains or losses from changes in the fair valueutétanding forward foreign exchange rate contratigency and interest rate
swaps and other derivative financial instrumenthjctv are not designated as hedging instruments rearegnised in the
statement of income as they arise.

Hedge accounting

In order to manage particular risks arising fromarglfes in interest rates the Bank uses derivatiteumsnts and applies hedge
accounting for transactions meeting the specifigdra.

At inception of the hedge relationship, a formatuimentation is prepared of the relationship betwberhedged item and the
hedging instrument, including the objective andtsiyy for undertaking the hedge and the methodwtiabe used to assess the
effectiveness of the hedging relationship.

Further, at the inception of the hedge relationshifjiormal assessment is undertaken to ensurethbatedge relationship is
expected to be highly effective. A hedge is corgideo be highly effective if the changes in faatue or cash flows attributable
to the hedged risk during the period for which lleelge is designated are expected to offset ingerah80% to 125%.

For the purposes of hedge accounting, hedges assifi¢d into two categories: (a) fair value hedgbgh hedge the exposure
to changes in the fair value of a recognised asséability; and (b) cash flow hedges which hedggosure to variability in
cash flows that is either attributable to a pafticuisk associated with a recognised asset oilitiabr a forecasted transaction.
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In relation to hedges (fair value and cash flowde=g, which meet the conditions for hedge accogntiny gain or loss from re-
measuring the hedging instrument to fair valueersognised immediately in the statement of incomeegixfor the fair value
change in relation to the effective part of a cistv hedge, which is recognised directly in equiar fair value hedges the
hedged item is adjusted for fair value changegingldo the risk being hedged and the differencet®gnised in the statement
of income. Where the adjustment relates to a hedgetest-bearing financial instrument and the leeidgtrument is terminated
or designated, the adjustment is amortised to téteraent of income on a systematic basis usingteféeinterest rate so that it
is fully amortised by its maturity date.

Dollar-offset method is used to calculate the sgisztive and prospective effectiveness of the imedgilationships.

For derivatives, which do not qualify for hedge @aating, any gains or losses arising from changebe fair value are taken
directly to the statement of income for the period.

Hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively wiirenhedging instrument expires or is sold, termeidar exercised, or no
longer qualifies for hedge accounting.

Own credit risk in valuations of derivative lialiés

The Group’s own credit changes are reflected imatadns of such derivative liabilities, where theo@’s own credit risk
would be considered by market participants anduebad derivatives for which it is established magkerctice not to include an
entity-specific adjustment for own credit, alsoereéd to as counterparty close out approach. Timeuat represents the
estimated difference in the market value of idexttabligations issued by a riskless intermediagiative to the market value of
those obligations issued by the Group, as judgexh fihe perspective of the holders of those oblgeti Own credit changes
were calculated based on credit default swap spreatd 31 December 2009, the own credit gain recgghion financial
liabilities at fair value still held at reportingté, amounts to LVL 0 (2008: LVL 766 thousand).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarmsakts with fixed or determinable payments thamatequoted in an active
market. Such assets are carried at amortised sogj the effective interest method. Gains and Bsse recognised in income
when the loans and receivables are derecognisieapaired, as well as through the amortisation gece

Loans and receivables are recognised on drawdowem fhe date of signing a contractual agreementitiiwdown they are
accounted for as loan commitments off balance sheet

When the loans or receivables cannot be recovéhegl,are written-off and charged against impairnfentcredit losses. The
management of the Group makes the decision omgriff loans. Recoveries of loans previously writtdhare credited to the
statement of income.

Included in the category of “loans and receivabl@® such financial instruments: a) cash and depwesih central banks, b)
balances due from credit institutions and c) loams receivables to customers.

Issued debt, subordinated debt and other borrowmsdkf

The Group recognises financial liabilities on itddmce on drawdown.

After initial measurement, being fair value plugsedily attributable transaction costs, debt isswgdordinated debt and
borrowings are measured at amortised cost and iffeyethice between net proceeds and value at redamigtrecognised in the
statement of income over the period of borrowingjagithe effective interest rate.

h) Sale and Repurchase Agreements

These agreements are accounted for as financingations. Under sale and repurchase agreemergse e Group is the
transferor, assets transferred remain on the Gsdoglance sheet and are subject to the Group’s asoaunting policies, with
the purchase price received included as a liakilited to the transferee.

Where the Group is the transferee, the assetsaari@aciuded in the Group’s balance sheet, but trehlmse price paid by it to
the transferor is included as an asset. Interesiniie or expense arising from outstanding sale apdrchase agreements is
recognised in the statement of income over the tdrine agreement.
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i)  Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part dhancial asset or part of a group of similar fioil assets) is derecognised

where:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asseelexpired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receivé dasvs from the asset, or retained the right toeiee cash flows from the
asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay thefullinvithout material delay to a third party undar‘pass-through’
arrangement; and

o the Group either (a) has transferred substantallyhe risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) fether transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewardthefasset, but has transferred control of thet.asse

Where the Group has transferred its rights to weceiash flows from an asset and has neither traedfenor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the tasee transferred control of the asset, the assetdognised to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Coritigunvolvement that takes the form of a guaramesr the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carryingpant of the asset and the maximum amount of ceraiidn that the Group
could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of étem and/ or purchased option (including a cagtieskoption or similar
provision) on the transferred asset, the exteth@fGroup’s continuing involvement is the amounthaf transferred asset that
the Group may repurchase, except that in the dasevatten put option (including a cash-settlediop or similar provision) on
an asset measured at fair value, the extent oBtbep’s continuing involvement is limited to thener of the fair value of the
transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Gronger standard repurchase agreements and sexudtiding and

borrowing transactions is not derecognised becthes&roup retains substantially all the risks aetards on the basis of the
predetermined repurchase price, and the criteriddcecognition are therefore not met.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the a@aition under the liability is discharged or careelbr expires.
Where an existing financial liability is replaceg &nother from the same lender on substantialfemint terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modifiedyjch an exchange or modification is treated as acdgnition of the original

liability and the recognition of a new liabilitynd the difference in the respective carrying amsusitrecognised in profit or
loss.

j) Leases

Finance leases — Group as lessor

Finance leases, which transfer substantially all rikks and rewards incidental to ownership of dksets, are recognised as
assets at amounts equal at the inception of ttse leathe net investment in the lease. The finarozEme is allocated to periods
during the lease term to produce a constant periediirn on the net investments outstanding ineespf the finance leases.

For the purposes of these financial statementanéie lease receivables are included in loans aeivebles to customers.

Operating leases — Group as lessor

The Group presents assets subject to operatingsidashe balance sheets according to the natutieeofisset. Lease income
from operating leases is recognized in statemenhafme on a straight-line basis over the lease @®s$ other income. The
aggregate cost of incentives provided to lesseescizgnized as a reduction of rental income overliéase term on a straight-
line basis. Initial direct costs incurred specificéo earn revenues from an operating lease adeddo the carrying amount of
the leased asset.

The depreciation policy for depreciable leasedtagseconsistent with the lessor’'s normal depremiapolicy for similar assets,
and depreciation is calculated in accordance witoanting policies, used for the Group’s propeptgnt and equipment.

Operating leases — Group as lessee

Leases of assets under which substantially allri$les and rewards of ownership are retained byléhsor are classified as
operating leases. Lease payments under an opeladisg are recognized as expenses on a straightdisis over the lease term
and included into administrative expenses.
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k) Impairment of loans and receivables to customers

The Group has granted commercial and consumer toatisstomers throughout its market area. The enanoonditions of the
market the Group operates in may have an impath@morrowers’ ability to repay their debts. Therdgement of the Group
have considered both specific and portfolio-leveks in determining the balance of impairment adlaee for incurred credit
losses.

The Management of the Group assess at each bagheee date whether there is objective evidenceathaan or portfolio of
loans and receivables to customers is impairedogh lor portfolio of loans and receivables to cusimms impaired and
impairment losses are incurred if, and only ifréhis objective evidence of impairment as a resiuttne or more loss events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the loamd that loss event (or events) has had an impabtthat the estimated present
value of future cash flows is less than the curgamtying value of the loan or portfolio of loansdareceivables to customers,
and can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that a loan or portfolio of lsand receivables to customers is potentially ingplaincludes the following
observable data that comes to the attention oGtioep:

e significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

e abreach of contract, such as a default or delincyu@ interest or principal payments;

e the granting to the borrower of a concession, tmmemic or legal reasons relating to the borrowénancial difficulty,
that the Group would not otherwise consider;

e it becoming probable that the insolvency procesg beinitiated against the borrower, or the bornowél enter other
financial reorganisation;

e the worsening of economic conditions in the masgegiment, where the borrower operates; or

e observable data indicating the there is a measiddiirease in the estimated future cash flows &qmortfolio of loans and
receivables to customers since the initial recagmiof those of loans and receivables, althoughdéerease cannot yet be
identified with the individual loans in the portio] including:
- adverse changes in the payment status of borrawée portfolio; or
- national or local economic conditions that cormelatith defaults on the loans and receivables irptiréfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidefcienpairment exists individually for loans andceé/ables that are
individually significant, and individually or coli¢ively for loans and receivables that are notvittlially significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impent exists for an individually assessed loanethbr significant or not, it
includes that loan in a group of loans and recédaslvith similar credit risk characteristics andlectively assesses them for
impairment. Collectively assessed impairment losspeesent an interim step pending the identificatibimpairment losses on
individual loans in a group of loans and receivableés soon as information is available that speaiify identifies losses on
individually impaired loans in a group, those loaare removed from the group. Assets that are iddally assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is ontinues to be recognised are not included in kecile assessment of
impairment.

For loans and receivables, the amount of impairrffess is measured as the difference between timéslearrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flowsalinted at the loan’s original effective interede. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring iamyairment loss is the current effective interesterdetermined under the
contract. The calculation of the present valuehef @stimated future cash flows of a collateralieeth reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs fommling and selling the collateral, whether or raretlosure is probable. The
amount of the loss is recognised in the statemieincome.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the immpaint loss decreases and the decrease can bel rebj¢etively to an event
occurring after the impairment was initially recigpd, the previously recognised impairment loseversed. Any subsequent
reversal of the impairment loss is recognised edfatement of income, to the extent that the cayryalue of the loan does not
exceed what its amortised cost would have beemabseimpairment at the reversal date.

When a borrower fails to make a contractually dagnpent of interest or principal, but the Group ®etis that impairment is not
appropriate on the basis of the level of secudtyiateral available and/ or the stage of collawi@of amounts owed to the
Group, the carrying amount of the loan is clasdiis past due but not impaired.

When loans and receivables cannot be recoverey atteewritten off and charged against impairmetdvadnce. They are not
written off until the necessary legal proceduregehaeen completed and the amount of the lossaflyfidetermined. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off anearted in the statement of income as other opeyaticome.
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[)  Impairment of available-for-sale and held-to-maty$ecurities

Evidence of impairment is assessed by referentieetmost up to date market valuations, market depthe respective security,
past trading performance and all other availabferination. The determination of whether or not chijee evidence of
impairment is present requires the exercise of g@mant judgement. If the Group does not have maréktations, the
evidence of impairment is assessed based on cigklitriggers (event of insolvency, any delay of/pants, restructuring of
debt) and individual credit risk analysis of theuier.

m) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using tlehpee method of accounting, which, in essencelves recognizing
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingenbiigies of the acquired business at fair valueyA&mcess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of identifiable net assets &eglis recognized as goodwill. If the cost of asgion is less than fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired, the disconrdcquisition is recognized in the income statdrirethe year of acquisition.

Following the initial recognition, in Group accoarthe goodwill arising from the business combinadis measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill iseered for impairment at each reporting date, or nfieguently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the cargingunt of the goodwill may be impaired.

n) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets comprise software and capitatissts relating to leasehold rights. The cost t#rigible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value as atdhte of acquisition. Subsequent the initial rectignj intangible assets are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation aggecumulated impairment loss.

Leasehold rights are amortised over the remaireagd contract on a straight-line basis. Annual éisadion rates applied on a
straight-line basis to software and other intaregésets range from 7% to 50%. All intangible assstcept for goodwill, are
with definite lives.

0) Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are recorded at historical cost lEssaulated depreciation less any impairment lo$sS&ed assets are periodically
reviewed for impairment. If the recoverable vahfea fixed asset is lower than its carrying amouhg respective asset is

written down to its recoverable amount.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-lmethod based on the estimated useful life of treetas The following
depreciation rates have been applied:

Annual
Category depreciation rate
Buildings 2%
Transport vehicles 20%
Other fixed assets 20% - 33%

Leasehold improvements are capitalised and depegc@ver the remaining lease contract period dmaéght-line basis. Assets
under construction are not depreciated.

Certain reconstruction and renovation costs of gkl which improve their quality and performaneee capitalised and
amortised over the estimated useful life on aglitdine basis.

Maintenance and repair costs are charged to thenstat of income as incurred.
p) Assets held for sale

The Group from time to time repossesses from ittarmers certain assets serving as collateral, whercustomer cannot
otherwise meet his payment obligations and othen lwork-out measures have been unsuccessful. Ssetsaare classified as
held for sale, because they are acquired priméoilghe purpose of selling them in the near terrsseis classified as held for
sale are stated at the lower of their carrying am@und fair value less costs to sell. At leastaathereporting date, the Group
assesses, whether the value of the repossessésliasswaired. The impairment loss reduces cagrgimount of the asset and is
included in the income statement’s line “Impairmei&rges and reversals, net”.
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g) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has @mirésgal or constructive obligation as a resulpadt events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economiebienwill be required to settle the obligationdam reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made.

r)  Off-balance Sheet Financial Commitments and Coetihgiabilities

In the ordinary course of business, the Group\slired with off-balance sheet financial commitmeaitsi contingent liabilities
comprising commitments to extend loans and recégato customers, commitments for unutilised créd#s or credit card
limits, financial guarantees and commercial lettérsredit.

Such financial instruments are recorded in thenfone statements as follows:
— commitment to extend loans and advances, creditarad overdraft facilities are recognized on dramatoand
— financial guarantees and letters of credit aregeimed when the related fee received as consideratirecognized.

Commitments to extend loans and receivables and d@omemis for unutilised credit lines or credit cdithits represent
contractual commitments to make loans and revoldreglits. Commitments generally have fixed expiratitates, or other
termination clauses. Since commitments may expitieout being drawn upon, the total contract ameuwfd not necessarily
represent future cash requirements.

On initial recognition financial guarantee contsaate measured at fair value. Subsequently, treegaried at the higher of the
amount initially recognised less cumulative amatt@n over the life of the guarantee and the amdetgrmined in accordance
with the accounting policy for provisions when exctment of the guarantee has become probable.

The methodology for provisioning against possilgses arising from off-balance sheet financial caments and contingent
liabilities is consistent with that described irrggraphq).

s)  Trust Activities

Funds managed by the Group on behalf of indiviJuadsporate customers, trusts and other institstiare not regarded as
assets of the Group and, therefore, are not sepamtluded in the balance sheet. Funds undet management are presented
in these financial statements only for disclosurgppses.

t)  Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Fair value is the amount for which an asset coeléxchanged, or a liability settled, between kndgésble and willing parties
in an arm’s length transaction. Where available sgasonably reliable, fair values are determineddgrence to observable
market prices. Where representative market pricesnat available or are unreliable, fair values determined by using
valuation techniques which refer to observable eiadata. These include prices obtained from indégenmarket surveys,
comparisons with similar financial instruments, cdisnted cash flow analyses and other valuationnigoles commonly
accepted and used by market participants.

Future events may occur which will cause the assiompused in arriving at the estimates to chafye. effect of any changes
in estimates will be recorded in the financial eta¢nts, when determinable. Further, changes ancemmaut in market
conditions may affect accuracy of the fair valucakations so that the actual outcome of the tretisas is different from the
one reported in the financial statements. Also,mtiganged, management estimates used in prephegsg financial statements
could impact the reported result of the Group.

u) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statemenasi flows, cash and cash equivalents are defisd¢lle amounts comprising
cash and demand deposits with central banks aret othdit institutions with an insignificant risk changes in value and a
remaining maturity of not more 3 months from théedaf acquisition, less demand deposits due tatdrestitutions.

v) Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset andntieamount is reported in the balance sheet whene is a currently enforceable

legal right to set off the recognized amounts dratd is an intention to settle on a net basiso oedlize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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w) Use of estimates in the preparation of financiatsments

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith International Financial Reporting Standaais adopted by EU,
requires management to make estimates and assasgtiat affect the reported amounts of assetsilitieds, income and
expenses and disclosure of contingencies. The reamag has applied reasonable and prudent estiraategudgments in
preparing these financial statements. The sigmifieaieas of estimation used in the preparatiomefaccompanying financial
statements relate to evaluation of impairment foaricial assets losses, determining fair valuesheffinancial assets and
liabilities and estimating future periods’ taxapl®fit in order to assess amount of deferred taetashat can be utilised and, as
such, recognised.

Impairment of loans

The Group regularly reviews its loans and recesitib assess impairment. The estimation of poteintjgairment losses is

inherently uncertain and dependant upon many fac@n an on-going basis potential issues are ihipromptly as a result

of individual loans being regularly monitored. Inmpa@ent losses are calculated on an individual bagts reference to expected
future cash flows including those arising from tkalisation of collateral. The Group uses its eigrered judgement to estimate
the amount of any impairment loss considering masiach as future economic conditions and the tiegurading performance

of the borrower and the value of collateral, forisththere may not be a readily accessible marketa Aesult, the impairment
losses can be subject to significant variationime tprogresses and the circumstances become cl@&®methodology and

assumptions used for estimating both the amountiaridg of future cash flows are reviewed regulddyreduce any differences
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

In addition, the Group estimates collective imp&nmlosses to cover losses inherent in the loatfgtior where there is
objective evidence to suggest that it contains iregdoans, although the individual impaired loaaanot yet be identified. The
collective impairment losses take account of olealesdata indicating that there is a measurableedse in the estimated future
cash flows from a portfolio of loans and receivabhath similar credit risk characteristics, althbutpe decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual loans in the portiol

Future cash flows in a portfolio of loans and reables that are collectively evaluated for impaintn@re estimated on the basis
of historical loss experience for loans and reddies with credit risk characteristics similar t@s$ke in the portfolio. Historical
loss experience is adjusted for current observatalket data using the Group’s experienced judgeteerdflect the effects of
current conditions that did not affect the periodwhich the historical loss experience is based tanegmove the effects of
conditions in the historical period that do notséxiurrently.

The future credit quality of the loan portfolio fahich the collective impairment losses are estas subject to uncertainties
that could cause actual credit losses to differenmty from reported impairment losses. These taagties include factors such
as international and local economic conditions, rdawer specific factors, industry and market trend#erest rates,
unemployment rates and other external factors. Gisirgthe Bank’s LGD ratio by 500 basis points worgsult in increase/
decrease in collectively assessed impairment byL@a 12.6 million (2008: LVL 4.1 million). 5% incrase in collateral
realisation values would result in LVL 5.0 millid2008: LVL 4.9 million) decrease in the Bank’s sfiecimpairment level,
whereas 5% decrease in the respective values wesidt in LVL 16.6 million (2008: LVL 5.5 million)ncrease in the Bank’s
specific impairment level.

Impairment of securities

The Group makes various estimates to determin@ahe of securities assessed for impairment. Whervélue of securities,
for which loss event have occurred, is assesseinfoairment, an estimate is made involving facgush as liquidity (quoted
prices and volumes from several reliable provigersvell as judgemental evaluation), spreads (estimaf securities’ spreads
and spreads on securities rated Caal and beloimgsgsubordination) and loss-given-default (LGBYes.

The future credit quality of the securities for wafnithe impairment losses are estimated is subjeantertainties that could
cause actual credit losses to differ materiallynfreeported impairment losses. These uncertaintielide factors such as
international, regional and local economic condisipissuer specific factors, market activity angtbeinterest rates and other
external factors. As at 31 December 2009, incr@aseedit spread delta by 200 basis points woutdiltén additional LVL 6.4
million (2008: LVL 5.6 million) impairment for th&ank, whereas 200 basis points decrease would riestdiversal of the
Bank’s impairment by LVL 0.5 million (2008: 0.5 mdh).

Deferred tax asset

The future taxable profits and the amount of tamdfiés that are probable in the future are based amedium term financial
forecast prepared by management and extrapolatedtsehereafter. Given the uncertainties in refatio the restructuring
process, the medium term financial forecast wapgresl on the basis that the Bank continues the tipesaon as-is basis, i.e.
no restructuring takes place. The aforementioneecsts indicate that the Bank will have sufficientable profits in the future
periods to fully realise the deferred tax asseer&hs uncertainty regarding the effect, if anythef Bank’s restructuring on the
possibility to utilise the accumulated tax lossesl @ccordingly on the recoverability of deferred tsset. However, the
management believes that the Bank will be ableitseithe unused tax losses and accordingly treadldeferred tax assets are
recognised in these financial statements.
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x)  Staff costs and related contributions

The Group and the Bank pays social security cortidhs to state pension insurance and to the statefl pension scheme in
accordance with Latvian and relevant foreign retihs. In accordance with the Rules of the Cabinélioisters of Latvia 69%
(2008: 71%) of the social insurance contributiorss wsed to fund the state defined contribution jeensystem. State funded
pension scheme is a defined contribution plan umdech the Group and the Bank pay fixed contribugicletermined by law
and will have no legal or constructive obligationptay further contributions if the state pensiogsuii@nce system or state funded
pension scheme are not able to settle their lisdsilito employees. The social security contribigiare accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered byntbéogees of the group.

y) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner censigith the internal reporting provided to theathoperating decision-

maker. The chief operating decision-maker is thegeor group that allocates resources to and ssséise performance of the
operating segments of an entity. The Bank has detedrthe Management board of the Bank as its ctpefaiing decision

maker.

The expenses and revenue from external partiestegpto the Bank’s Management Board are measuredriarmer consistent
with that in the consolidated income statement.

In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group has only ogensat — bank in Latvia, i.e. parent bank.
z) Events after the balance sheet date

Post-year-end events that provide additional infdiom about the Bank’s position at the balance stat (adjusting events)
are reflected in the financial statements. Post-gad events that are not adjusting events aréodist in the notes if material.
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NOTE 3.

INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

Interest income:

- interest on financial assets measured at amdrtise

cost:

- interest on loans and receivables to customers

- interest on balances due from credit
institutions and central banks
- interest on held-to-maturity securities

- interest income on financial assets designated at

fair value through profit or loss
- interest on held for trading securities
- interest on available-for-sale securities

Total interest income

Interest expense:

- interest on financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost:
- interest on deposits from customers
- interest on balances due to credit institutions

and central banks

- interest on issued debt securities
- interest on subordinated liabilities
- interest on other financial liabilities

- other interest expense

Total interest expense

Net interest income

LVL 000’s
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
163,820 207,091 145,630 181,864
4,682 179,973 107,563 143,375
2,411 15,090 8,428 2,427
26,789 ,0P3 29,639 16,072
91 32 - -
1,264 290 1,257 242
7,135 0,924 6,675 20,186
172,310 228,337 153,562 20229
(84,963) (78,200) (80,115) (72,479)
(45,041) (42,357) (45,387) (41,971)
(5,236) (7,172) (5,232) (7,164)
(10,581) (4,145) (10,581) (4,145)
(56) (171) - -
(6) - - -
(145,883) (132,045) (141,315) (125,759)
26,427 96,292 12,247 76,533

In 2008, the Bank reclassified interest income aqépses in amount of LVL 1,742 thousand, respdgtieeincome statements
line “(Loss)/gains on transactions with financiatruments, net” (see Note 5). The amounts relatétterest rate swaps used as

hedging instruments.

The LVL 320 thousand reclassification from interestome and expenses to other operating incom@®@8 2s attributable to
SIA Parex [izings un Faktorings operating lease income (see Blpt

Interest income recognised on impaired assets

NOTE 4.

COMMISSION AND FEE INCOME AND EXPENSE

Commission and fee income:

- transactions with settlement cards

- payment transfer fee

- custody, trust and asset management fees

- securities, financial instrument brokerage fees
- cash disbursement/ transaction commission

- cash collection

- service fee for account maintenance

- letters of credit and guarantees

- review of loan applications and collateral evélua
- other fees

Total commission and fee income

LVL 000’s
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
92,61 1,229 21,187 133
LVL 000’s
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
14,354 21,389 13,316 20,312
5,130 9,682 4,116 8,490
3,376 404 5, 116 508
,088 2,407 995 2,286
1,089 ,9391 824 1,636
836 1,141 836 1,141
528 782 415 92 6
291 693 192 597
100 550 93 476
1,368 3,199 685 2,160
28,160 47,186 21,588 38,298
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LVL 000’s
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Commission and fee expense:

- fees related to settlement card operations (5,982 (7,356) (5,151) (6,821)
- fees related to correspondent accounts (1,447) TR (1,143) (2,480)

- brokerage and custodian fees: (547) (1,005) (637) (1,475)
- securities, financial instrument brokeragesf (412) (791) (266) (533)
- custody, trust and asset management fees (135) (214) (371) (942)
- other fees (612) (241) (13) (99)
Total commission and fee expense (8,588) (11,374) ,961) (10,875)

Net commission and fee income 19,572 35,812 14,644 27,423

Commission and fee income and expense from finamsaiuments not at fair value through profit andd, other than amounts
included in determining the effective interest raten be specified as follows:

LVL 000's
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Commission and fee income 28,160 47,186 21,588 88,29
Commission and fee expense (8,588) (11,370) (6,944) (10,869)

NOTE 5. (LOSS)/ GAIN ON TRANSACTIONS WITH FINANCIAINSTRUMENTS, NET

LVL 000’s
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Gain/ (loss) from trading and revaluation of setbesi
held for trading purposes, net 1,792 (9,660) 1,778 (9,571)
Gain/ (loss) from disposal of available for sale
securities, net (12) (8,080) 15 (7,095)
Gain/ (loss) on financial assets measured at aseatti
cost, net (327) - - -
Gain/ (loss) on financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost, net - 3,770 - 3,770
Gain from foreign exchange trading and revaluation
of open positions, net 2,644 6,701 2,256 4,212
Gain/ (loss) from trading and revaluation of other
derivatives, net 1,557 3,907 1,491 4,027
Gain on trading with financial instruments, net 5,85 (3,362) 5,540 (4,657)
LVL 000’s
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments not at fa
value through profit or loss (338) (4,310) 15 (B2
Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fatue
through profit or loss 5,993 948 5,525 (1,332)
Total gain/ (loss) on financial instruments, net 585 (3,362) 5,540 (4,657)
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NOTE 6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

LVL 000’s
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Penalties received 10,298 8,967 7,972 7,032
Dividends received 160 360 160 358
Other income * 4,562 3,581 2,159 683
Total other operating income 15,020 12,908 10,291 083

* please refer to Note 17 for description on incoraeognised as a result of terminated agreemerglation to the sale of

Bank’s subsidiary AP Anlage & Privatbank AG (Switaad).

The LVL 320 thousand reclassification from interestome and expenses to other operating incom@®@8 2s attributable to

SIA Parex [izings un Faktorings operating lease income (see Blpt

NOTE 7.  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

LVL 000’s

2009 2008 2009 2008

Group Group Bank Bank
Personnel expense 45,722 66,491 31,544 50,227
Rent for premises 5,279 5,957 4,573 3,708
Consulting and professional fees 3,773 2,858 2,991 242
Non-refundable value added tax 3,047 3,682 2,436 9208,
IT equipment and software related expense 2,504 392,9 1,266 1,350
Communications (telephone, mail, etc.) 2,304 2,845 ,699 2,106
Advertising, marketing and sponsorship 1,409 7,204 1,154 6,036
Repairs and maintenance 1,061 2,625 592 2,095
Business travel expense 650 4,938 405 4,471
Office expense 510 1,326 335 793
Real estate and other taxes 464 258 56 47
Insurance 398 445 170 204
Representation 256 1,210 223 999
Security 240 703 164 589
Other administrative expense 3,907 5,611 2,744 4,85
Total administrative expense 71,524 109,092 50,352 2,838

NOTE 8. PERSONNEL EXPENSE

Personnel expense has been presented in theseidinstatements within administrative expense. étersl expense includes
remuneration for work to the personnel and relatadal security contributions and bonuses and cthert-term benefits costs.

LVL 000's

2009 2008 2009 2008

Group Group Bank Bank
Remuneration (incl. bonuses):
- management 2,967 4,904 739 2,739
- other personnel 34,051 50,996 24,565 39,828
Total remuneration for work 37,018 55,900 25,304 42,567
Social security contributions:
- management 515 372 178 86
- other personnel 8,189 10,219 6,062 7,574
Total social security contributions 8,704 10,591 6,240 7,660
Total personnel expense 45,722 66,491 31,544 50,227
Average number of personnel during the year 3,127 3,819 2,167 2,688
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NOTE 9.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS AND CHANGES IN IMPAIRENT ALLOWANCES

An analysis of the change in allowances for impainmof loans and receivables and provisions forbafince sheet

commitments is presented as follows:

Total allowance for impairment at the beginning
of the year, including:
- loans - specifically assessed impairment
- loans - collectively assessed impairment
- off-balance sheet commitments - specifically
assessed impairment

Charge:
- loans - specifically assessed impairment
- loans - collectively assessed impairment
- off-balance sheet commitments - specifically
assessed impairment

Release:
- loans - specifically assessed impairment
- loans - collectively assessed impairment
- off-balance sheet commitments - specifically
assessed impairment

Provision charged to the statement of income,
net, including:
- loans - specifically assessed impairment
- loans - collectively assessed impairment
- off-balance sheet commitments - specifically
assessed impairment

Change of allowance due to write-offs, net

Effect of changes in currency exchange rates:
- loans - specifically assessed impairment
- loans - collectively assessed impairment
- off-balance sheet commitments - specifically
assessed impairment

Total allowance for impairment at the end of the
year, including:
- loans - specifically assessed impairment
- loans - collectively assessed impairment
- off-balance sheet commitments - specifically
assessed impairment

LVL 000’s
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
116,463 14,134 115,199 18%
101,797 6,436 104,391 3,988
13,656 7,698 9,798 6,570
1,010 - 1,010 -
130,537 108,925 125,935 108,447
96,644 101,662 96,085 104,209
33,893 6,253 29,850 3,228

- 1,010 - 1,010
(11,046) (1,658) (13,415) (33)
(9,327) (1,482) (12,586) (33)

(890) (176) - -
(829) - (829) -
119,491 107,267 112,520 108,414
87,317 100,180 83,499 104,176
33,003 6,077 29,850 3,228
(829) 1,010 (829) 1,010

(491) (4,571) (37) (3,793)
(769) (367) (656) 20
(721) (248) (660) 20
(52) (119) - -

4 - 4 -
234,694 116,463 227,026 115,199
187,902 101,797 187,193 104,391

46,607 13,656 39,648 9,798
185 1,010 185 1,010
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An analysis of the change in impairment of otheeésis presented as follows:

LVL 000’s
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Total allowance for impairment at the beginning

of the year, including: 51,330 790 37,106 789
- available-for-sale securities 5,948 423 5,948 423
- held-to-maturity securities 22,828 199 22,828 199
- due from credit institutions 1,343 - 1,343 -

- other financial and non-financial assets 21,211 168 6,987 167
Charge: 14,059 45,081 10,772 30,857
- available-for-sale securities 3,839 15 3,839 15

- held-to-maturity securities 2,296 22,611 2,296 22,611

- due from credit institutions - 1,343 - 1,343

- other financial and non-financial assets 7,924 21,112 4,637 6,888
Charge from equity reserves due to impairment* (3,150) 7,384 (3,150) 7,384

- available-for-sale securities (2,585) 5,501 (2,585) 5,501

- held-to-maturity securities (565) 1,883 (565) 1,883
Release: (13,851) - (13,599) -

- available-for-sale securities (4,084) - (4,084) -

- held-to-maturity securities (8,150) - (8,150) -

- due from credit institutions (1,021) - (1,021) -

- other financial and non-financial assets (596) - (344) -
Provision charged to the statement of income,

net, including: 208 52,465 (2,827) 38,241

- available-for-sale securities (245) 5,516 (245) 5,516

- held-to-maturity securities (5,854) 24,494 (5,854) 24,494

- due from credit institutions (1,021) 1,343 (1,021) 1,343

- other financial and non-financial assets 7,328 21,112 4,293 6,888
Change of allowance due to write-offs, net: (2,753) (30) (2,753) (30)

- available-for-sale securities (2,692) - (2,692) -

- held-to-maturity securities - - - -

- other financial and non-financial assets (61) (30) (61) (30)
Effect of changes in currency exchange rates: (1,817 (12) (1,859) (12)

- available-for-sale securities 16 9 16 9

- held-to-maturity securities (1,891) 18 (1,891) 18

- due from credit institutions 22 - 22 -

- other financial and non-financial assets 36 (39) (6) (38)
Total allowance for impairment at the end of the

year, including: 43,818 51,330 26,517 37,106

- available-for-sale securities 442 5,948 442 5,948

- held-to-maturity securities* 14,518 22,828 14,518 22,828

- due from credit institutions 344 1,343 344 1,343

- other financial and non-financial assets 28,514 21,211 11,213 6,987

* In calculation of outstanding balance sheet ami@irthe end of the period do not include the an®uelating to fair value

revaluation reserves in equity and charged to ircstatement due to impairment of securities, asatfeevance account for
impairing the available-for-sale securities is nséd. Instead, the carrying amount of the avaiédisale securities is reduced
directly by the impairment charge.
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NOTE 10. TAXATION

Corporate income tax expense comprises the follovtamgs:

LVL 000’s
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Current corporate income tax 1,055 1,190 - -
Deferred income tax (19,178) (10,863) (19,364) (8,570)
Tax withheld abroad 1,418 2,147 1,418 2,147
Prior year adjustments (310) 102 (134) 102
Total corporate income tax expense (17,015) (7,424) (18,080) (6,321)

The reconciliation of the Bank’s and the Group’s-fave loss for the year to the corporate incomeetgense for the year may

be specified as follows:

LVL 000’s
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Loss before corporate income tax (144,025) (138,394) (129,190) (130,329)
Corporate income tax (at standard rate)* (21,604) (20,759) (19,379) (19,549)
Permanent differences, net (3,618) 5,655 (4,505) 7,188
Prior year adjustments (310) 102 (134) 102
Unrecognised deferred tax assets 8,517 7,578 5,938 5,938
Total effective corporate income tax (17,015) (7,424) (18,080) (6,321)
* standard rate for the year ended 31 December 2@3915% (2008: 15%).
The movements in deferred corporate income taxitiaban be specified as follows:
LVL 000's
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
As at 1 January (11,852) (510) (9,679) (830)
Charge to statement of income (19,178) (10,863) (19,364) (8,570)
Charge to statement of comprehensive income** 384 794 242 (279)
Total deferred income tax (asset) at the end of
the year (30,646) (11,852) (28,801) (9,679)
Deferred corporate income tax assets and liakslitan be specified as follows:
LVL 000’s
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Deferred tax liabilities:
Accumulated excess of tax depreciation over
accounting depreciation 1,249 1,113 286 882
Revaluation of securities and derivatives** - 284 - 176
Other deferred tax liabilities 189 474 - -
Deferred tax assets:
Vacation pay accrual (349) (974) (324) (877)
Revaluation of securities and derivatives** 47) - 3)
Non-taxable impairment allowance (7,632) (1,843) (6,333) (1,470)
Unutilised tax losses (29,861) (15,285) (28,365) (13,129)
Other deferred tax assets (2,712) (3,199) - (1,199)
Net deferred corporate income tax (asset) (39,163) (19,430) (34,739) (15,617)
Unrecognised deferred tax asset 8,517 7,578 5,938 5,938
Recognised deferred corporate income tax (asset) 0846) (11,852) (28,801) (9,679)

** all changes in deferred tax liability that areazged directly to statement of comprehensive irecane related to revaluation

of securities.

The Bank expects to realise deferred tax assetdmathat exceeds 1 year.
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The movements in tax accounts of the Bank durin@2® be specified as follows:

LVL 000's
Balance as at Calculated Paid Balance as at
31/12/2008 in 2009 in 2009 31/12/2009
Corporate income tax 7,666 (1,284) 808 7,190
including corporate income tax withheld abroad - 4(18) 1,418 -
Social security contributions (785) (10,240) 10,43 (588)
Personal income tax (525) (6,806) 6,493 (838)
Value added tax 543 (450) (6) 87
Real estate tax - (43) 43 -
Total tax (payable)/ receivable 6,899 (18,823) 175 5,851
NOTE 11. CASH AND DEPOSITS WITH CENTRAL BANKS
LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Cash 38,543 51,924 35,098 46,538
Deposits with the Bank of Latvia 101,671 36,616 601, 32,616
Demand deposits with other central banks 17,288 812y, 5,490 16,025
Total cash and deposits with central banks 157,502 16,350 142,259 95,179

According to the resolution of the Council of thenRBaf Latvia, credit institutions should comply tvithe compulsory reserve
requirement calculated on the basis of attractedlihg. The Bank’'s compulsory reserve must be exckdne a credit
institution’s average monthly LVL balance on itsrespondent account with the Bank of Latvia. Simiequirements also apply
to the funding attracted by the Bank’s branch irokist and Germany. During the reporting year, thekBaas in compliance
with these requirements of the Bank of Estonia aadrany’s Bundesbank.

Due to difficult liquidity situation as from Noverab 2008 till September 2009, the Bank was unableotd sufficient balances
with the Bank of Latvia to meet the mandatory reserquirement. As a result, the Bank sustained pesah amount of LVL
2,941 thousand (2008: LVL 1,245 thousand).

Demand deposits with other central banks includerizas with central banks of Lithuania, Estoniagn@ay and Switzerland.
As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, none of the ars@urg from central banks were past due.

NOTE 12. BALANCES DUE FROM CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Due from credit institutions registered in OECD
countries 199,566 243,276 172,487 196,371
Due from credit institutions registered in Latvia 0,462 7,654 9,839 6,273
Due from credit institutions registered in othenno
OECD countries 11,152 25,137 143,887 297,384
Total gross balances due from credit institutions 22,180 276,067 326,213 500,028
Incl. impaired balances 490 1,741 490 1,741
Impairment allowance (344) (1,343) (344) (1,343)
Total net balances due from credit institutions 22®B36 274,724 325,869 498,685

As at 31 December 2009, the Bank had inter-bank siespwith 1 (2008: 3) Latvian credit institutionsda6 (2008: 2) OECD
region credit institutions. Corresponding balanaasrised 100% (2008: 0%) and 70% (2008: 21%) afl tohlances due from
credit institutions registered in Latvia and OECBspectively. As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, wériee amounts due
from credit institutions were past due.
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The Bank’s balances with its subsidiary Parex Bafkiéisuania) accounted for 99% (2008: 96%) of thialtdalances due from
credit institutions registered in other non-OECD rumies.

LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Correspondent accounts (nostro) 68,189 64,629 52,399 43,490
Overnight deposits 140,306 29,815 131,432 70,757
Total demand deposits 208,495 94,444 183,831 114,247
Term deposits with credit institutions:
due within 1 month 7,859 140,997 491 335,439
due within 1-3 months 3,915 22,350 17,901 21,468
due within 3-6 months 459 15,475 123,990 26,215
due within 6-12 months 54 2,320 - 1,005
due within 1-5 years 398 481 - 1,654
Total term deposits 12,685 181,623 142,382 385,781
Total gross balances due from credit institutions 22,180 276,067 326,213 500,028
Impairment allowance (344) (1,343) (344) (1,343)
Total net balances due from credit institutions 22®B36 274,724 325,869 498,685

The above balances represent a maximum crediexisésure to the Group and the Bank respectively.
NOTE 13. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES TO CUSTOMERS

The following table represents the current clasé¢lse Group’s loans:

Group, LVL 000’s

31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Off- Off-
balance Total balance
Balance sheet gross Balance sheet Total
sheet credit credit sheet credit credit
amount exposure exposure amount exposure exposure

Regular loans 1,496,432 2,082 1,498,514 1,531,233 33,267 1,564,500
Utilised credit lines 131,403 43,090 174,493 351 31,172 242,523
Finance leases 146,308 - 146,308 245,068 576 45,624
Debit balances on

settlement cards 90,675 72,985 163,660 105,483 106,006 211,489
Overdraft facilities 7,436 7,917 15,353 30,000 8,052 38,052
Loans under reverse

repurchase agreements 599 - 599 1,248 - 1,248
Factoring 15,480 14 15,494 22,993 559 23,552
Due from investment and

brokerage firms 6,544 - 6,544 4,078 - 4,078
Total loans and

receivables to customers 1,894,877 126,088 2,086, 2,151,454 179,632 2,331,086
Impairment allowance (234,509) (185) (234,694) (115,453) (1,010) (116,463)
Total net loans and

receivables to customers 1,660,368 125,903 1,236 2,036,001 178,622 2,214,623

Off-balance sheet credit exposure comprises vakousnitted financing facilities to the borrowers.
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The following table represents the current clasééise Bank'’s loans:

Bank, LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Off- Off-
balance balance
Balance sheet Total gross Balance sheet Total
sheet credit credit sheet credit credit
amount exposure exposure amount exposure exposure

Regular loans 1,336,857 1,158 1,338,015 1,338,25 29,125 1,367,376
Utilised credit lines 224,301 92,550 316,851 5,868 67,445 432,523
Debit balances on

settlement cards 81,390 61,411 142,801 96,708 3,139 189,839
Overdraft facilities 7,731 11,204 18,935 31,099 8,866 39,965
Loans under reverse

repurchase

agreements - - - 586 70,882 71,468
Factoring 14,077 - 14,077 18,964 69 19,033
Due from investment

and brokerage firms 6,468 - 6,468 6,770 - ®,77
Finance leases 1,423 - 1,423 1,604 - 1,604
Total loans and

receivables to

customers 1,672,247 166,323 1,838,570 1,859,060 269,518 2,128,578
Impairment allowance (226,841) (185) (227,026) (114,189) (1,010) (115,199)
Total net loans and

receivables to

customers 1,445,406 166,138 1,611,544 1,744,871 268,508 2,013,379

As at 31 December 2009, loans and receivables sers totalling LVL 29,157 thousand (2008: LVL,BR0 thousand) or
1.6% (2008: 1.8%) of the Group’s total portfolioradt loans and receivables to customers were fitabssis zero risk, as these
were collateralised by deposits (see Note 24).

Included in the aforementioned loans are loan kalwmf former related parties with original agrespmurrency of EUR and
USD amounting to LVL 14,080 thousand (2008: LVL 123 thousand) and LVL 14,958 thousand (2008: LVL346

thousand), respectively. The average year-endestteate of these loans is 2.1% (2008: 4.8%). Thames are collateralised
with LVL-denominated deposits amounting to LVL 280thousand (2008: LVL 28,007 thousand) and with dkierage year-
end interest rate of 7.9% (2008: 9.6%). These awtitns were entered into by previous executiveagament of the Bank. In
2009, the net interest expense arising from theeafentioned transactions with former related paréimounted to LVL 2.0
million. These transactions and their cash flovesdistinct from each other, thus presented on drass.

The table below provides information about loanthwénegotiated terms:

LVL 000's
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Carrying amount of restructured loans 451,995 341,17 451,208 347,063
Loans and advances by customer profile may be f&geeis follows:
LVL 000's
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Privately held companies 1,111,524 1,291,870 13077, 1,212,122
Private individuals 734,115 813,312 554,336 605,771
State owned enterprises 27,845 23,184 20,990 20,141
Public and religious institutions 9,235 10,529 8,96 9,648
Municipality owned enterprises 8,280 7,768 7,642 663,
Local municipalities 3,876 4,756 3,009 3,678
Government 2 35 2 35
Total gross loans and receivables to customers 1,8947 2,151,454 1,672,247 1,859,060
Impairment allowance (234,509) (115,453) (226,841) (114,189)
Total net loans and receivables to customers 1,68638 2,036,001 1,445,406 1,744,871
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The borrowers’ industry analysis of the gross miidf of loans and receivables to corporate custeneafore impairment

allowance may be specified as follows:

Real estate purchase and management

Transport and communications

Trade

Construction

Manufacturing

Electricity, gas and water supply

Hotels, restaurants

Financial intermediation

Agriculture and forestry

Other industries

Total gross loans and receivables to corporate
customers

LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
435,752 441,031 438,358 437,238
201,671 244,844 D65,8 187,903
157,239 234,289 114,305 158,726
69,552 89,789 32,662 35,100
67,819 73,789 54,130 50,643
55,046 63,724 9883, 62,213
52,663 44,783 49,968 41,699
44,566 39,600 169,539 238,
16,454 21,811 3,230 3,098
60,000 84,482 35,878 41,111
1,160,762 1,338,142 1,117,911 1,253,289

The following table represents geographical praffiéhe portfolio of loans and receivables to custos analysed by the place of

customers’ reported residence:

Latvian residents

OECD region residents

Non-OECD region residents

Total gross loans and receivables to customers
Impairment allowance

Total net loans and receivables to customers

LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
1,049,126 1,122,555 1,113,614 180,304
43,703 54,260 41,170 49,375
802,048 974,639 517,463 29,31
1,8947 2,151,454 1,672,247 1,859,060
(234,509) (115,453) (226,841) (114,189)
1,6663 2,036,001 1,445,406 1,744,871
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NOTE 14. LEASES

The following table represents finance leases aedlpy type of assets:

LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Transport vehicles 110,426 192,568 214 369
Real estate 6,121 6,691 1,142 1,158
Manufacturing equipment 9,361 15,836 27 27
Other 20,400 29,973 40 50
Total present value of finance lease payments,
excluding impairment 146,308 245,068 1,423 1,604
Impairment allowance (12,620) (8,744) (96) (80)
Net present value of finance lease payments 133,688 236,324 1,327 1,524

The following table represents reconciliation bedwehe gross investment in the finance leases hadptesent value of

minimum lease payments receivable:

LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank

Gross investment in finance leases receivable:

within 1 year 46,243 58,609 208 357

later than 1 year and no later than in 5 years (0151758 209,207 1,380 1,635

later than in 5 years 6,194 31,494 - -
Total gross investment in finance leases 167,501 2910 1,588 1,992
Unearned finance income receivable:

within 1 year 9,685 20,784 61 88

later than 1 year and no later than in 5 years 9HL,0 30,490 104 300

later than in 5 years 413 2,968 - -
Total 21,193 54,242 165 388
Present value of minimum lease payments

receivable:

within 1 year 36,558 37,825 147 269

later than 1 year and no later than in 5 years 9138, 178,717 1,276 1,335

later than in 5 years 5,781 28,526 - -
Total 146,308 245,068 1,423 1,604
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NOTE 15. FIXED INCOME SECURITIES

The Group’s fixed income securities are furtheitgd follows:

LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Heldto Available Held for Heldto  Available Held for
maturity for sale  trading Total maturity  for sale  trading Total
Government bonds* 174,906 16,717 - 191,623 608,424 10,937 - 619,361
Municipality bonds 29,251 3,629 - 32,880 29,740 3,759 - 33,499
Credit institution bonds 74,605 63,290 1,405 139,300 101,497 87,374 1,930 190,801
Corporate bonds 22,189 11,511 4 33,704 25,566 35,527 384 61,477
Other financial institution
bonds 11,457 9,671 - 21,128 14,636 8,590 - 23,226
Managed funds 1,481 - - 1,481 1,511 - - 1,511
Total gross fixed income
securities 313,889 104,818 1,409 420,116 781,374 6,187 2,314 929,875
Impairment allowance (14,518) - - (14,518) (22,828) - - (22,828)
Total net fixed income
securities 299,371 104,818 1,409 405,598 758,546 6,187 2,314 907,047

* In 2008, in a special purpose financing schentevben the Bank, State Treasury and Bank of Latvig, gfdinancing from
the State Treasury was used to buy special purpasgan Government zero coupon bonds from the Statasury. These
securities were pledged in the Bank of Latvia teiex the actual funding. Thus, there has been sb g@vement in respect to
purchase of these securities. This matter is censit] when preparing cash flow statement. As dd&ember 2009, there are
no outstanding assets or liabilities in relationhte above financing scheme. (2008: LVL 435,120samd).

The above table represents a maximum credit rippsxe to the Group and the Bank respectively.

The Bank’s fixed income securities are further sgdifollows:

LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Held to  Available Held for Heldto  Available Held for
maturity for sale  trading Total maturity  forsale  trading Total
Government bonds 174,760 386 - 175,146 608,185 68,50 - 616,691
Municipality bonds 27,242 3,511 - 30,753 27,704 59,7 - 31,463
Credit institution bonds 69,894 57,671 1,405 128,970 94,418 84,922 1,930 181,270
Corporate bonds 19,634 10,727 4 30,365 21,409 35,527 70 57,006
Other financial institution
bonds 40,156 13,446 - 53,602 67,590 8,590 - 76,180
Managed funds 1,481 - - 1,481 1,511 - - 1,511
Total gross fixed income
securities 333,167 85,741 1,409 420,317 820,817 ,31 2,000 964,121
Impairment allowance (14,518) - - (14,518) (22,828) - - (22,828)
Total net fixed income
securities 318,649 85,741 1,409 405,799 797,989 141,304 2,001,293

As at 31 December 2009, the carrying amount ofGheup’s and Bank’s securities on which the paymenéspast due was
LVL 3,057 thousand (2008: LVL 957 thousand). As3at December 2009, the carrying amount of securibeswhich the
payments were delayed for more than 12 months, ataduo LVL 901 thousand (2008: LVL nil).

As at 31 December 2009, the carrying amount ofGneup’s and Bank’s securities, which were impaired hot past due
amounted to LVL 7,611 thousand (2008: LVL 15,86dusand).

As at 31 December 2009, the net carrying amouseofirities, which were restructured during the yaarounted to LVL 857
thousand (2008: nil).

In 2008, due to changes of intentions in relatmithie holding period of the securities, the Bankliesd to reclassify available-
for-sale securities to held-to-maturity portfoli@arrying amount of the aforementioned securitiesabshe respective
reclassification dates was LVL 305,367 thousandai’31 December 2009 the carrying amount of theeafentioned securities
is LVL 284,150 thousand. If the securities were remlassified, the carrying amount as at 31 Decer@b69 would be LVL
244,332 thousand (2008: LVL 232,628 thousand).
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Group, LVL 000’s

31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Listed Unlisted Total Listed Unlisted Total

Government bonds:

Latvia 173,947 - 173,947 611,268 - 611,268

OECD 6,229 - 6,229 2,729 2,201 4,930

Non-OECD 11,447 - 11,447 3,163 - 3,163
Total government bonds 191,623 - 191,623 617,160 2,201 619,361
Municipality bonds:

OECD 118 - 118 - - -

Non-OECD 32,761 - 32,761 33,499 - 33,499
Total municipality bonds 32,879 - 32,879 33,499 - 33,499
Credit institution bonds:

Latvia 6,758 - 6,758 7,511 - 7,511

OECD 70,178 19,134 89,312 84,767 21,024 105,791

Non-OECD 43,231 - 43,231 58,919 18,580 77,499
Total credit institution bonds 120,167 19,134 139,301 151,197 39,604 190,801
Corporate bonds (OECD and non-OECD) 30,585 3,120 33,705 50,850 10,627 61,477
Other financial institution bonds (OECD

and non-OECD) 19,227 1,900 21,127 21,400 1,826 23,226
Managed funds - 1,481 1,481 - 1,511 1,511
Total gross fixed income securities 394,481 25,635 420,116 874,106 55,769 929,875
Impairment allowance (10,246) (4,272) (14,518) (17,988) (4,840) (22,828)
Total net fixed income securities 384,235 21,363 405,598 856,118 50,929 907,047

Bank, LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Listed Unlisted Total Listed Unlisted Total

Government bonds:

Latvia 173,893 - 173,893 611,268 - 611,268

OECD - - - 2,180 2,201 4,381

Non-OECD 1,253 - 1,253 1,042 - 1,042
Total government bonds 175,146 - 175,146 614,490 2,201 616,691
Municipality bonds:

OECD - - - - - -

Non-OECD 30,752 - 30,752 31,463 - 31,463
Total municipality bonds 30,752 - 30,752 31,463 - 31,463
Credit institution bonds:

Latvia 6,626 - 6,626 7,358 - 7,358

OECD 61,470 19,134 80,604 76,422 21,024 97,446

Non-OECD 41,740 - 41,740 57,888 18,578 76,466
Total credit institution bonds 109,836 19,134 128,970 141,668 39,602 181,270
Corporate bonds (OECD and non-OECD) 27,246 3,120 30,366 46,379 10,627 57,006
Other financial institution bonds (OECD

and non-OECD) 11,562 42,040 53,602 12,169 64,011 76,180
Managed funds - 1,481 1,481 - 1,511 1,511
Total gross fixed income securities 354,542 65,775 420,317 846,169 117,952 964,121
Impairment allowance (10,246) (4,272) (14,518) (17,988) (4,840) (22,828)
Total net fixed income securities 344,296 61,503 405,799 828,181 113,112 941,293
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NOTE 16.

SHARES AND OTHER NON-FIXED INCOME SECURH$S

The following table provides the classificationtbé Group's shares and other non-fixed income gesubetween available for
sale and fair value through profit and loss (whadtsecurities are held for trading) portfolio:

LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Available Held for Available Held for
for sale trading Total for sale trading Total

Equity shares:

in Latvian financial institutions - - - 1 1

in Latvian corporate entities - 649 649 1 763 764

in OECD financial entities 15 - 15 57 - 57

in OECD corporate entities 58 673 731 14 1,208 1,222

in non-OECD credit institutions - - - - 54 54

in non-OECD corporate entities 1 121 122 1 2,041 2,042
Total equity shares 74 1,443 1,517 73 4,067 4,140
Managed funds 9,457 - 9,457 12,431 334 12,765
Total shares and other non-fixed

income securities 9,531 1,443 10,974 12,504 4,401 16,905

The Group possess limited information on the stmecof investments in managed funds, which are geth@an the behalf of
investors by other financial institutions. As suthese investments are not analysed by their ukirssuer. Investments in
funds, where the Group does not possess suffimiéarimation on portfolios’ composition between fikencome securities and
shares are classified as investments in sharestardnon-fixed income securities.

LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Latvian entities’ equity shares:
listed 649 764 649 764
unlisted - 1 - -
Total Latvian entities’ equity shares 649 765 649 764
Foreign entities’ equity shares:
listed 361 3,359 361 3,360
unlisted 506 16 490 -
Total foreign entities’ equity shares 867 3,375 185 3,360
Mutual investment funds 9,458 12,765 9,401 12,695
Total shares and other non-fixed income
securities 10,974 16,905 10,901 16,819

There are no off-balance sheet commitments bearigjt risk that are related to the issuers ofaheve securities. Further, no

payments on the above instruments are past due.
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NOTE 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND BUSINESSAMBINATIONS

Changes in the Bank’s investments in subsidiariesbeagpecified as follows:

LVL 000’s
2009 2008
Balance as at 1 January 51,442 56,477
Establishment of new subsidiaries 50 -
Equity investments in the existing subsidiaries 626, -
Impairment (393) (4,984)
Disposals - (51)
Balance as at 31 December 72,725 51,442

In 2009, the the Bank decided to sell its Swiss islidoy AP Anlage & Privatbank AG. The Bank concludadagreement with

potential buyer regarding the sale of the subsjiahares. The original agreement term expire@4danuary 2009, but it was
prolonged until 24 July 2009 and further until 2dt@er 2009. After that the Bank did not prolong digeeement any more and
terminated it, given the fact that the buyer did m®zet several conditions. According to the terrhagreement, the Bank
recognised EUR 2 million income.

On 29 September 2009, the Bank established a sabsicdbmpany SIA NIF, which in October 2009 set hpeé subsidiary
companies — SIA NIF OzojamieIpasumi, SIA NIF KomeipaSumi and SIA NIF Zemdgasumi. In November and December
2009 SIA NIF established two more subsidiaries — Réstruktureeritud Kinnisvarafond (Estonia) and UABKNhojamojo
turto valdymo fondas (Lithuania). The purpose af #stablished subsidiaries is to ensure more effentanagement of the
repossessed assets.

In January 2009, March 2009 and December 2009B#mk paid up additional share issue of AS Parex &mrfkithuania)
amounting LTL 8,149 thousand, LTL 34,528 thousand &TL 63,530 thousand, respectively.

In 2006, the Bank acquired 100% shares of SIA Pprivate banking. The purchase price in excess efiit assets acquired
was fully allocated to the long-term lease agredrttem subsidiary possesses. In 2008, as a resimtpaiirment assessment, the
Bank concluded that the investment is impaired &edéspective value is zero. The main reason fpairment was decrease in
lease market rates, as well as certain investnreatte in respect to the repairs and improvementseofacilities. Impairment
allowance in the amount of LVL 447 thousand waaldighed in Bank’s statements, attributable to tivestment in subsidiary,
and for the same amount in Group’s financial statas) attributable to the long-term lease rights.

In 2008, the management of the Bank concluded teaetis evidence of impairment of the Bank’s offieelding constructed
and financed through subsidiary SIAgRas Pirmi Gaiaza. Due to significant decline in real estate valireLatvia and related
decrease in rental rates, the management resdiatdhipairment has to be recognized on exposutieet@aubsidiary and assets
related to the building in construction. As a résuhlue of investment amounting to LVL 4,537 wagtten down to zero. As at
31 December 2009 total amount of impairment recoghion the loan issued to the subsidiary is LVLiBion. Please also
refer to Note 19 on related fixed assets impairment

43



AS Parex banka

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2009

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Bank heltbtloaving investments in subsidiaries:

Investment carrying value

As at 31/12/2009 As at 31/12/2008 LVL 000’s
Country of Sharecapital ir  The Bank’s % of total Share capitalin ~ The Bank's % of total votin
Company registration Business profile LVL 000’s share (%) voting rights LVL 000's share (%) rights 31/12/2009  31/12/2008
AB Parex Bankas Lithuania Banking 58,386 100.0 100.0 36,540 100.0 100.0 57,000 35,378
AP Anlage & Privatbank AG Switzerland Banking 207 100.0 100.0 4,680 100.0 100.0 9,702 9,702
AS Parex Atkitais Pensiju Fonds Latvia Pension fund 450 100.0 100.0 450 99.6 99.6 454 451
IPAS Parex Asset Management Latvia Finance 4,150 100.0 100.0 4,150 100.0 100.0 4,151 4,151
ZAO Parex Asset Management Russia Finance 426 100.0 100.0 445 100.0 100.0 - -
00O Parex Asset Management Ukraina Ukraine Fmanc 564 100.0 100.0 606 100.0 100.0 - -
UAB Parex Investiciju Valdymas Lithuania Finance 730 100.0 100.0 447 100.0 100.0 - -
OU Parex Leasing & Factoring Estonia Finance 351 100.0 100.0 351 100.0 100.0 313 313
UAB Parex Faktoringas ir Lizingas Lithuania Fican 305 100.0 100.0 305 100.0 100.0 - -
SIA Rigas Pirmi Gaiaza Latvia REM* 352 100.0 100.0 352 100.0 100.0 - -
SIA Parex Private Banking Latvia REM* 180 100.0 100.0 180 100.0 100.0 10 10
SIA Parex Express Kré&s Latvia Leasing 31 100.0 100.0 31 100.0 100.0 613 613
SIA E&P Baltic Properties Latvia Finance 20 50.0 50.0 20 50.0 50.0 - -
SIA Parex lizings un Faktorings Latvia Leasing 200 100.0 100.0 200 100.0 100.0 - 200
AAS Parex Dwiba Latvia Life insurance 3,000 100.0 100.0 2,800 100.0 100.0 - -
00O Laska Lizing Ukraine Leasing 65 100.0 100.0 70 100.0 100.0 122 122
00O Ekspress Lizing Russia Leasing 57 100.0 100.0 59 100.0 100.0 76 76
00O Parex Leasing & Factoring Azerbaijan Leasing 30 100.0 100.0 30 100.0 100.0 - 26
00O Parex Leasing Russia Leasing 113 100.0 100.0 118 100.0 100.0 - 141
I000 Pareks Lizing Belarus Leasing 7 100.0 100.0 10 100.0 100.0 12 12
00O Extroleasing Russia Leasing 164 100.0 100.0 171 100.0 100.0 222 222
00O Extrocredit Russia Finance - 99.0 99.0 - 99.0 99.0 - -
00O Parex Leasing & Factoring Georgia Leasing 24 100.0 100.0 24 100.0 100.0 - 25
Regalite Holdings Limited Cyprus Finance 6 100.0 100.0 4 100.0 100.0 - -
Calenia Investments Limited Cyprus Finance - 100.0 100.0 - 100.0 100.0 - -
00O Parex Investments Ukraine Ukraine Finance 40 100.0 100.0 43 100.0 100.0 - -
SIA RPG Interjers Latvia REM* 2 100.0 100.0 2 100.0 100.0 - -
OAO Parex Ukrainian Equity Fund Ukraine Finance - 100.0 100.0 46 100.0 100.0 - -
SIA PR Spedilie Projekti Latvia Commercial pledges’ 2 100.0 100.0 2 100.0 100.0 - -
administrator
SIANIF Latvia REM* 50 100.0 100.0 - - - 50 -
SIA NIF DzivojamieIpasumi Latvia REM* 2 100.0 100.0 - - - - -
SIA NIF Komer@paSumi Latvia REM* 2 100.0 100.0 - - - - -
SIA NIF Zemedpasumi Latvia REM* 2 100.0 100.0 - - - - -
UAB Nekilnojamojo turto valdymo fondas Lithuania REM* 2 100.0 100.0 - - - - -
OU Restruktureeritud Kinnisvarafond Estonia REM* 2 100.0 100.0 - - - - -
Total investments in subsidiaries 72,725 51,442

* REM - real estate management
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NOTE 18.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill from acquisition of subsidiaries:

AP Anlage & Privatbank AG

AB Parex Bankas
SIA Parex Express Kred

Software
Other intangible assets

Total intangible assets excluding advances
Advances for intangible assets
Total net book value of intangible assets

LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008

Group Group Bank Bank
1,246 1,246 - -

35 35 - -

123 123 - -
1,404 1,404 - -
957 1,308 577 772
920 1,323 8 10
3,281 4,035 585 782

13 13 - -
3,294 4,048 585 782

For the purposes of goodwill impairment assessitienBank compared the total carrying amount of Hehegenerating units to
their recoverable amount. For this purpose thevaale amount was determined based on fair vals® dosts to sell, which
was derived from an analysis of recent actual miefgacquisition transactions that are comparablth&ocash-generating units
under review. The impairment test did not resuthia recognition of any impairment loss.

Movements in the Group’s intangible assets exclydidvances for the year ended 31 December 200%easpecified as

follows:

Historical cost

As at 31 December 2007
Additions
Disposals
Impairment

As at 31 December 2008
Additions
Disposals
Transfer

As at 31 December 2009

Accumulated amortisation

As at 31 December 2007
Charge for the year
Reversal due to disposals

As at 31 December 2008
Charge for the year
Reversal due to disposals
Transfer

As at 31 December 2009

Net book value

As at 31 December 2007
As at 31 December 2008
As at 31 December 2009

Impairment allowance

As at 31 December 2007
As at 31 December 2008
As at 31 December 2009

LVL 000’s
Goodwill Other Total intangible
from acquisition intangible assets excluding
of subsidiaries Software assets advances
1,404 8,056 2,549 12,009
- 778 55 833
- (145) (16) (161)
- - (447) (447)
1,404 8,689 2,141 12,234
- 329 19 348
- (4) - (4)
- 2) 2 -
1,404 9,012 2,162 12,578
- 6,607 402 7,009
- 895 424 1,319
- (121) (8) (129)
- 7,381 818 8,199
- 677 423 1,100
- (2) - (2)
- (1) 1 -
- 8,055 1,242 9,297
1,404 1,449 2,147 5,000
1,404 1,308 1,323 4,035
1,404 957 920 3,281
- - (447) (447)
- - (447) (447)

In 2008, lease rights obtained in 2006 through isidry SIA Parex private banking, were impairedr Fmre information,

please refer to Note 17.
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NOTE 19. FIXED ASSETS
LVL 000's
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Leasehold improvements 3,020 6,130 3,020 6,055
Land and buildings 37,801 11,272 4,127 4,215
Transport vehicles 1,998 4,506 1,071 2,482
Other fixed assets 8,853 7,950 3,504 6,434
Construction in progress - 23,667 - -
Total fixed assets excluding advances 51,672 53,52 11,722 19,186
Advances for fixed assets 823 6,967 823 1,052
Total net book value of fixed assets 52,495 60,492 12,545 20,238

The following changes in the Group’s fixed assetslugling advances for fixed assets took place duthe years ended
31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008:

LVL 000’s
Total
Leasehold Other fixed assets
improve- Land and Transport fixed Construction excluding
ments buildings vehicles assets in progress advances
Historical cost
As at 31 December 2007 7,039 16,139 10,900 33,511 11,041 78,630
Additions 4,039 81 1,656 4,082 27,359 37,217
Disposals (281) (23) (3,934) (3,825) - (8,063)
Reclassification - (761) - - - (761)
Transfer - 1,012 - - (1,012) -
Impairment charge - (4,279) - - (13,721) (18,000)
As at 31 December 2008 10,797 12,169 8,622 33,768 23,667 89,023
Additions 354 11 223 5,360 4,203 10,151
Disposals (5,317) - (3,937) (2,726) - (11,980)
Transfer - 27,870 - - (27,870) -
Impairment charge - 198 - - - 198
As at 31 December 2009 5,834 40,248 4,908 36,402 - 87,392
Accumulated depreciation
As at 31 December 2007 2,378 678 4,479 25,695 - 33,230
Charge for the year 2,546 222 1,583 3,644 - 7,995
Reversal due to disposals (257) 3) (1,946) (3,521) - (5,727)
As at 31 December 2008 4,667 897 4,116 25,818 - 35,498
Charge for the year 3,420 1,550 1,108 4,165 - 10,243
Reversal due to disposals (5,273) - (2,314) (2,434) - (10,021)
As at 31 December 2009 2,814 2,447 2,910 27,549 - 35,720
Net book value
As at 31 December 2007 4,661 15,461 6,421 7,816 11,041 45,400
As at 31 December 2008 6,130 11,272 4,506 7,950 23,667 53,525
As at 31 December 2009 3,020 37,801 1,998 8,853 - 51,672
Impairment allowance
As at 31 December 2007 - - - - - -
As at 31 December 2008 - (4,279) - - (13,721) (18,000)
As at 31 December 2009 - (17,802) - - - (17,802)

46



AS Parex banka

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2009

The following changes in the Bank’s fixed assetslusking advances for fixed assets took place duth years ended

31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008:

LVL 000's
Total
Other fixed fixed assets
Leasehold Land and Transport assets excluding
Improvements buildings vehicles prepayments
Historical cost
As at 31 December 2007 7,001 4,487 6,770 29,899 198,
Additions 3,945 92 955 3,397 8,389
Disposals (243) (4) (2,264) (3,470) (5,981)
As at 31 December 2008 10,703 4,575 5,461 29,826 56D
Additions 354 - - 420 774
Disposals (5,225) - (2,441) (1,877) (9,543)
As at 31 December 2009 5,832 4,575 3,020 28,369 794,
Accumulated depreciation
As at 31 December 2007 2,366 275 3,583 23,726 29,95
Charge for the year 2,521 87 1,031 3,013 6,652
Reversal due to disposals (239) 2) (1,635) (3,347) (5,223)
As at 31 December 2008 4,648 360 2,979 23,392 31,379
Charge for the year 3,370 88 636 3,190 7,284
Reversal due to disposals (5,206) - (1,666) (1,717) (8,589)
As at 31 December 2009 2,812 448 1,949 24,865 30,07
Net book value
As at 31 December 2007 4,635 4,212 3,187 6,173 as,2
As at 31 December 2008 6,055 4,215 2,482 6,434 a®,1
As at 31 December 2009 3,020 4,127 1,071 3,504 22,7
NOTE 20. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
LVL 000's
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Transport vehicles 11,667 3,485 4 1
Real estate 376 3,516 - 2,735
Manufacturing, industrial equipment 214 30 - -
Other 116 78 - 78
Total net non-current assets held for sale 12,373 19 4 2,814
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LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank

Initial carrying amount as at the beginning of the

year 9,811 2,378 4,213 2,345
Impairment allowance at the beginning of the year 2,7q2) - (1,399) -
Net carrying amount at the beginning of the year 2,09 2,378 2,814 2,345
Impairment charges (5,128) (2,702) (2,348) (1,399)
Impairment reversals 475 - - -
Decrease of impairment allowance due to disposals 3 1 - 13 -
Transfer — impairment allowance * 3,730 3,730 -
Net impairment charge to income statements (910) (2,702) 1,395 (1,399)
Increase of initial carrying amount due to addision 24,615 11,719 8,376 1,820
Decrease of initial carrying amount due to disp®sal (5,910) (4,337) (23) 3)
Transfer — initial carrying amount * (12,534) - (12,534) -
Net change in initial carrying amount 6,171 7,382 4,181) 1,817
Effect of changes in currency exchange rates 3 51 24) ( 51
Initial carrying amount as at the end of the year 5,952 9,811 4 4,213
Impairment allowance at the end of the year (3,579) (2,702) - (1,399)
Net carrying amount at the end of the year 12,373 ,¥09 4 2,814

* At end-December 2009, due to decreased likelihobdealizing the assets in the short term, certal estate properties
repossessed from the defaulted borrowers wereféraed from the “assets held for sale” to balarteses position “other assets”.

NOTE 21. OTHER ASSETS
LVL 000's
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Repossessed assets - real estate 12,534 - 12,534
VAT receivables 1,455 4,677 87 554
Money in transit 2,030 3,809 2,003 3,728
Prepayments 4,172 2,673 3,529 2,213
Accrued income 448 857 - 522
Other assets * 14,828 8,556 4,828 3,006
Total gross other assets 35,467 20,572 22,981 10,023
Impairment allowance of financial assets (3,310) 23(6 (2,207) (604)
Impairment allowance of non-financial assets (3)730 - (3,730) -
Total net other assets 28,427 19,949 17,144 9,419

* As at 31 December 2009, included in the Groupisl 8ank’s other assets are assets amounting to L8L17thousand
(2008: LVL 1,296 thousand) and LVL nil (2008: LVLil respectively, which are delayed. Additionalgs at 31 December
2009, the Group’s and the Bank’s other assets arsdihat are not delayed but impaired amount to LV132 thousand
(2008: LVL 623 thousand) and LVL 2,107 thousand (L804 thousand), respectively.

NOTE 22.

ISSUED DEBT SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Bank had tleevfog outstanding debt issues:

Debt outstanding

Issue date

May, 2007
Total

Issue amount

EUR 200 million

(LVL 000's)
Payment,
Coupon frequency Maturity 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
5.625% Annual May, 2011 0,32 88,712
90,742 88,712
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As a result of the difficult liquidity situation i@ctober 2008 and the resulting takeover of majaiitareholding by the State,
several covenants of the outstanding debt securitégge breached.

The Bank was engaged in interest rate swap transactivhereby swapped certain part of the fixed oaupayments to
EURIBOR. The interest rate swap agreements were osegintain certain level of the Bank’s debt, cormexfing to the debt
issues of EUR 200 million, at floating rates, thifeatively working as fair value hedge.

In 2008, the retrospective effectiveness test oRE2D0 million hedge revealed that the hedge is neenedfective due to
decrease in estimated cash flows from the hedged is a result, further revaluation of interes¢ iwap was recognised in the
income statement. The recognized effectivenesssatlate, when the hedge was effective, is beirgteésad over the remaining
life of the interest rate swap. The amortisatiom&@uded to income statement’s line “(Loss)/ gaintransactions with financial
instruments, net”.

Amortisation charge of hedge

effectiveness
2009 2008
EUR 200 million notes 1,869 939
Total 1,869 939

NOTE 23. BALANCES DUE TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS AND ENTRAL BANKS

LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank

Due to credit institutions registered in OECD

countries 407,457 590,078 421,449 591,003
Due to credit institutions registered in Latvia jiei5 598,703 142,860 598,703
Due to credit institutions registered in other non-

OECD countries 2,147 840 8,473 71,734
Total balances due to credit institutions and

central banks 552,466 1,189,621 572,782 1,261,440

* includes balances with the Bank of Latvia of LVA1,212 thousand (2008: LVL 590,505 thousand).

The following table presents the Group’s and Batidi&nces due to credit institutions and centrakbatcording to maturity
profile:

LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Balances on demand 190 5,801 745 6,305
Overnight deposits 425 4 6,399 70,351
Total balances repayable on demand 615 5,805 7,144 76,656
Loans from credit institutions:
due within 1 month 10,662 555,229 23,525 556,078
due within 1-3 months 367,726 267,818 368,294 7,888
due within 3-6 months 3,387 360,540 3,813 360,54
due within 6-12 months 6,852 - 6,782 347
due within 1-5 years 163,224 229 163,224 -
Total loans from credit institutions 551,851 1,183,816 565,638 1,184,784
Total due to credit institutions 552,466 1,189,621 572,782 1,261,440

The bank has concluded several repo transactioherelyy it pledged part of the securities portfaigainst the financing
received. Please refer to Note 30 for more details.

Syndicated loans restructuring

As at 31 December 2009, the Bank had 2 syndicausloutstanding, amounting to EUR 192.5 million BtuR 350 million
(2008: EUR 275 million and EUR 500 million). The onigl maturities of the facilities were 19 Febru@§09 and 26 June
2009, respectively. As a result of the difficulgdidity situation in October 2008 and the resultitaggeover of majority
shareholding by the State, several covenants ohlloee agreements were breached until the restmgttook place in March
20009.
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The main terms and conditions of the loan agreemenas follows:

e 40% of the total facility or EUR 310 million is payla on 15 February 2010. The interest rate marngplieable until
this date is 300 basis points over EURIBOR applictdblihe interest rate period as selected by the Bimé;amount
has been paid on the agreed date. Please refer te B®for more detai)s

e The residual of the total facility or EUR 232.5 naiti is payable on 5 May 2011. The interest rateginaapplicable
until this date is 350 basis points over EURIBOR mmajplle to the interest rate period as selectethéBank;

e The repayment of the loan is guaranteed by the $tadrantee;

e The Bank has to maintain a minimum capital adequaidy of 8%; and
The State is allowed to continue secured finanoirtye Bank as deemed necessary.

NOTE 24. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

The following table presents deposits from cust@aecording to customer profile:

LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank

Government 635,276 684,071 634,559 683,265
Private individuals 488,489 592,740 411,540 B34,
Privately held companies 461,019 616,907 404,029 569,409
State owned enterprises 48,411 62,889 48,260 4462
Financial institutions 41,079 47,417 29,745 388,
Municipalities 10,729 14,680 10,658 14,464
Public and religious institutions 2,846 4,290 7B8 3,234
Total deposits from customers 1,687,849 2,022,994 1,540,669 1,901,886

On 1 December 2008, Financial and Capital Markets r@ission and Cabinet of Ministers decided to impa@strictions on
deposit withdrawals in AS Parex bank (Latvia), &gille to all customer deposits with the Bank athatrespective date. The
restrictions do not apply to any funds receivedtio@ customers’ accounts after the restrictions,dasewell as state and
municipalities’ payments made by companies with bemof employees exceeding 250. All corporate tdievere only allowed
to make business-purpose payments. The initial terthe restrictions ended on 1 July 2009 and wathér prolonged to 1
December 2009 and 1 July 2010, thereafter. Nevedbeduring 2009, the restrictions have been isefte The details of
restrictions in force as at 31 December 2009 afellsvs:

e  Private individuals — maximum outflow of LVL 35 thsand per month;

e  Companies with number of employees not exceedingm@ximum outflow of LVL 35 thousand per month;

e  Companies with number of employees from 11-250 -imapn outflow of LVL 350 thousand per month;

e Since June 2009, the amount of incoming moneyaketeds the outstanding amount in all client actoas at 8 June
2009, can be further transferred with no additioraification, whether the payment serves busipespose;
Since October 2009, the unused limit in one mositvailable also in further periods, i.e., limitsamulate;
Since November 2009, the state and municipal emgephave no limits for transactions;

Financing support from the State Treasury

As a result of significant decrease in deposit laggctober-November 2008, the Bank was forced tiyafor the State support.
State Treasury of Latvia has made a number of dspms a secured basis, receiving part of Bank’s partfolio as collateral
(please refer to Note 30 for details on assetsgeléd As at 31 December 2009, the following finagcsupport received from
the State Treasury was outstanding (2008: LVL 698)3

Amortised cost

Agreemen Interest  Agreement Maturity LVL 000’s
currency rate (%) date date 31/12/2009
EUR 4.688 09/10/2009  08/01/2010 14,210
EUR 4.683 23/10/2009  22/01/2010 203,594
EUR 4.667 06/11/2009  05/02/2010 206,235
EUR 4.662 17/11/2009  17/02/2010 164,354
EUR 4.662 17/11/2009  17/02/2010 21,207
EUR 4.662 17/11/2009  17/02/2010 7,795
LVL 11.448 06/11/2009  05/02/2010 9,415
Total Treasury deposits 626,810
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During 2009 part of the State Treasury deposits wgesl to increase the Bank’s capital. The incretisetigely was done by
Privatisation Agencyrom the corresponding funds received from Staa3ury.

Even though most of the financing facilities’ métyiterm is January or February 2010, the Stateoigtinuing to provide the

support to the Bank by rolling-over the existingiliies. Please refer to Note 36 for updated infation on financial support
received from State Treasury.

LVL 000's
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Demand deposits 372,375 675,904 310,391 627,130
Term deposits:
due within 1 month 565,899 642,807 532,701 63B,5
due within 1-3 months 528,015 177,915 506,733 2,280
due within 3-6 months 65,302 141,102 50,979 539,
due within 6-12 months 94,889 303,846 80,136 , 204
due within 1-5 years 61,230 75,685 59,624 74,626
due in more than 5 years 139 5,735 105 5,726
Total term deposits 1,315,474 1,347,090 1,230,278 1,274,756
Total deposits from customers 1,687,849 2,022,994 1,540,669 1,901,886

As at 31 December 2009, the Bank held restrictedsiespamounting to LVL 28,211 thousand (2008: LV, &)1 thousand)
that are dependent upon repayment of outstandiag s due from customers.

Included in the aforementioned deposits are LVLeteimated deposits from former related parties artingrio LVL 28,006
thousand (2008: LVL 28,007 thousand) and with therage year-end interest rate of 7.9% (2008: 9.%@se deposits serve
as a collateral for the loan balances with origiagteement currency of EUR and USD amounting to IML080 thousand
(2008: LVL 14,123 thousand) and LVL 14,958 thous#®d08: LVL 15,346 thousand), respectively. Therage year-end
interest rate of these loans is 2.1% (2008: 4.8%g@se transactions were entered into by previoaswtive management of the
Bank. In 2009, the net interest expense arising fleenaforementioned transactions with former relgiarties amounted to
LVL 2.0 million. These transactions and their cflelvs are distinct from each other, thus presentedross basis.

NOTE 25. OTHER LIABILITIES

LVL 000's
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank

Accrued expense 3,219 2,968 2,867 2,456
VAT payables 2,038 3,972 - 11
Suspense liabilities 1,845 1,767 1,845 1,767
Amounts due to suppliers 1,060 4,592 486 318
Money in transit 280 12,035 - 12,014
Provisions for undrawn loan commitments 185 1,010 185 1,010
Deferred income 36 111 - -
Provisions for other liabilities - 325 - -
Other liabilities 6,111 10,447 3,987 8,307
Total other liabilities 14,774 37,227 9,370 25,88

Suspense liabilities comprise funds received by @eup and the Bank as at year end, but not traesfeio ultimate
beneficiaries due to unclear or incomplete detHikhe supporting documentation.
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NOTE 26. SUBORDINATED DEBT
The following table represents the details of Gisgpibordinated capital:

Amortised  Amortised

Issue Original Original cost cost
Residenc size, agreement maturity (LVL 000’s) (LVL 000’s)

Counterparty country Currency 000’s Interest rate date date 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Privatisation

Agency Latvia EUR 53,128 16.12% 22/05/2009 21/05620 37,857 -
EBRD UK EUR 18,400 6M Euribor + 7% 11/09/2009 08/@A/R 13,106 -
Notes-private UK EUR

placement 20,000 3M Euribor + 4.55%28/12/2007 28/12/2017 13,165 13,132
Private person  Latvia LVL 7,500 6M Rigibid + 3% 28/p007 26/09/2017 7,502 7,503
Private person Latvia LVL 7,500 6M Rigibid + 3% @8/2007 26/09/2017 7,502 7,503
Notes — public

issue n/a EUR 5,050 11% 08/05/2008 08/05/2018 3,813 3,817
Private person  Latvia EUR 15,000 12% 20/06/2008 03/2015 10,602 10,598
Private person Latvia LVL 1,500 6M Rigibid + 3% 30/2008 30/10/2018 1,500 1,501
Private person Latvia LVL 1,500 6M Rigibid + 3% 30/2008 30/10/2018 1,500 1,501
Private person Latvia LVL 2,284 6M Rigibid + 3% 02/2008 18/09/2015 2,285 2,285
Private person  Latvia LVL 2,284 6M Rigibid + 3% 02/2008 18/09/2015 2,285 2,285
Private person Latvia LVL 1,416 6M Rigibid + 3% 02/2008 29/09/2015 1,416 1,416
Private person  Latvia LVL 1,416 6M Rigibid + 3% 02/2008 29/09/2015 1,416 1,416
Total 103,949 52,957

On 22 May 2009, with the consent of European Comarisshe Privatisation Agency issued a subordinédaed amounting to
EUR 71,528 thousand (LVL 50,270 thousand). On 11teBeiper 2009, the Bank received a subordinated loam EBRD
amounting to EUR 18.4 million. The interest ratetbe loan is the equivalent to the 6 months EURIBORV/Hp7a.. The loan
matures in 7 years. The entire amount receivedused to partly repay the subordinated debt tdPthetisation Agency

The EUR 20,000 thousand subordinated debt was t&itrdbrough private placement of subordinated nokbes notes were

issued at discount and net proceeds amounted toIBLER2 thousand. The notes are to be redeemed#i. Ithe Bank has the
right to extend the term of the notes until 28 Deler 2022, in which case the Bank also has the tigredeem the notes after
the original maturity date giving a notice withi@-80 days.

As at 31 December 2009, included in the subordéhalebt are LVL 36 million (2008: LVL 36 million) &ibutable to the
former related parties of the Bank. These transastigere entered into by previous executive manageafehe Bank. During
2009, the Bank recognised LVL 4.8 million (2008: L\2l4 million) interest expense on the aforementibba@lance.
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NOTE 27. ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2009, the Bank’s registered amttipashare capital was LVL 230,027 thousand. dncadance with the
Bank’s statutes, the share capital consists of 331tBousand ordinary shares with voting rights 2844 thousand ordinary
shares without voting rights. All shares have avadue of LVL 1 each and, as at 31 December 268y all were issued and
fully paid. As at 31 December 2009, the Bank did possess any of its own shares. No dividends wepoged and paid
during 2009 and 2008.

As at 31 December 2009, the Bank had 61 (2008: i6dneholders. The respective shareholdings as &e8émber 2009 and
2008 may be specified as follows:

31/12/2009 31/12/2008

Paid-in Paid-in % of

share % of total % of total share total % of total

capital paid-in voting capital paid-in voting

(LVL 000’s) capital rights (LVL 000's) capital rights

Privatisation Agency 168,921 73.44 71.74 - - -
European Bank for Reconstruction
and Development 51,444 22.36 25.55 - - -
Latvijas Hipotku un zemes banka - - - 55,165 84.83 90.98
Other 9,662 4.20 2.71 9,862 15.17 9.02
Total 230,027 100.00 100.00 65,027 100.00 100.00

Changes in the shareholding structure

On 10 November 2008, Investment Agreement was aded on sale of 51% of the Bank’s shares owned bypt&vious major
shareholders Vatijs Kargins and Viktors Krasovickis to State JStortgage and Land Bank of Latvi®dn 3 December 2008,
amendments the Invesment Agreement were made pmgvitiat Vaérijs Kargins and Viktors Krasovickis are selling to
Mortgage and Land Bank of Latvall of their shares ilParex bankawhich in total constitute 84.83% of the toRdrex
banka’sshare capital amount.

On 15 December 2008, the Latvian Govermnent maeelétision to increase the state participatioRanex bankathrough
obtaining 200,000 shares froBvenska Handelsbanken ABn 22 January 2009, the share purchase agreemasnsigned
betweenSvenska Handelsbanken ABd Mortgage and Land Bank of Latyiincreasing the State’s shareholdingParex
bankato 85.14%.

On 24 February 2009, the Latvian Government decidedhnsfer 85.14% d?arex banka'shares owned by thdortgage and
Land Bank of Latvido the State Joint-Stock Company “Privatifas aenfira” (Privatisation AgencyThe transfer of shares
did not affect the financial position of the Bank@roup and was completed solely to optimise theagament of the State’s
investment. Furthermore, on 3 March 2008&mura International plavas appointed as the strategic advisor of theeStat
shareholding in the Bank. Currently, the Bank has cenuad collaboration with the advisor's represewtsti However no
specific decisions have been taken as yet.

On 16 April 2009 ,European Bank for Reconstruction and DevelopnfEBRD) concluded a share purchase agreement with
Privatisation Agencywhereby 51.44 million of the Bank’s shares withing rights were agreed to be sold to EBRD whereby
EBRD would acquire 25% of the share capitaPafex bankglus one share.

Capital increases

On 24 March 2009, the Cabinet of Ministers resolieegrovide financing in the amount of LVL 227 milli to renew the capital
base of the Bank. The amount will be provided imfaf share capital increase by LVL 165 million asubordinated loan
amounting to LVL 62 million. As at the date of sigg the financial statements, the European Comnmissas approved the
share capital increase of LVL 140,750 thousand ama@dditional subordinated loan amounting LVL 50,27ousand. On 22
May 2009 Privatisation Agencyaid up the respective capital increase

On 29 October 2009 the Bank's capital was furthenemsed by LVL 24.25 million. The increase wasiedrput by the largest
shareholder of the Barfkrivatisation Agencyy purchase of a corresponding amount of non-gathrares.

53



AS Parex banka
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2009

NOTE 28. MEMORANDUM ITEMS

Memorandum items comprise contingent liabilitiesafcial commitments, foreign exchange contract @erivative financial
instruments. The following table provides a speatfion of contingent liabilities (showing maximurmaeunt payable) and
financial commitments outstanding as at 31 Deceribép and 2008.

LVL 000's
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Contingent liabilities:
Outstanding guarantees 6,127 19,947 10,881 14,843
Outstanding letters of credit 699 37,896 583 37,896
Total contingent liabilities 6,826 57,843 11,464 539
Financial commitments:
Loans granted, not fully drawn down 1,219 6,740 295 7,319
Unutilised credit lines and overdraft facilities 1,870 61,456 104,617 169,068
Credit card commitments 72,985 106,006 61,411 93,131
Other financial commitments 14 5,430 - -
Total financial commitments 126,088 179,632 166,323 269,518

The following table presents the notional amoumts &ir values of foreign exchange contracts andvdive financial
instruments. The notional amounts of foreign ergeacontracts represent the amounts receivabler tinelge contracts. The

notional amounts of other financial instrumentsespnt the value of the underlying assets.

The Group:

Foreign exchange contracts:
Spot exchange
Forwards
Swaps

Total foreign exchange contracts

Other financial instruments:
Interest rate swaps
Other derivatives
Total other financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments

The Bank:

Foreign exchange contracts:
Spot exchange
Forwards
Swaps

Total foreign exchange contracts

Other financial instruments:
Interest rate swaps
Other derivatives
Total other financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments

Notional amount Fair value
LVL 000’s LVL 000's
31/12/200931/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008

Assets Liabilities  Assets Liabilities
37,422 55,008 683 (685) 3,535 (2,041)
8,203 80,608 111 (23) 2,419 (2,108)
480,569 1,074,086 818 (172) 6,085 (3,270)
526,1941,209,702 1,612 (870) 12,039 (7,419)
4,890 157,489 260 (24) 6,788 (43)
7,028 11,978 41 (53) 376 (2,047)
11,918 169,467 301 (67) 7,164 (2,090)
538,112 1,379,169 1,913 (937) 19,203 (9,509)

Notional amount Fair value

LVL 000’s LVL 000's
31/12/200931/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008

Assets Liabilities  Assets Liabilities
37,544 86,160 683 (685) 3,536 (2,158)
28,878 89,433 129 (33) 2,327 (2,130)
484,382 1,092,790 809 (177) 6,125 (3,292)
550,8041,268,383 1,621 (895) 11,988 (7,580)
4,890 157,489 260 (14) 6,788 (43)
7,028 11,978 41 (53) 376 (2,047)
11,918 169,467 301 (67) 7,164 (2,090)
562,722 1,437,850 1,922 (962) 19,152 (9,670)
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The Group’s banks use derivative foreign exchamg&uments to manage their currency positions, whimong others arise
also due to derivative foreign exchange contraotscluded with the banks’ clients. Before enterintp iderivative foreign
currency agreement with private individual or compathe Group’s entities assess the counterpagiitity to meet the
contractual provisions. As at 31 December 2009,emban 96% (2008: 84%) of the fair value (assetsfooeign exchange
contracts is attributable to credit and financéifaons and central government. As at 31 Decen@ld®9 and 2008, none of the

payments receivable arising out of derivative tagtions was past due.

NOTE 29. FUNDS UNDER TRUST MANAGEMENT

The table below provides analysis of the funds mgadan behalf of customers by investment type:

LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Fixed income securities:
Mutual investment funds 67,546 62,192 - -
Credit institution bonds 50,636 42,640 - -
Government bonds 40,481 56,596 - -
Corporate bonds 25,522 34,863 - -
Foreign municipality bonds 1,411 1,412 - -
Other financial institution bonds 1,207 - - -
Total investments in fixed
income securities 186,803 197,703 - -
Other investments:
Deposits with credit institutions 70,218 64,675 - 1,497
Shares 39,649 36,974 - -
Real estate 11,104 31,958 - -
Loans to corporate entities 1,427 1,150 247 402
Loans to financial institutions 101 212 - -
Other 16,560 21,249 62 70
Total other investments 139,059 156,218 309 1,969
Total assets under trust management
agreements 325,862 353,921 309 1,969
The table below provides an analysis of the custqrafile on whose behalf the funds are managed:
LVL 000's
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Investors of investment funds 210,113 210,774 - -
Privately held companies 54,962 63,552 309 472
Private individuals 48,526 64,556 - -
Financial institutions 12,261 15,039 - 1,497
Total liabilities under trust management
agreements 325,862 353,921 309 1,969
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NOTE 30. ASSETS PLEDGED

LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Due from credit institutions* 21,182 32,830 21,182 32,830
Held for trading securities - 3 - 3
Available-for-sale securities 64,772 77,705 64,772 77,705
Held-to-maturity securities 217,465 654,154 218,46 654,154
Total securities pledged 282,237 731,862 282,237 31,862
Loans to customers 1,227,536 829,489 1,227,536 ,48929
Total assets pledged 1,530,955 1,594,181 1,530,955 1,594,181
Due to credit institutions and central banks 167,966 635,239 167,966 635,239
Deposits from State Treasury 626,810 676,398 az6,8 676,398
Total liabilities secured by pledged assets 794,776 1,311,637 794,776 1,311,637

* The amount consists of several placements torea@rious Bank’s transactions in the ordinary cewfsbusiness.

As at 31 December 2009, the Bank has entered iveralerepo agreements with Bank of Latvia and Eusmop@entral Bank,
whereby it pledged part of its securities portf@grinst the financing facilities received.

Further, the Bank has concluded several agreemetitsState Treasury of Latvia, whereby it pledged péthe loan portfolio

as a security to the financing received. The respepledges are registered with Commercial Regiftlerase refer to Note 24
for more detailed information on deposits receifrech the State Treasury.

NOTE 31. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The table below provides a breakdown of cash asl equivalents as at 31 December 2009 and 2008:

LVL 000's
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Cash and demand deposits with central banks 157,502 116,350 142,259 95,179
Deposits with other credit institutions* 217,889 0243 195,754 537,407
Demand deposits due to other credit institutions 615§ (5,805) (7,144) (76,656)
Total cash and cash equivalents 374,776 361,488 B850 555,930

* Deposits include term facilities with initial aegment term of 3 months or less.

NOTE 32. LITIGATION AND CLAIMS

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank ha® lelved in a number of legal proceedings to wecocollateral or
outstanding credit balances, as well as relateatdést and expenses from defaulted credit custoamerénterbank counterparties.
The Group is also involved in a number of legalgeexdings related to its customers in Latvia andaadr

The management of the Bank believes that any legalepdings pending as at 31 December 2009 willresult in material
losses for the Group.

In July 2009, the State Revenue Service (SRS) hapleted a tax audit of the Bank which covered thesy/ed2007 and 2008.
The tax audit report assessed claims for addititereds to be paid by the Bank. The Bank did not agide the SRS audit

team’s assessment and has appealed to the Gemmetobof the SRS. Subsequently, the decision foara of additional taxes
payable was withdrawn. In respect to the residaal pf the decision, which remained unchanged amstiutes ca LVL 0.8

million in additional tax and ca LVL 0.8 million ipenalties, the Bank appealed to the Administratimert. The management
strongly believes that the Bank will not incur amsd as a result of this residual claim. Accordingly provisions were

established in respect to this matter. As at 3lebwxer 2009, years 2006 and 2009 are open to tats andhe Bank.
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NOTE 33. RELATED PARTIES

Related parties are defined as shareholders who $igudicant influence over the Group, state andhitipal institutions,
members of the Council and Management Board, key §mant personnel, their close relatives and coreganiwhich they
have a controlling interest as well as associatepanies of the Group. For the purpose of thislaksee, the key management
of the Group’s companies/ Bank and their relatedpamies are stated in one line, accordingly.

The Bank of Latvia is not considered as relatedypastit is operating as an independent institutiocording to special law.

The following table present the outstanding balanamed terms of the Group’s transactions with capaities, which were
related parties as at 31 December 2009.

Interest Interest
income/ income/
Amount in expense Amount in expense
LVL 000's 01/01/2009- LVL 000's 01/01/2008-
31/12/2009 31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2008
Credit exposure to related parties
Securities: 173,947 18,887 611,268 10,792
Latvian treasury bills and government bonds 173,94 18,887 611,268 10,792
Loans and receivables: 4,001 243 4,657 846
Management 990 50 953 487
State institutions 2 2 35 2
Municipality institutions 3,009 191 3,669 357
Derivatives — assets: 304 -
State Treasury 304 -
Financial commitments and outstanding
guarantees: 1,839 4,852
Management 293 1,272
State institutions 164 3,580
Municipality institutions 1,382 -
Total credit exposure to related parties 180,091 20,777
Due to related parties: 696,635 42,262 697,545 10,132
Deposits from State Treasury 627,491 36,767 676,648 7,575
Subordinated loans from shareholder 50,963 4,495 - -
Management 455 10 201 25
State institutions 7,068 354 6,232 65
Municipality institutions 10,658 636 14,464 2,467
Total amounts due to related parties 696,635 697,545
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The following table presents the outstanding batanand terms of the Bank’s transactions with copatéies, which were

related parties as at 31 December 2009.

Credit exposure to related parties

Securities:
Latvian treasury bills and government bonds
Subsidiaries

Loans and receivables:
Management
State institutions
Municipality institutions
Subsidiaries - banks
Subsidiaries - other

Derivatives — assets:
Subsidiaries - banks
State Treasury

Financial commitments and outstanding
guarantees:
Management
State institutions
Municipality institutions
Subsidiaries - banks
Subsidiaries - other

Total credit exposure to related parties

Due to related parties:
Deposits from State Treasury
Subordinated loans from shareholders
Management
State institutions
Municipality institutions
Subsidiaries - banks
Subsidiaries - other

Derivatives — liabilities:
Subsidiaries - banks

Total amounts due to related parties

Interest Interest
income/ income/
Amount in expense Amount in expense
LVL 000’s 01/01/2009- LVL 000’s 01/01/2008-
31/12/2009 31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2008
214,087 22,822 673,453 15,604
173,94 18,887 611,268 10,792
40,140 3,935 62,185 4,812
306,965 17,159 525,624 7386,
361 13 251 451
2 2 35 2
3,009 191 3,669 357
141,986 6,561 285,278 9,080
161,607 10,392 236,391 16,845
333 117
29 117
304 -
64,205 123,873
293 1,272
164 3,580
1,382 -
367 71,848
61,999 47,173
585,590 ,323,067
709,858 42,687 776,174 10,780
627,491 36,767 676,648 7,575
50,963 4,495 - -
171 3 37 22
7,068 354 6,232 65
10,658 636 14,464 2,467
10,602 300 72,371 537
2,905 132 6,422 114
31 175
31 175
709,889 776,349

Included in the Bank’s financial results are alsderial transactions that were concluded with cerfaimer related parties and
entered into by the bank prior to 05/12/2008 whHenrew management board was appointed. In 2009ethiaterest expense
on the aforementioned transactions amounted tooajpately LVL 6.8 million.
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NOTE 34. SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner censisith the internal reporting provided to theaftoperating decision-maker. The chief operatingjsien-maker is the person or group that allocetssurces
to and assesses the performance of the operatimges¢és of an entity. The Bank has determined theagament board of the Bank as its chief operateaistbn maker. Banking Latvia is a reportable ofiega
segment whose operating results are regularlywedeby the board. The Board reviews financial infation prepared based on International FinancigbRiang Standards.
The following table reconciles the management mtation with these financial statements:

LVL 000's

Segment reported in the
monthly report to the Other business units not consolidated in managemesgorting
Management Board

) . Banking - . Eliminations and
Banking - Latvia other countries Asset management Leasing Other consolidation adjustments Group
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 08 20 2009 2008

Total income from external

customers * 153,988 207,875 19,560 27,682 3,406 5,815 23,488 34,133 28 18 - - 200,470 275,523
Total income from internal

customers * 21,162 32,715 399 70 366 33 163 197 5 - (22,095) (33,015) - -
Total segment revenue 175,150 240,590 19,959 27,75 3,772 5,848 23,651 34,330 33 18 (22,095) (33,015) 200,470 275,523
Net interest income 12,247 76,533 5,272 8,237 383 390 9,823 12,629 (646) (343) (652) (1,154) 26,427 96,292
Net commission income 14,644 27,423 1,776 2,406 3,117 4,843 (29) 950 28 17 36 173 19,572 35,812
(Loss)/ gains on transactions

with financial instruments,

net 5,540 (4,657) 1,197 220 61 (169) (1,143) (115) - - - 1,359 5,655 (3,362)
Administrative expense 50,352 82,638 9,920 11,642 3,311 4,275 8,918 10,579 794 225 (1,771) (267) 71,524 109,092
Other operating income/

(expense), net 6,176 7,011 1,028 943 129 99 3,362 4,476 1,638 192 (1,789) (1,328) 10,544 11,393
Net (loss)/ gains on disposal of

assets held for sale - - - - - - (3,652) (391) - - - - (3,652) (391)
Segment result (129,190) (130,329) (18,097) (4,721) (378) 1,063 (9,623) (3,003) (1,610) (673) 14,873 (731) (144,025) (138,394)
Segment assets 2,471,150 3,418,039 337,722163,035 15,437 16,089 169,476 273,463 54,380 52,935 (451,268) (739,758) 2,596,897 3,483,803
Segment liabilities 2,318,481 3,340,551 289,440418,804 3,061 3,820 172,351 269,849 57,723 54,088 (383,099) (682,380) 2,457,947 3,404,732
Capital expenditure (including

intangible assets) 816 9,545 63 565 40 64 300 1,167 3,734 28,562 (597) - 4,356 39,903
Depreciation and amortisation 7,752 7,346 973 978 84 96 703 798 1,836 96 - - 11,348 9,314
Impairment charge, gross 136,707 146,688 16,477 5,198 673 181 10,777 9,891 - - (20,039) (568) 144,596 161,390
No of employees at the end of

the period 1,971 2,461 447 491 124 157 316 462 10 22 - - 2,868 3,593

There were no revenues deriving from transactiatts avsingle external customer that amounted to ©@%ore of the Group’s revenues.
* Income is defined as total of gross interest anthmission and fee income
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NOTE 35 RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management polices
Risk management principles are set out in Group’& Risl Capital Management Policy. The Group adherdke following
key risk management principles:
e The Group aims to ensure an acceptable risk levellli operations. Risks are always assessed iniael&d the
expected return. Risk exposures that are not addegfar the Group are avoided, limited or hedged;
e The Group does not assume high or uncontrollalslesrirrespective of the return they provide. Riskeuid be
diversified and those risks that are quantifiaibleudd be limited or hedged;
e The Group pursues prudent risk management pohey,is aligned with the Group’ business and enseifestive total
risk mitigation;
¢ Risk management is based on awareness of each and@wup’s employee about the nature of transasttee/she
carries out and related risks;
e Risk limit system and strict controls are essemisdd management elements. Control of risk level emmipliance with
limits is ensured by structured risk limit systefmsall material risks;
e The Group aims to ensure low risk exposure, difietsasset portfolio, limited risks in financial rkats and low level
of operational risk.

Risk management is an essential element of the Grangnagement process. Risk management within tbegais controlled
by independent units — Risk and Compliance Sector.

The Group is exposed to the following main risk®ddt risk, market risk, interest rate risk, ligitydrisk and operational risk.
The Group has approved risk management policiesgohn of these risks, which are briefly summarissidw.

a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incutass from debtor’'s non-performance or default. §heup is exposed to credit
risk in its lending, investing and trading actieg&j as well as in respect to the guarantees igsuthird parties and other off-
balance sheet commitments to third parties.

Credit risk management is based on adequate risksment and decision-making. For material risk&, analysis is conducted
by independent units of Risk and Compliance Sectdre &nalysis of credit risk comprises evaluation caktomer’s
creditworthiness and collateral and its liquidifyhe analysis of creditworthiness of a legal entitgludes analysis of the
industry, the company, and its current and forechdinancial position. The analysis of creditwoniggs of an individual
includes the analysis of the customer’s creditdnstincome and debt-to-income ratio analysis, ab &as the analysis of social
and demographic factors. In the event of mateiséisr lending decision is made by the Credit Commjtéad further reviewed
by the Bank's Management Board.

After the loan is issued, customer’s financial fiosiis monitored on a regular basis in order noety identify potential credit
losses.

To limit its credit risk, the Group has set theldaling concentration limits: individual counterpattmit, limit for group of
mutually related customers, limit for large riskpesures, limit for the Group’s related parties, iadustry limit, limit by
customer type and loan product. A number of limisre breached in®'lhalf of 2009 due to insufficient capital level and
restricted Bank financing for leasing companies. itsnbreached included individual counterparty linlimit for group of
mutually related customers, limit for large riskpesures (for the Bank) and industry limit, limit bystomer type and type of
collateral (for leasing subsidiaries). As at théedaf approval of this report the relavant limitt for the Bank were complied
with.

The Group reviews its loan portfolio on a regulasis to assess its quality and concentrationselisae/to evaluate the portfolio
trends.

Credit risk identification, monitoring and reportirggthe responsibility of Risk and Compliance Sector.
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The tables below provide details of the Group’silpartfolio delinquencies:

Group, LVL 000’s
31/12/2009
. Loans under
Regular Utilised credit Finance Debit b:lallance reverse Overdraft . . Due from |
loans lines leases on settlement repurchase facilities Factoring mvestment.an Total
cards brokerage firm
agreement
Not delayed - not impaired 729,443 88,778 74,958 62,849 599 5,330 14,115 6,109 982,181
Incl. restructured loans 244,063 44,017 2,474 - - - - - 290,554
Not delayed - impaired 95,041 5,868 78 - - - 24 435 101,446
Total not delayed loans 824,484 94,646 75,036 62,849 599 5,330 14,139 6,544 1,083,627
Past due loans - not impaired
Delayed days:
=< 29 80,327 2,208 20,920 2,140 - 178 - - 05,173
30-59 23,958 504 5,246 1,747 - 250 74 - 73,
60-89 29,287 4,362 2,198 1,312 - 21 - - 180,
90 and more 200,973 9,224 9,703 4,319 - 352 78 1 - 224,749
Total past due loans - not impaired 334,545 16,298 38,067 9,518 - 801 252 - 399,481
Total past due loans - impaired 337,403 20,459 33,205 18,308 - 1,305 1,089 - 411,769
Total gross loans and receivables to
customers 1,496,432 131,403 146,308 90,675 599 7,436 15,480 6,544 1,894,877
Impairment allowance (181,694) (14,959) (12,620) (21,811) - (1,313) (1,553) (559) (234,509)
Total net loans and receivables to
customers 1,314,738 116,444 133,688 68,864 599 6,123 13,927 5,985 1,660,368

Mostly, not-delayed loans falling into categoriesdular loans” and “utilised credit lines” are sexliby collateral. More than 79% are secured blyastate collateral. In general, settlement caath$oare granted
to clients on a basis of their cash flows’ assessrmprd no collateral is required in most casesaip leases are secured by the respective prdpasiyd out (for more details on leasing portfolieape refer to

Note 14). Loans under reverse repurchase agreeamensgcured with securities that can be soldse oéclient’s default.

As at 31 December 2009, included in the loan clieeggular loans” are past due and impaired loank gibss amount of LVL 300 million, where the estiethvalue of collateral amounts to approximatehLA87

million.
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Group, LVL 000’s

31/12/2008
- . Debit balances Loans under Due from
Utilised Finance reverse Overdraft . .
Regular loans L on settlement S Factoring investment an Total
credit lines leases repurchase facilities )
cards brokerage firms
agreement
Not delayed - not impaired 1,067,754 186,982 , 459 86,805 1,248 22,242 20,931 4,078 1,%0,2
Incl. restructured loans 158,558 4,051 1,156 - - 826 - - 164,591
Not delayed - impaired 166,952 8,659 7 - - 041 5 - 176,033
Total not delayed loans 1,234,706 195,641 159,217 86,805 1,248 22,652 20,936 0744, 1,725,283
Past due loans - not impaired
Delayed days:
=< 29 72,307 3,595 32,105 3,445 - 104 160 - 111,716
30-59 37,339 1,979 20,208 1,757 - 2,400 13 63,696
60-89 17,083 257 5,173 296 - 12 655 23,47
90 and more 34,975 1,492 5,763 1,183 107 6 66 - 44,186
Total past due loans - not impaired 161,704 7,323 63,249 6,681 - 2,623 1,494 243,074
Total past due loans - impaired 134,823 8,387 22,602 11,997 - 4,725 563 183,097
Total gross loans and receivables to
customers 1,531,233 211,351 245,068 105,483 1,248 30,000 22,993 4,078 2,151,454
Impairment allowance (85,330) (4,636) (8,744) 3,040) - (3,073) (630) - (115,453)
Total net loans and receivables to
customers 1,445,903 206,715 236,324 92,443 1,248 26,927 22,363 0784, 2,036,001

As at 31 December 2008, included in the loan ctesgular loans” are past due and impaired loané gibss amount of LVL 72 million, where the estiethivalue of collateral amounts to approximately
LVL 50 million.
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The tables below provide details of the Bank’s lpartfolio delinquencies:

Bank, LVL 000's
31/12/2009
. Loans under
Regular Utilised credit Finance Debit balances reverse Overdraft . . Due from
) on settlement D Factoring investment and Total
loans lines leases repurchase facilities )
cards brokerage firms
agreement
Not delayed - not impaired 593,079 114,170 1,188 56,367 6,071 14,045 6,033 790,953
Incl. restructured loans 243,693 55,387 1,132 - - - - 300,212
Not delayed - impaired 150,015 87,477 7 - - - 435 237,934
Total not delayed loans 743,094 201,647 1,195 6,37 6,071 14,045 6,468 1,028,887
Past due loans - not impaired
Delayed days:
=< 29 67,941 1,153 5 1,756 175 71,030
30-59 21,906 387 7 1,521 - - 23,821
60-89 28,059 4,168 1 1,156 21 - - 33,405
90 and more 184,134 7,730 138 2,282 352 - - 194,636
Total past due loans - not impaired 302,040 13,83 151 6,715 548 - - 322,892
Total past due loans - impaired 291,723 9,216 77 18,308 1,112 32 - 320,468
Total gross loans and receivables to
customers 1,336,857 224,301 1,423 81,390 37,7 14,077 6,468 1,672,247
Impairment allowance (183,211) (21,429) (96) ,020) (1,119) (400) (559) (226,841)
Total net loans and receivables to
customers 1,153,646 202,872 1,327 61,363 6,612 13,677 5,909 1,445,406
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Bank, LVL 000’s

Debit balance

31/12/2008

Loans under

Due from

Regular Utilised credi Finance | reverse Overdraft . . d Total
loans lines leases on settlement repurchase facilities Factoring mvestmentlan ota
cards brokerage firms
agreement
Not delayed - not impaired 868,524 344,452 1,362 79,773 586 23,460 18,932 6,770 1,343,859
Incl. restructured loans 153,830 - 1,156 - - - - - 154,986
Not delayed - impaired 202,027 8,169 7 - - 041 - - 210,613
Total not delayed loans 1,070,551 352,621 1,369 79,773 586 23,870 18,932 6,770 1,554,472
Past due loans - not impaired
Delayed days:
=< 29 62,193 2,621 43 2,732 - 33 - - 67,622
30-59 34,426 1,255 11 1,553 - 2,400 - - 39,645
60-89 15,508 167 - 163 - 12 - - 15,850
90 and more 33,239 1,386 88 490 - 107 - - 35,310
Total past due loans - not
impaired 145,366 5,429 142 4,938 - 2,552 - - 158,427
Total past due loans - impaired 122,334 7,028 93 11,997 - 4,677 32 - 146,161
Total gross loans and receivables
to customers 1,338,251 365,078 1,604 96,708 586 31,099 18,964 6,770 1,859,060
Impairment allowance (94,445) (4,038) (80) (TBA - (3,024) (126) - (114,189)
Total net loans and receivables to
customers 1,243,806 361,040 1,524 84,232 586 28,075 18,838 6,770 1,744,871
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The following table provides details on changethanGroup’s specific loan portfolio impairment dgsses:

Debit Loans under Due from
Regular Utilised Finance balances on reverse Overdraft . investment
o S Factoring Total
loans credit lines leases settlement repurchase facilities and brokerag
cards agreement firms
Outstanding specific impairment as at 31/12/2008 T892 2,532 7,279 11,997 - 2,912 485 - 192,7
Impairment charge for the reported period - specifi 75,946 7,854 5,284 6,311 - 188 667 394 6,684
Release of previously established impairment allmea
specific (5,016) (813) (1,473) - - (2,025) - - (9732
Impairment charged to the statement of income, net 70,930 7,041 3,811 6,311 - (1,837) 667 394 87,317
Change of impairment allowance due to write-offst, n (37) - (415) - - - (39) - (491)
Increase/ (decrease) in impairment allowance dee@ncy
fluctuations (341) (336) (79) - - 52 (17) - (721)
Outstanding specific impairment as at 31/12/2009 14144 9,237 10,596 18,308 - 1,127 1,096 394 187,902
The following table provides details on changethaBank’s specific loan portfolio impairment byastes:
Debit Loans under Due from
Regular Utilised Finance balances on reverse Overdraft . investment
L S Factoring Total
loans credit lines leases settlement repurchase facilities and brokerag
cards agreement firms
Outstanding specific impairment as at 31/12/2008 8438 2,000 72 11,997 - 2,865 19 - 104,391
Impairment charge for the reported period - specifi 74,423 14,914 - 6,311 - 43 - 394 96,085
Release of previously established impairment alimea
specific (9,744) (813) (4) - - (2,025) - - (12,586)
Impairment charged to the statement of income, net 64,679 14,101 (4) 6,311 - (1,982) - 394 83,499
Change of impairment allowance due to write-offst, n (37) - - - - - - - (37)
Increase/ (decrease) in impairment allowance dee@ncy
fluctuations (359) (342) 9 - - 51 (1) - (660)
Outstanding specific impairment as at 31/12/2009 15721 15,759 59 18,308 - 934 18 394 187,193
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The tables below provide details of the Group’s Badk’s securities portfolio quality:

Group, LVL 000’s

31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Heldto Available Held for Heldto  Available Held for
maturity for sale  trading Total maturity  for sale  trading Total
Investment grade:
AAA - 13,087 - 13,087 2,110 5,976 - 8,086
AA 7,876 10,410 - 18,286 15,353 32,881 - 48,234
A 27,614 37,367 - 64,981 470,014 58,477 - 528,491
BBB/Baa 77,792 28,372 - 106,164 190,291 24,226 47 BI45
Other lower ratings 168,446 11,633 4 180,083 56,631 6,564 270 63,465
Not rated 32,161 3,949 1,405 37,515 46,975 18,063 ,9971 67,035
Total gross fixed income
securities 313,889 104,818 1,409 420,116 781,374 6,187 2,314 929,875
Incl. impaired securities 21,682 - - 21,682 34,479 - - 34,479
Impairment allowance (14,518) - - (14,518) (22,828) - - (22,828)
Total net fixed income
securities 299,371 104,818 1,409 405,598 758,546 6,187 2,314 907,047
Bank, LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Held to  Available Held for Heldto  Available Held for
maturity for sale  trading Total maturity  for sale  trading Total
Investment grade:
AAA - 5,097 - 5,097 1,608 4,250 - 5,858
AA 5,418 8,301 - 13,719 4,544 32,802 - 37,346
A 20,897 34,799 - 55,696 464,956 56,091 - 521,047
BBB/Baa 72,756 17,645 - 90,401 186,231 23,670 - 209,901
Other lower ratings 167,256 11,490 4 178,750 54,739 6,524 3 61,266
Not rated 66,840 8,409 1,405 76,654 108,739 17,967 1,997 128,703
Total gross fixed income
securities 333,167 85,741 1,409 420,317 820,817 ,3c1 2,000 964,121
Incl. impaired securities 21,682 - - 21,682 34,479 - - 34,479
Impairment allowance (14,518) - - (14,518) (22,828) - - (22,828)
Total net fixed income
securities 318,649 85,741 1,409 405,799 797,989 31 2,000 941,293
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GEOGRAPHICAL PROFILE

The following tables provides an analysis of theo@r’'s and Bank’s assets and liabilities, as wellmesnorandum items
outstanding as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 byraglnigal profile. The grouping by is done basedrdormation about the
residence of the respective counterparties.

Group as at 31/12/2009, LVL 000'’s

Latvia Lithuania OtherEU CIS Other Total
countries countries countries

Assets
Cash and deposits with central banks 121,955 12,079 20,304 - 3,164 157,502
Balances due from credit institutions 10,462 2,388 22,411 8,166 77,409 220,836
Securities held for trading 2,055 - 4 121 672 2,852
Financial assets designated at fair value through

profit or loss 1,470 - 1,300 - - 2,770
Available-for-sale securities 10,621 9,920 56,407 1,342 26,059 114,349
Loans and receivables to customers 874,287 289,91445,238 264,185 86,742 1,660,368
Held-to-maturity securities 198,094 - 26,673 51,148 23,456 299,371
Derivatives financial instruments 1,515 - 337 61 1,913
Other assets 109,556 7,977 883 18,358 162 136,936

Total assets

1,330,015 322,280

373,557 353,320 217,725 2,596,897

Liabilities
Financial liabilities designated at fair value thgh

profit or loss 709 - - - - 709
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 34%,186 97,261 634,853 55,318 307,627 2,440,245
Derivative financial instruments 718 - 92 127 937
Other liabilities 9,764 1,194 1,198 3,363 537 16,056
Total liabilities 1,356,377 98,455 636,143 58,681 308,291 2,457,947
Equity 138,950 - - - - 138,950
Total liabilities and equity 1,495,327 98,455 636,143 58,681 308,291 2,596,897
Memorandum items
Contingent liabilities 1,383 1,873 306 1,373 1,891 6,826
Financial commitments 76,907 14,091 703 10,332 24,055 126,088

Group as at 31/12/2008, LVL 000's
Latvia Lithuania Other EU CIS Other Total
countries countries countries

Assets
Cash and deposits with central banks 77,7009,654 17,472 1 1,516 116,350
Balances due from credit institutions 7,654 274 168,289 22,534 75,973 274,724
Securities held for trading 2,277 28 451 2,751 1,208 6,715
Financial assets designated at fair value through

profit or loss 1,160 - 469 - - 1,629
Available-for-sale securities 17,576 1,898 87,641 21,999 29,577 158,691
Loans and receivables to customers 1,043,1340,395 170,945 352,897 119,6202,036,001
Held-to-maturity securities 631,994 - 27,810 68,905 29,837 758,546
Derivatives financial instruments 2,503 84 14,646 154 1,816 19,203
Other assets 91,892 8,886 1,026 10,019 121 111,944

Total assets

1,875,907 380,219

488,749 479,260

259,6683,483,803

Liabilities
Financial liabilities designated at fair value thgh

profit or loss 314 - - - - 314
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 860,861 78,174 912,767 93,814 411,2793,356,895
Derivative financial instruments 687 - 3,272 3,661 1,889 9,509
Other liabilities 29,197 1,420 979 6,240 178 38,014
Total liabilities 1,891,059 79,594 917,018 103,715 413,3463,404,732
Equity 79,071 - - - - 79,071

Total liabilities and equity

Memorandum items
Contingent liabilities
Financial commitments

1,970,130 79,594

917,018 103,715

413,3463,483,803

4,179 4,981
117,736 22,621

4,225 27,224
2,446 25,920

17,234 57,843
10,909 179,632
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Bank as at 31/12/2009, LVL 000’s

Assets

Cash and deposits with central banks

Balances due from credit institutions

Securities held for trading

Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss

Available-for-sale securities

Loans and receivables to customers

Held-to-maturity securities

Derivatives financial instruments

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Derivative financial instruments

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Total liabilities and equity

Memorandum items
Contingent liabilities
Financial commitments

Assets

Cash and deposits with central banks

Balances due from credit institutions

Securities held for trading

Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss

Available-for-sale securities

Loans and receivables to customers

Held-to-maturity securities

Derivatives financial instruments

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Derivative financial instruments

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Total liabilities and equity

Memorandum items
Contingent liabilities
Financial commitments

Latvia Lithuania OtherEU CIS Other Total
countries countries countries
121,955 - 20,30 - - 142,259
9,839 142,001111,642 1,458 60,929 325,869
2,055 - 4 121 672 2,852
10,408 - 47,472 16,81 21,503 95,199
920,782 57,32943,330 237,243 86,722 1,445,406
198,093 - 25,033 82,111 13,412 318,649
1,495 29 337 - 61 1,922
138,401 28 358 173 34 138,994
1,403,028 199,387 348,480 336,922 183,333 2,471,150
34%,133 7,178 623,545 49,254 283,039 2,308,149
712 31 92 - 127 962
8,075 5 1,139 114 37 9,370
1,353,920 7,214 624,776 49,368 283,203 2,318,481
152,669 - - - - 152,669
1,506,589 7,214 624,776 49,368 283,203 2,471,150
1,368 367 127 8,607 995 11,464
106,364 8,934 5,938 21,032 24,055 166,323
Bank as at 31/12/2008, LVL 000’s
Latvia Lithuania OtherEU CIS Other Total
countries countries countries
77,707 - 17,472 - - 95,179
6,273 285,287151,169 10,755 45,201 498,685
2,277 28 451 2,437 8,20 6,401
17,374 - 85,340 21,98 29,027 153,722
1,090,943 75,85467,476 291,528 119,068 1,744,871
631,994 - 25,340 128,61 15,042 797,989
2,336 200 14,646 154 1,816 19,152
101,460 - 580 - 102,040
1,930,364 361,371 462,474 452,468 211,362 3,418,039
86%,152 72,474 908,288 88,504 370,580 3,304,998
680 169 3,272 3,66 1,888 9,670
25,147 - 736 - - 25,883
1,890,979 72,643 912,296 92,165 372,468 3,340,551
77,488 - - - - 77,488
1,968,467 72,643 912,296 92,165 372,468 3,418,039
4,145 2,161 3,778 26,846 15,809 52,739
130,150 78,353 3,939 46,167 10,909 269,518
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b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the Group will incuri@ss as a result of the mark-to-market revaluatibbalance sheet and off-
balance sheet items caused by changes in markegsvaf financial instruments, commodities and coxfityaderivatives due to
changes in foreign exchange rates, interest ratkother factors.

Position risk of financial instruments is assessed limits are set by the Financial Market and Cerpgrty Committee
(FMCC). The decisions of FMCC are approved by the BaMémagement Board. Market risk is managed by theu®so
business units and subsidiaries which can accepkemaisk in line with the set limits and investmewestrictions of the
respective portfolio. Market risk is measured, nhomgid and risk levels are reported by Risk and Canpé Sector.

To assess the position risk, scenario analysippfierl. Scenario analysis is based on historic dathprice changes of various
financial instruments in different low probabilibigh impact scenarios. For example, a flight-tolyacenario assumes that
investors move their capital from riskier investisetowards safer investments (for instance, U.Sitloer AAA-rated sovereign
bonds). To manage market risk, the Group sets ishai limits to issuers and financial instrumeras,well as products exposed
to market risk.

c) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the Group witicur a loss due to changes in equity prices. Equie risk is assessed and
decisions on limits set are made by the Financiatkét and Counterparty Committee. Further the detisEp made are
approved by the Bank’s Management Board.

To assess equity price risk, the Group appliestieaario analysis "flight-to-quality” which refdrsa fear of investors of global
systemic failure when investors start selling asety consider to be overly risky and substitutimgm with more dependable
ones. According to the Group’s equity price riskesment as at 31 December 2009 and 2008, in ¢émé #nat all equity (also
including also investments in investment fundsggsidrop by 10% for equities in OECD countries, 20Baltic countries and
CIS countries and 15% - other equities, revaluatiss in the income statement and revaluation lbasged directly to equity
would increase by approximately LVL 0.6 million @® LVL 0.6 million) and LVL 1.1 million (2008: LVL2.4 million),
respectively.

d) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is related to the negative impéinterest rate changes on the Group’s inconteemonomic value.

Interest rate risk management in the Group is @drout in accordance with the Group’s Interest Ritk Management Policy.
Interest rate risk is assessed and decisions ate maAssets and Liabilities Management CommittdeQ@). The decisions of
ALCO are approved by the Bank's Management Board. AISE® the acceptable interest rate risk level aa@tioup’s internal

limit system, monitors the compliance with the ayyed limits and use of the instruments for the rgan@ent of interest rate
risk. Interest rate risk measurement and manageisettie responsibility of Treasury Sector, whilskrireporting is the

responsibility of Risk and Compliance Sector.

The Group manages interest rate risk by using #peamalysis of the risk sensitive assets and fii@si] duration analysis and
sensitivity analysis of assets and liabilities adlvas stress testing of interest rate risk. Basedhe market analysis and the
Group’s financing structure, ALCO sets customer dépoterest rates. During the period when restitt are imposed on the
Bank’s activities, these functions are carried opthe Bank’s Management Board. Partially, the Groujgates interest rate

risk using derivatives.

The following table represents the impact of a lelrahange in all interest rates by 1.0% on Greugmd Bank’s pre-tax profit
(in 12-months time) and available-for-sale secesitfair value revaluation reserve in equity:

Scenario: +1% LVL 000's
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Pre-tax profit/ (loss) (865) (5,114) (32) (3,694
Securities fair value revaluation reserve (1,770) (2,034) (2,424) (1,987)
Total pre-tax effect on equity (2,635) (7,148) (@55) (5,681)
Estimated net effect on equity (2,240) (6,076) (B7) (4,829)
Scenario: -1%
Pre-tax profit 848 5,117 32 3,676
Securities fair value revaluation reserve 1,875 16Q, 2,848 2,113
Total pre-tax effect on equity 2,723 7,277 2,880 5,789
Estimated net effect on equity 2,315 6,185 2,449 4,921
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The following table represents the impact of a sgvieVL interest rate change scenarios on the Bdni's-tax profit (in 12-
months time) and available-for-sale securitieg’ Yailue revaluation reserve in equity.

Scenario +5% +10% +15% -5%
2009 2009 2009 2009
Pre-tax profit/ (loss) (7,500) (14,819) (21,965) 7,689
Securities fair value revaluation reserve (240) 46(4 (626) 280
Total pre-tax effect on equity (7,740) (15,265) 22591) 7,969
Estimated net effect on equity (6,579) (12,975) q202) 6,774
2008 2008 2008 2008
Pre-tax profit (18,568) (37,269) (56,094) 18,423
Securities fair value revaluation reserve (387) 1797 (1,002) 459
Total pre-tax effect on equity (18,955) (37,986) 57,096) 18,882
Estimated net effect on equity (16,112) (32,288) 48,532) 16,050

* The Bank's LVL-denominated financial assets dabilities constitute almost all of the Group’s L\enominated financial
assets and liabilities.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The concept of fair value assumes realisationr@fricial instruments by way of a sale. However, anyncases, particularly in
respect of loans and receivables to customersGthap intends to realise assets through colleaticgr time. Users of these
financial statements are therefore advised to aséan when using this data to evaluate the Grofipascial position.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset coel@xchanged, or a liability settled, between kndgéable and willing parties
in an arm’s length transaction. The fair valueigéild financial assets has been determined usidgtces, while offer prices
have been used to determine the fair value of Girdufiabilities.

For illiquid financial assets and liabilities, inding loans and advances to customers, there adgefimition, no active markets.
Accordingly, fair value has been estimated usingrapriate valuation techniques. The methods usetttermine the fair value
of balance sheet items not carried at fair valeeaarfollows:

Cash and demand deposits with central banks
The fair value of cash and balances with centrakbas their carrying amount as these balances meayithdrawn without
notice.

Balances due from and credit institutions/ Balandes to credit institutions and central banks

The fair value of on-demand balances with credstifations is their carrying amount as these baanmay be withdrawn

without notice. The fair value of overnight placertgis their carrying amount. The fair value ofeatlhmounts due from banks
is calculated by discounting expected cash flonimgugurrent market rates. In many cases, the cagryalue is a close

representation of fair value due to short-term migtprofiles.

Loans and receivables to customers

The fair value of loans and advances to custongecslculated by discounting expected future casis] The discount rates
consist of money market rates as at the end ofamaicredit margins, which are adjusted for curmsattket conditions. If all the
assumed discount rates would change by 10%, thedhie of the loan portfolio would change by LVR.& million.

Held to maturity securities
Held to maturity securities are valued using unstaéjd quoted prices in active markets, where availdb other instances, either
quotes of market participants are used or valugeofirities is determined using valuation modelsleynpg observable or non-
observable market inputs.

Customer deposits

The fair value of customer deposits repayable anade is their carrying amount. The fair value dfestdeposits is calculated
by discounting expected cash flows using averag&ehanterest rates close to or at year-end. Iftal assumed discount rates
would change by 10%, the fair value of the deppsitfolio would change by LVL 0.9 million.

Issued debt and subordinated liabilities
Due to illiquidity of all the subordinated liabikis as at the end of year, it was assumed thdtesteestimate of fair value are the
quotes of market participants provided for theelistiebt instruments.
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Fair value hierarchy

Quoted market prices

Financial instruments are valued using unadjustedeyl prices in active markets.

Valuation technique - observable market inputs

Financial instruments are valued using techniqused on observable market data. In some instavalesitions received from

independent third party are used.

Valuation technique - non-market observable inputs

Financial instruments are valued using techniqaesvhich significant inputs are not based on obsele market data.

The following table presents fair values of Groujr&ncial assets and liabilities as at 31 Decer20€9.

3

Fair value
. . Valuation
Carrying tAdjuspment Quoted Valugtlon technique -
value 0 (grrlve at) market technique - non-market
fair value . observable
prices . observable
market inputs .
inputs
Cash and demand deposits with
central banks 157,502 - - 145,423 12,079
Balances due from credit institution 220,836 - - 220,836 -
Held-for-trading securities 2,852 - 2,852 -
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss 2,770 - 2,770 - -
Derivatives 1,913 - - 1,913 -
Available-for-sale securities 114,349 1,224 115,573 - -
Loans and receivables to customers 1,660,368 (36,136) - - 1,624,232
Held to maturity securities 299,371 (51,914) 233,518 13,939 -
Total financial assets 2,459,961 (86,826) 354,713 382,111 1,636,311
Derivatives 937 - - 937 -
Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss 709 - 709 - -
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Balances due to credit institutions
and central banks 552,466 (162) - 552,301
Customer deposits 1,687,849 (3,353) - 32,532 19681
Issued debt 90,551 (11,796) 78,755 -
Subordinated liabilities 103,949 (13,514) - - Bh4
Other financial liabilities 5,430 (1,169) - - 46
Total financial liabilities 2,441,891 (29,994) 9,464 585,770 1,746,663
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The following table presents fair values of Groujr&ncial assets and liabilities as at 31 Decer20€8.

Fair value
. . Valuation
Carrying tAdJus.tment Quoted Valugtlon technique -
value ° (grrlve a) market technique - non-market
fair value ! observable
prices . observable
market inputs .
inputs
Cash and demand deposits with
central banks 116,350 - - 116,350 -
Balances due from credit institution 274,724 2 - 274,726 -
Held-for-trading securities 6,715 - 4,319 2,396 -
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss 1,629 - 1,629 - -
Derivatives 19,203 - - 19,203 -
Available-for-sale securities 158,691 - 112,819 45,872 -
Loans and receivables to customers 2,036,001 148,958 - - 2,184,959
Held to maturity securities 758,546 (54,346) 111,431 592,769 -
Total financial assets 3,371,859 94,614 230,198 1,051,316 2,184,959
Derivatives 9,509 - - 9,509 -
Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss 314 - 314 - -
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Balances due to credit
institutions and central banks 1,189,621 1,212 - 190,600 233
Customer deposits 2,022,994 (1,696) - 120,275 11023
Issued debt 88,982 (70,970) - - 18,012
Subordinated liabilities 52,957 (45,013) - - 7,944
Other financial liabilities 2,341 277 - 2,618 -
Total financial liabilities 3,366,718 (116,190) 314 1,323,002 1,927,212
The following table presents fair values of Bank®mhcial assets and liabilities as at 31 Decembép?2
Fair value
. . Valuation
Carrying tAdJus_tment Quoted Valuatlon technique -
value ° (grrlve ay market technique - non-market
fair value . observable
prices - observable
market inputs .
inputs
Cash and demand deposits with
central banks 142,259 - - 142,259 -
Balances due from credit institution 325,869 - - 325,869 -
Held-for-trading securities 2,852 - 2,852 -
Derivatives 1,922 - - 1,922 -
Available-for-sale securities 95,199 1,224 96,423 - -
Loans and receivables to customers 1,445,406 (36,832) - - 1,408,574
Held to maturity securities 318,649 (53,235) 265,414 - -
Total financial assets 2,332,156 (88,843) 364,689 470,050 1,408,574
Derivatives 962 - - 962 -
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Balances due to credit institutions
and central banks 572,782 - - 572,782 -
Customer deposits 1,540,669 (1,923) - - 1,538,746
Issued debt 90,742 (11,796) 78,946 - -
Subordinated liabilities 103,956 (13,514) - - AP4
Total financial liabilities 2,309,111 (27,233) 78,946 573,744 1,629,188
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The following table presents fair values of Bankshcial assets and liabilities as at 31 DecembéB2

Cash and demand deposits with

central banks

Balances due from credit institution

Held-for-trading securities
Derivatives
Available-for-sale securities

Loans and receivables to customers

Held to maturity securities
Total financial assets

Derivatives

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

Balances due to credit

institutions and central banks

Customer deposits

Issued debt

Subordinated liabilities
Total financial liabilities

e) Currency risk

Fair value
. Adjustment Valuation Valuatlon
Carrying to (arrive at) Quoted techni i technique -
value : market que non-market
fair value : observable
prices market inputs ob_servable
inputs
95,179 - - 95,179 -
498,685 - - 498,685 -
6,401 - 4,005 2,396 -
19,152 - - 19,152 -
153,722 - 108,072 45,650 -
1,744,871 140,567 - - 1,885,438
797,989 (52,860) 170,790 574,339 -
3,315,999 87,707 282,867 1,235,401 1,885,438
9,670 - - 9,670 -
1,261,440 - 1,260, -
1,901,886 (863) - 1,901,023
88,712 (70,970) - - 17,742
52,960 (45,016) - - 7,944
3,314,668 (116,849) - 1,271,110 1,926,709

Currency risk is a risk of loss arising from fludieas in currency exchange rates.

Currency risk management in the Group is carriediouiccordance with the Group’s Currency Risk Manag@niPolicy.
Currency risk is assessed and decisions on limitareemade by the Financial Market and Counterpg@adammittee (FMCC).

The decisions of FMCC are approved by the Bank’s Mamagt Board. FMCC defines the acceptable currencyaigk and
the Group’s internal limit system, as well as morgtcompliance with these limits.

Day-to-day currency risk management is the resjpditgi of Treasury Sector, while risk monitoring camreporting is the
responsibility of Risk and Compliance Sector. Theuprbas set a limit for open currency positionsanhecurrency at 10% of
its equity, and the limit for the total open curgrposition at 20% of its equity. The limits areuafjto the requirements by
Latvian legislation. To manage the currency risie Group and Bank derivative financial instrumeifits.assess currency risk,
the Group uses scenario analysis. In the evenkafamge rates for all currencies in which the Grangd the Bank has open
positions adversely change by 1%, the potential tdecrease in the Group’s and Bank’s pre-tax pmgiild amount to
approximately LVL 1.1 million and LVL 0.9 millionsaat 31 December 2009 and LVL 3.3 million and LV.D iillion as at 31

December 2008, accordingly.

As at the date of approval of this report, duedntiniuing limited access to currency risk mitigatimstruments, the Bank and
Group was not able to comply with the limit for tte¢al open currency position, as well as for tingle open currency positions

in EUR (Bank) and LTL (Group). The full compliancdlvee restored, once the Bank is able to operateefmre in the financial
markets and re-opens the limits with currency deale
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The following table provides an analysis of the @rs and Bank’s assets and liabilities and sharemsldequity as well as

memorandum items outstanding as at 31 December 2002008 by currency profile:

Group as at 31/12/2009, LVL 000's

LVL UsD EUR UAH EEK LTL RUB  Other Total

Assets
Cash and deposits with central

banks 121,304 3,462 11,524 4 676 10,839 341 9,352 157,502
Balances due from credit

institutions 596 89,125 116,541 329 18 111 5,032 9,084 220,836
Securities held for trading 650 577 1,409 - - - - 216 2,852
Financial assets designated at fair

value through profit or loss 656 143 1,971 - - - - - 2,770
Available-for-sale securities 3,708 21,119 74,618 2,914 - 2,338 3,011 6,641 114,349
Loans and receivables to

customers 64,495 306,344 1,157,850 3,930 17,831 84,489 11,45613,973 1,660,368
Held-to-maturity securities 173,883 66,473 59,015 - - - - - 299,371
Derivatives financial instruments 1,580 238 64 - 11 20 - - 1,913
Other assets 100,769 2,538 6,813 2,268 538 7,770 14,3891,851 136,936
Total assets 467,641 490,019 1,429,805 9,445 19,074 105,567  34,22941,117 2,596,897
Liabilities
Financial liabilities designated at

fair value through profit or loss - 143 566 - - - - - 709
Financial liabilities measured at

amortised cost 383,761 248,317 1,670,824 6 24,334 59,024 7,90746,072 2,440,245
Derivative financial instruments 849 3 63 - 18 4 - - 937
Other liabilities 6,786 1,574 2,274 480 153 745 2,615 1,429 16,056
Total liabilities 391,396 250,037 1,673,727 486 24,505 59,773  10,52217,501 2,457,947
Equity 138,950 - - - - - - - 138,950
Total liabilities and equity 530,346 250,037 1,673,727 486 24,505 59,773 10,5227,501 2,596,897
Net long/ (short) position for

balance sheet items (62,705) 239,982 (243,922) 8,959 (5,431) 45,794 23,7076,384)
Off-balance sheet claims arising

from foreign exchange
Spot exchange contracts 3,552 78 (1,419) - - 3) (25) (2,158) 25
Forward foreign exchange

contracts 5,995 1,213 (7,116) - 4 - - - 96
Swap exchange contracts (1,627) (257,062) 257,238 - (6,915) - (13,732)22,710 612
Net long/ (short) positions on

foreign exchange 7,920 (255,771)248,703 - (6,911) (3) (13,757)20,552 733
Net long/ (short) position as at

31 December 2009 (54,785) (15,789) 4,781 8,959 (12,342) 45,791 9,9504,168 733
Exchange rates applied as at 31

December 2009 (LVL for 1

foreign currency unit) - 0.489 0.702804 0.06100 0.0449 0.2040 0.0164 - -
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Group as at 31/12/2008, LVL 000’'s

LVL usD EUR UAH EEK LTL RUB  Other Total

Assets
Cash and deposits with central

banks 59,506 5,795 16,808 25 11,512 18,243 367 4,094 116,350
Balances due from credit

institutions 5,867 72,930 172,958 2,041 6 59 4,79016,073 274,724
Securities held for trading 764 3,774 1,516 - 114 28 358 161 6,715
Financial assets designated at fair

value through profit or loss 713 76 840 - - - - - 1,629
Available-for-sale securities 11,379 22,358110,902 3,779 - 1,898 7,157 1,218 158,691
Loans and receivables to

customers 144,615 395,581,300,506 1,099 24,467 126,778 24,987 17,968 2,036,001
Held-to-maturity securities 374,829 85,439298,278 - - - - - 758,546
Derivatives financial instruments 11,871 668 6,495 - - 167 - 2 19,203
Other assets 84,802 2,972 4,488 1,967 460 8,563 7,681 1,011 111,944
Total assets 694,346 589,593,912,791 8,911 36,559 155,736  45,34040,527 3,483,803
Liabilities
Financial liabilities designated at

fair value through profit or loss 173 55 86 - - - - - 314
Financial liabilities measured at

amortised cost 828,123 445,785949,085 1,152 13,013 54,436 4,84%0,458 3,356,895
Derivative financial instruments 7,280 2,047 53 - 1 7 - 121 9,509
Other liabilities 13,696 6,681 6,804 459 492 1,101 4,923 3,858 38,014
Total liabilities 849,272 454,5681,956,028 1,611 13,506 55,544 9,7664,437 3,404,732
Equity 79,071 - - - - - - - 79,071
Total liabilities and equity 928,343 454,5681,956,028 1,611 13,506 55,544 9,7664,437 3,483,803
Net long/ (short) position for

balance sheet items (233,997) 135,025 (43,237) 7,300 23,053 100,192 35,5723,910) -
Off-balance sheet claims arising

from foreign exchange
Spot exchange contracts (2,622) 2,952 - - (584) - 356 102
Forward foreign exchange

contracts 22,916 2,319 (41,657) - - 17,552 - (26) 1,104
Swap exchange contracts 241,646(160,104 (64,850) - - (10,091) (29,931) 30,302 6,972
Net long/ (short) positions on

foreign exchange 264,562160,407 (103,555) - - 6,877 (29,931) 30,632 8,178
Net long/ (short) position as at

31 December 2008 30,565 (25,382)(146,792) 7,300 23,053 107,069 5,6436,722 8,178
Exchange rates applied as at 31

December 2008 (LVL for 1

foreign currency unit) 0.495 0.702804 0.0656 0.0449 0.203 0.0171 - -
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Bank as at 31/12/2009, LVL 000’'s

Assets

Cash and deposits with central
banks

Balances due from credit
institutions

Securities held for trading

Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss

Available-for-sale securities

Loans and receivables to customers

Held-to-maturity securities
Derivatives financial instruments
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost

Derivative financial instruments

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Total liabilities and equity

Net long/ (short) position for
balance sheet items

Off-balance sheet claims arising
from foreign exchange

Spot exchange contracts

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Swap exchange contracts

Net long/ (short) positions on
foreign exchange

Net long/ (short) position as at
31 December 2009

Exchange rates applied as at 31
December 2009 (LVL for 1
foreign currency unit)

LVL USD EUR UAH EEK LTL RUB  Other  Total
121,297 3,051 10,742 1 663 157 304 6,044 142,259
- 89,782 231,303 4 13 34 652 4,081 325,869

650 577 1,409 - - - - 216 2,852
3,654 19,446 64,890 ,912 - - 2964 1,331 95199
63,516 296,90057551 3 12,384 568 598 13,877 1,445,406
173,883 70,084 57,647 - - - 17,035 - 318,649
1,609 238 64 - 11 - - - 1,922
133,250 2,291 3,155 3 33 48 22 192 138,994
497,859 482,378 1,426,761 2,9253,104 807 21,575 25,741 2,471,150
384,312 227,963 1,620,446 P4,344 160 7,658 43,260 2,308,149
878 3 63 - 18 - - - 962
5,857 1,435 1,649 - 108 3 83 235 9,370
391,047 229,401 1,622,158 624,470 163 7,741 43,495 2,318,481
152,669 - - - - - - - 152,669
543,716 229,401 1,622,158 624,470 163 7,741 43,495 2,471,150
(45,857) 252,977 (195,397) 2,919 (11,366) 644  13,83417,754) -
3,555 88 (1,609) - - 141 - (2,148) 27
5,996 998 (6,903 - 4 - - - 95
(1,628) (260,337) 261,910 - (6,915)  (1,02Q)13,979) 22,566 597
7,923 (259,251) 253,398 - (6,911)(879) (13,979) 20,418 719
(37,934) (6,274) 58,001 2,919 (18,277) (235)  (145) 2,664 719
- 0.489 0.702804 0.06100 0.0449 0.2040 0.0164 - -
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Bank as at 31/12/2008, LVL 000’s

LVL UsD EUR UAH EEK LTL RUB  Other Total

Assets
Cash and deposits with central banks 59,483,275 15,852 22 11,507 290 323 2,427 95,179
Balances due from credit institutions 4,68%9,168 409,951 4 2 1,673 1,491 1,711 498,685
Securities held for trading 764 3,774 1,516 - 114 28 44 161 6,401
Financial assets designated at fair

value through profit or loss - - - - - - - - -
Available-for-sale securities 11,37922,332 107,857 3,779 - - 7,157 1,218 153,722
Loans and receivables to customers 129,362,279 1,215,482 967 16,236 677 2,274 17,689 1,744,871
Held-to-maturity securities 374,82992,719 306,436 - - - 24,005 - 797,989
Derivatives financial instruments 11,989 668 6,495 - - - - - 19,152
Other assets 97,080 2,862 1,721 4 15 84 170 104 102,040
Total assets 689,476669,077 2,065,310 4,776 27,874 2,752 35,464 23,310 3,418,039
Liabilities
Financial liabilities designated at fair

value through profit or loss - - - - - - - - -
Financial liabilities measured at

amortised cost 830,96431,471 1,968,113 934 13,349 284 4,456 55,430 3,304,998
Derivative financial instruments 7,569 2,047 53 - 1 - - - 9,670
Other liabilities 10,125 6,570 5,883 1 428 85 1579 1,212 25,883
Total liabilities 848,655 440,088 1,974,049 935 13,778 369 6,035 56,642 3,340,551
Equity 77,488 - - - - - - - 77,488
Total liabilities and equity 926,143 440,088 1,974,049 935 13,778 369 6,035 56,642 3,418,039
Net long/ (short) position for

balance sheet items (236,667 128,989 91,261 3,841 14,096 2,383  29,42933,332) -
Off-balance sheet claims arising from

foreign exchange
Spot exchange contracts {2,645) (9,635) - - 11,916 - 349 (15)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 22,9161,358  (40,836) - - 17,568 - (26) 980
Swap exchange contracts 241,646159,359 (65,666) - - (10,091) (29,931) 30,302 6,901
Net long/ (short) positions on foreign
exchange 264,56260,646) (116,137) - - 19,393 (29,931)30,625 7,866
Net long/ (short) position as at

31 December 2008 27,895 (31,657) (24,876) 3,841 14,096 21,776 (502)(2,707) 7,866
Exchange rates applied as at 31

December 2008 (LVL for 1 foreign

currency unit) - 0.495 0.702804 0.0656 0.0449 0.203 0.0171 - -
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f)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will benable to meet its legal payment obligations. Theppse of liquidity risk
management is to ensure the availability of liqasdets sufficient to meet potential obligations.

The Group manages its liquidity risk in accordamdth the Group’s Liquidity Risk Management Policyiqlidity risk is
assessed and decisions are made by ALCO. The dexizicdALCO are approved by the Bank’'s Management Bast@O sets
the acceptable liquidity risk level, the Group’seimal limit system and defines instruments forrtenagement of liquidity risk,
as well as monitors the compliance with the settdinLiquidity risk management is the responsipilif the Treasury Sector,
while risk measuring, monitoring and reporting ighin the responsibility of the Risk and Complianez®r.

Liquidity risk is assessed and related decisioms raade by the Bank's Management Board. Daily liquidianagement is
ensured by the Treasury Sector in collaboratiom Winance department. However the main sourcegafdity is the funding
provided by the State Treasury. By persistently owprg the liquidity situation, the Bank as of Jufyin compliance with
liquidity ratio requirements. Also starting fromrjmel ended in August the Bank meets mandatory reserguirements in the
Bank of Latvia.

In 2009, when there were restrictions imposed @enBank's activities, liquidity risk is assessed aeldted decisions are made
by the Bank’s Management Board. Daily liquidity masagnt is ensured by the Treasury Sector in colélmor with Finance
department. The main source of liquidity cushiothia beginning of 2009 was the funding providedhsyState Treasury. In the
second half of 2009, the Bank started to accumuatate liquidity reserve and no additional State suppas needed. For more
information on liquidity support received from tBéate Treasury, please refer to Note 24.

The following table contains Bank’s liquidity ratioalculated in accordance with FCMC requirements:

Year High Low Average Year-end
2009 44% 24% 34% 41%
2008 56% 30% 40% 55%

Liquidity ratio is calculated as liquid assets dedl by all liabilities with remaining contractualatarity of 30 days or less.
Liquid assets for the purpose of the calculatianaash, balances due from Bank of Latvia and soluelit institutions placed
on demand and up to 30 days and balances redeebefble maturity with insignificant contractual @dties and investments
in securities that can be sold in short time odgé to obtain a loan.
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Group’s assets, liabilities and memorandum itemsdmytractual maturity structure as at 31 Decemb@02

Group as at 31/12/2009, LVL 000’s

Over 5
Within 1-3 3-6 6-12 1-5 yearsand
1 month  months months months years undated Total

Assets
Cash and deposits with central banks 157,502 - - - - - 157,502
Balances due from credit institutions 216,010 3,915 459 54 136 262 220,836
Securities held for trading 624 - - - 781 1,447 2,852
Financial assets designated at fair value

through profit or loss - 463 662 72 527 1,046 2,770
Available-for-sale securities 75 3,922 4879 12,613 38,613 54,247 114,349
Loans and receivables to customers 89,01230,757 23,907 194,56t 515,56 606,565 1,660,36¢
Held-to-maturity securities 989 14,463 4715 2,562 163,594 113,048 299,371
Derivatives financial instruments 1,349 256 58 171 79 - 1,913
Other assets 11,875 3,650 11,496 3,075 18,394 88,446 136,936
Total assets 477,437 257,42€ 46,176 213,11z 737,687 865,059 2,596,897
Liabilities
Financial liabilities designated at fair value

through profit or loss - - - - 709 - 709
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 949,677 895,845 68,845 102,05 319,737 104,08¢ 2,440,24¢
Derivative financial instruments 840 38 3 4 52 - 937
Other liabilities 8,492 2,415 324 1,523 1,235 2,067 16,056
Total liabilities 959,009 898,29€¢ 69,172 103,58C 321,73% 106,155 2,457,94
Equity - - - - - 138,950 138,950
Total liabilities and equity 959,009 898,29¢ 69,172 103,58C 321,73 245,105 2,596,897
Net balance sheet position — long/ (short) (481)57(540,872) (22,996) 109,53z 415,954 619,954 -
Memorandum items
Contingent liabilities 6,826 - - - - - 6,826
Financial commitments 126,088 - - - - - 126,088

As described in Note 24, the FCMC has imposed cedi@wdown restrictions on the customer deposite@Bank. However,

for the purposes of the disclosures in this notedéposits are classified in accordance with tbamtractual maturities. As at
31 December 2009, LVL 280 million (2008: LVL 611llain) of deposits qualified for the restrictionscarding to the FCMC'’s

decision. The management of the Bank believes HeaBank’s liquidity position is and will be such @sallow the Bank to

operate on a going concern basis for a period leflst 12 months from the date of signing thisrftial report.

Group’s contractual undiscounted cash flows offthancial liabilities as at 31 December 2009

The following table represents the analysis ofdbmated contractual cash flows arising from Gietipancial liabilities as at
31 December 2009:

LVL 000’s

Total
Within 1-3 3-6 6-12 1-5 Over contractual
1 month  months months months years 5 years cash flows

Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss - - - 2 709 - 711
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 5,080 898,796 75,501 108,949 384,314 107,135 2,539,785

Memorandum items
Contingent liabilities 6,826 - - - - - 6,826
Financial commitments 126,088 - - - - - 126,088

As described in Note 24, FCMC has imposed certa@vdown restrictions on customer funds at the BardwéVer, for the
purposes of this analysis, it is assumed that coh sestrictions exist.
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Group’s assets, liabilities and memorandum itemsdnytractual maturity structure as at 31 Decemb@o@

Group as at 31/12/2008, LVL 000’s

Over 5
Within 1-3 3-6 6-12 1-5 years and
1 month months months months years undated Total
Assets
Cash and deposits with central banks 116,350 - - - - - 116,350
Balances due from credit institutions 235,38122,349 14,132 2,321 499 42 274,724
Securities held for trading - - 67 - 2,244 4,404 6,715
Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss 319 - 637 - 929 574 1,629
Available-for-sale securities 747 6,619 7,699 7,506 81,051 55,069 158,691
Loans and receivables to customers 37,51%58,143 129,987 145,975 775,117 889,268 2,036,001
Held-to-maturity securities - 5,287 37,571 418,167 155,343 142,178 758,546
Derivatives financial instruments 10,695 936 335 420 6,808 9 19,203
Other assets 7,003 2,913 618 2,492 2,710 96,208 111,944
Total assets 408,006 96,247 191,046 576,8811,023,8711,187,752 3,483,803
Liabilities
Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss - - - 314 314

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 874,789 433,773 502,768 318,574 166,297 58,694 3,356,895

Derivative financial instruments 6,028 398 301 735 2,047 - 9,509
Other liabilities 19,978 1,385 106 5,862 1,526 9,157 38,014
Total liabilities 1,902,795 435,556 503,175 325,171 169,870 68,165 3,404,732
Equity - - - - - 79,071 79,071
Total liabilities and equity 1,902,795 435,556 503,175 325,171 169,870 147,236 3,483,803
Net balance sheet position — long/ (short) (1,489)1339,309)(312,129) 251,710 854,0011,040,516 -

Memorandum items

Contingent liabilities 57,843 - - - - - 57,483
Financial commitments 179,632 - - - - - 179,632

Group’s contractual undiscounted cash flows offthancial liabilities as at 31 December 2008

The following table represents the analysis ofdbmated contractual cash flows arising from Gietipancial liabilities as at
31 December 2008:

LVL 000's

Total
Within 1-3 3-6 6-12 1-5 Over 5 contractual
1 month months months months years years cash flows

Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss - - - - - 314 314

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 938,368 454,253 542,712 318,365 179,240 71,487 3,504,425

Memorandum items
Contingent liabilities 57,843 - - - - - 57,843
Financial commitments 179,632 - - - - - 179,632
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Bank’s assets, liabilities and memorandum itemsdmtractual maturity structure as at 31 Decembed20

Bank as at 31/12/2009, LVL 000's

Over 5
Within 1-3 3-6 6-12 1-5 yearsand
1 month  months months months years undated Total
Assets
Cash and deposits with central banks 142,259 - - - - - 142,259
Balances due from credit institutions 183,97817,901 123,990 - - - 325,869
Securities held for trading 624 - - - 781 1,447 2,852
Available-for-sale securities - 2,010 - 4,724 36,388 52,077 95,199
Loans and receivables to customers 21,353 236,415 65,822 165,87¢ 406,364 549,57% 1,445,40¢
Held-to-maturity securities 989 14,545 7,140 17,248 168,558 110,169 318,649
Derivatives financial instruments 1,370 244 58 171 79 - 1,922
Other assets 9,193 - - - 13,130 116,671 138,994
Total assets 359,76€ 271,11t 197,01C 188,022 625,30C 829,937 2,471,150
Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 873,761 875,027 54,792 86,918 313,59C 104,061 2,308,14¢
Derivative financial instruments 865 38 3 4 52 - 962
Other liabilities 7,648 - - - - 1,722 9,370
Total liabilities 882,274 875,065 54,795 86,922 313,64z 105,78% 2,318,481
Equity - - - - - 152,669 152,669
Total liabilities and equity 882,274 875,065 54,795 86,922 313,64z 258,452 2,471,150
Net balance sheet position — long/ (short) (52250803,950) 142,21t 101,10C 311,65¢ 571,48t -
Memorandum items
Contingent liabilities 11,464 - - - - - 11,464
Financial commitments 166,323 - - - - - 166,323
Banks’s contractual undiscounted cash flows offitiencial liabilities as at 31 December 2009
LVL 000's
Total

Within 1-3 3-6 6-12 1-5 Over contractual

1 month months months months years 5years cash flows
Financial liabilities measured at

amortised cost 876,085 877,396 61,079 92,996 377,742 107,098 2,392,396

Memorandum items
Contingent liabilities 11,464 - - - - - 11,464
Financial commitments 166,323 - - - - - 166,323

As described in Note 24, FCMC has imposed certagvdown restrictions on customer funds at the BardwéVer, for the
purposes of this analysis, it is assumed that oh sestrictions exist.
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Bank’s assets, liabilities and memorandum itemsdmtractual maturity structure as at 31 Decembed@0

Bank as at 31/12/2008, LVL 000’s

Over 5
Within 1-3 3-6 6-12 1-5 years and
1 month  months months months years undated Total
Assets
Cash and deposits with central banks 95,179 - - - - - 95179
Balances due from credit institutions 449,68621,468 24,872 1,005 1,654 - 498,685
Securities held for trading - - 67 - 1,930 4,404 6,401
Available-for-sale securities - 5,373 7,214 6,089 80,215 54,831 153,722
Loans and receivables to customers 110,0249,084 114,630 135,019 600,119 735,9981,744,871
Held-to-maturity securities 1,846 4,191 42,754 425,730 185,176 138,292 797,989
Derivatives financial instruments 10,644 936 335 420 6,808 9 19,152
Other assets 4,250 - - - - 97,790 102,040
Total assets 671,626 81,052 189,872 568,263 875,9021,031,3243,418,039
Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 879,399 420,098 491,140 292,335 163,338 58,6883,304,998
Derivative financial instruments 6,189 398 301 735 2,047 - 9,670
Other liabilities 16,237 - - 3,956 - 5,690 25,883
Total liabilities 1,901,825 420,496 491,441 297,026 165,385 64,3783,340,551
Equity - - - - - 77,488 77,488
Total liabilities and equity 1,901,825 420,496 491,441 297,026 165,385 141,8663,418,039
Net balance sheet position — long/ (short) (1,2329)1339,444)(301,569) 271,237 710,517 889,458 -
Memorandum items
Contingent liabilities 52,739 - - - - - 52,739
Financial commitments 269,518 - - - - - 269,518
Bank’s contractual undiscounted cash flows of tharfcial liabilities as at 31 December 2008
LVL 000's
Total

Within 1-3 3-6 6-12 1-5 Over contractual

1 month months months months years 5years cash flows
Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost 1,919,754 428,938 532,304 307,232 176,601 71,487 3,436,316

Memorandum items
Contingent liabilities
Financial commitments

52,739 -
269,518 -

52,739
269,518
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Group’s derivative financial liabilities settled @nnet basis and contractual undiscounted cashdlakising from

Group’s derivatives settled on a gross basis é&labecember 2009.
LVL 000’s
Within 1-3 3-6 6-12 1-5 Over
1 month months months months years 5 years Total
Derivatives settled on a net basis
Foreign exchange contracts (830) (27) 3) (4) - - 864
Interest rate derivatives - 3) - - - - 3)
Derivatives settled on a gross basis
Foreign exchange derivatives:
outflow (20,869) (415) - - - - (21,284)
inflow 21,035 426 - - - - 21,461
Other derivatives:
outflow - - - - (53) - (53)
inflow - - - - 41 - 41
Group’s derivative financial liabilities settled @nnet basis and contractual undiscounted cashdlakising from
Group’s derivatives settled on a gross basis é&labecember 2008.
LVL 000’s
Within 1-3 3-6 6-12 1-5 Over
1 month months months months years 5 years Total
Derivatives settled on a net basis
Foreign exchange contracts (5,956) (200) (25) - - - (6,181)
Interest rate derivatives (51) (1,686) (170) (3)326 - - (5,233)
Derivatives settled on a gross basis
Foreign exchange derivatives:
outflow (148,502)  (95,448)  (32,924)  (19,234) - - 962108)
inflow 151,614 97,176 33,720 19,618 - - 302,128
Other derivatives:
outflow - - - - (2,047) - (2,047)
inflow - - - - 376 - 376
Bank’s derivative financial liabilities settled @nnet basis and contractual undiscounted cash flaging from
Bank’s derivatives settled on a gross basis asldb8cember 2009.
LVL 000’s
Within 1-3 3-6 6-12 1-5 Over
1 month months months months years 5 years Total
Derivatives settled on a net basis
Foreign exchange contracts (830) (27) 3) (4) - - 864
Interest rate derivatives - 3) - - - - 3)
Derivatives settled on a gross basis
Foreign exchange derivatives:
outflow (45,875) - - - - - (45,875)
inflow 46,036 - - - - - 46,036
Other derivatives:
outflow - - - - (53) - (53)
inflow - - - - 41 - 41
Bank’s derivative financial liabilities settled @nnet basis and contractual undiscounted cash flaging from
Bank’s derivatives settled on a gross basis asldb&8cember 2008.
LVL 000’s
Within 1-3 3-6 6-12 1-5 Over
1 month months months months years 5 years Total
Derivatives settled on a net basis
Foreign exchange contracts (6,068) (239) (46) - - - (6,353)
Interest rate derivatives (51) (1,686) (170) (3)326 - - (5,233)
Derivatives settled on a gross basis
Foreign exchange derivatives:
outflow (178,482)  (93,786)  (31,626)  (19,003) - - 22397)
inflow 181,534 95,477 32,378 19,368 - - 328,757
Other derivatives:
outflow - - - - (2,047) - (2,047)
inflow - - - - 376 - 376
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g) Operational risk

The Group defines operational risk as the risk agfsés resulting from processes that are deficientoa-compliant with

requirements of external and internal regulatidosses resulting from actions of employees andcesyshalfunctioning, as well
as losses resulting from actions of third partiefrom other external conditions, including legékr (risk of penalty fees,
sanctions applied by external institutions, lossssilting from litigation and other similar eventbut excluding strategic risk
and reputation risk. The Group further divides agienal risk into the following categories: persehrisk, process risk, IT and
systems risk, external risk.

The Group does not accept operational risks witleng@l impact exceeding 10% of the Group’s netuahmevenues, as well as
unmanageable risks or risks with unquantifiableantpirrespective of the financial gains this cohtihg (i.e., the Group does
not perform business activities incurring such afienal risks).

The Group applies following approaches for operatisisk management:

= Self-assessment of operational risk — the busioesers of the products and processes perform fietdbn and
evaluation of potential operational risk eventseasment of the existing control systems and thé&/sia of the
required risk mitigation measures using self-assess questionnaires and brainstorming sessions thigh
experts of the respective process;

= Defining operational risk indicators — use of &thl, financial and other indicators that refléoe level of
various operational risk types and its changesiwitiie Group;

= Defining the limits of the acceptable losses;

= Operational risk measurement by recording and aimyoperational risk events, the extent of theeetve
damage incurred, causes and other related infasmédiata base of operational risk losses and int#jie

=  “Four-eye-principle” and segregation of duties;

=  Business continuity planning;

= Risk assessment within product development;

- Insurance;

= Investments in appropriate data processing andnrgtion protection technologies.

h) Capital management

Capital adequacy refers to the sufficiency of theupis capital resources to cover the credit risic market risks arising from
the portfolio of assets and the off-balance shepbsures. The Financial and Capital Markets Commissi-CMC), the bank
regulator, regulations require Latvian banks tontan a capital adequacy ratio based on finant@ééments prepared under
IFRS as adopted by EU of 8% of risk weighted assets.

Since the Bank has subsidiaries, which are finamsditutions, it should comply with the regulatapquirements based on both
the Group’s financial statements and the Bank'stiiie statements as a stand-alone entity.

The Capital Requirements Directive (CRD), which impletaeBasel Il capital regulations in the EU, came ifull force on
1 January 2008. In Latvia the directive was impleted through FCMC regulations. Among the options ey in the
regulations, the Bank and Group has chosen to wswlatdized approach in credit risk calculations aadic indicators
approach in calculating operation risk charge.

The eligible capital for the capital adequacy pwgm constitutes the capital that the Bank manages. €ligible capital
comprises of Tier 1 and Tier 2 items, reduced lgcHie capital charges in accordance with the ragul requirements. Due to
significant adverse events in global capital markafter Lehman Brothers filed for bankruptcy andated repercussions in
countries the Group is represented in either tHidoegn exposures, or the securities book, the Gengpthe Bank suffered
significant impairment losses. As a result, durting first half of 2009, Group’s capital base detexied to the level, where the
minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement wasamyér met. The breach was remedied with the capitatase on 22 May
2009. For more details on capital increase, plesfee to Note 27.
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The capital adequacy calculation of Bank and Graupadécordance with FCMC regulationBagel llframework) can be
disclosed as follows:

LVL 000’s
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Group Group Bank Bank
Tier 1
- paid-in share capital 230,027 65,027 230,027 65,027
- share premium 12,694 12,694 12,694 12,694
- audited retained earnings/ (accumulated loss)
(not subject to dividend distribution)* (91,231) ,357 (78,071) 33,037
Less
- negative fair value revaluation reserve (12,318) (34,207) (11,979) (33,270)
- intangible assets (3,220) (4,048) (585) (782)
- additional equity charge in accordance with FCM@uirements
(50% from total) (3,144) (4,983) (3,144) (4,983)
- revaluation gain in relation to own credit risk - (766) - (766)
- Investments in subsidiaries — insurance company
(50% from total)* (1,500) (1,400) - -
Total Tier 1 131,308 67,874 148,942 70,957
Tier 2
- subordinated debt — total 103,120 52,957 103,127 52,960
- subordinated debt — excess over 50% from Tier 1 (35,144) (15,829) (27,084) (14,607)
- additional equity charge in accordance with FCM@uieements
(50% from total) (3,144) (4,983) (3,144) (4,983)
- investments in subsidiaries — insurance company
(50% from total)* (1,500) (1,400) - -
Total Tier 2 63,332 30,745 72,899 33,370
Equity to be utilised in the capital adequacy ratio 194,640 98,619 221,841 104,327
Credit risk and counterparty risk capital charge fegulatory
asset classes:
Central governments and banks 784 882 182 812
Municipalities 2,730 2,759 2,648 2,785
Government institutions 33 36 33 36
Credit institutions 9,406 19,649 22,508 20,166
Companies 70,825 107,075 72,911 106,312
Assets falling under “retail” definition 8,158 113 5,451 7,736
Qualifying residential mortgage loans 10,937 17,362 8,076 13,655
Assets falling under “past due” definition 40,720 , 768 33,228 6,416
Covered bonds 175 80 175 80
Investment funds 754 914 752 909
Other assets 18,076 33,250 13,347 23,428
Other risk capital charges:
Foreign currency open positions subject to caphalge 5,815 14,399 5,248 4,930
Fixed income securities position risk capital clearg 188 2,609 188 2,578
Equity instruments’ position risk capital charge 317 550 173 550
Operational risk capital charge 18,105 19,956 13,910 16,068
Total capital charges 186,879 239,802 178,830 206,461
Capital Adequacy Ratio (Equity/Total capital charges)x 8% 8.3% 3.3% 9.9% 4.0%

* AAS “Parex diviba” is not included in consolidation group for dapiadequacy purposes. The investment value djrectl
reduces the equity eligible for the capital adeguatio calculation purposes.
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NOTE 36. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Repayment of the syndicated loans

On 15 February 2010, the Bank repaid EUR 310 miliiothe syndicated lenders. EUR 165 million were ictfram the Bank’s
resources and EUR 145 million were provided by tteeSTreasury through placing a deposit with thekBiarnthe respective
amount.

Issue of debt securities

On 15 February 2010, the Bank concluded its firstésof debt securities amounting to EUR 17.7 milliand reached
conceptual agreement of restructuring restrictqbsliés amounting to EUR 130 million into two-yeapdsits. These measures
were undertaken in the process of restructuring Bieposits that are subject to restrictions, thgsifitantly reducing total
balance of such deposits and improving the Banglgdity.

Capital increase

On 23 February 2010, the Latvian Cabinet of Minstgpproved an increase of LVL 31.5 million in thenBa equity capital.
On 26 February 2010, the capital increase wasethiwut by capitalizing the respective amount ofrfrthe existing State
Treasury deposits with the Bank. No additional fuwese provided for the Bank’s capital increase.

Financing from State Treasury

As at 31 December 2009, the contractual maturitfesost of the State Treasury's deposits with thelBaere for January and
February 2010. Nevertheless, the State Treasurycbhasnued to support the Bank’s liquidity positiby rolling over the
maturing financing facilities. As at 24 March 2010e special financing received from the State Jueais as follows:

Outstanding

Agreement Interest  Agreement Maturity amount
currency rate(%) date date LVLO0O'’s
EUR 4.609  26/02/2010  17/05/2010 6,584
EUR 4.642 08/01/2010  08/04/2010 14,056
EUR 4.610 12/02/2010  12/05/2010 101,907
EUR 4.609  17/02/2010  17/05/2010 163,402
EUR 4.622  22/01/2010  22/04/2010 201,757
EUR 4.613  05/02/2010  05/05/2010 204,748
Total Treasury deposits 692,454
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